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Carrs Agriculture Limited

Strategic report for the year ended 29 August 2020

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is the supply of agricultural products.

Review of business
The results of the company show a profit before taxation of £4,830,542 (2019: £4,408,466) for the year and

turnover of £25,524,171 (2019: £23,978,97).

UK feed block volumes were up 5.2% compared to the prior year. This performance was driven by improved
livestock prices in the second half, which increased farmers’ willingness to invest in supplementation.

Key Performance indicators (“KPIs™)
The company’s directors believe that the most significant KP1 is profit before taxation as shown in the profit

and loss account and other comprehensive income on page 8.

Future developments
The company remains corfident in the medium term prospects of the business. While short-term uncertainty

relating to Brexit continues, our resilient performance during the pandemic illustrates the strength of the
business and its ability to overcome future challenges. The company remains focussed upon increasing its
presence in new markets including the UK dairy sector.

Going concern
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has sufficient financial resources to meet its

obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months. The directors have therefore concluded that it is
appropriate to prepare these financial statements on the going concern basis. Further details can be found in
the going concern section of the statement of accounting policies on page 12.

Climate change
The company is committed to reducing carbon emissions wherever possible. The detailed disclosure

requirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Requirements are covered in the ultimate parent
company’s annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The company’s principal risks and uncertainties are discussed in the Directors’ report on page 2.

By order of the Board on 18 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

L e

M A Ratcliffe
Company Secretary



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 29 August 2020

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended 29
August 2020. The comparative year is the year ended 31 August 2019.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal business risks affecting the company are managed at a group level. For this reascn, the directors

believe that a discussion of the company’s risks would not be appropriate for an understanding of the
development, performance or position of the company’s business. The principal business risks are discussed
on pages 28 to 30 of the ultimate parent company’s annual report.

The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. These policies have remained unchanged
throughout the year.

Credit risk
The company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers.

In relation to trade debtors, the major source of estimation uncertainty is the recoverable value of those
debtors. The judgements applied to this include the credit quality of customers, taking inte account their
financial positions, past experiences and other relevant factors. Individual customer credit limits are impesed
based on these factors, and provisions for impairment are made using those judgements. Provisions for
impairment are reviewed monthly by management.

Price risk
The company is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates (currency risk) and interest rates (interest rate
risk) will affect income or the value of financial assets and liabilities. The company finances its operations
through a mixture of retained earnings and borrowings. The company borrows at fixed and floating rates of
interest.

Currency risk
The company publishes its financial statements in Sterling but conducts business in some foreign currencies.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 8.

Dividends of £2,781,436 hawe been paid during the year (2019: £3,308,104). The proposed final dividend in
respect of the year ended 29 August 2020 is £2,806,285 (2019 £2,540,725). The financial statements do not
reflect this proposed final dividend within creditors.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are given

below:

T J Davies
N Austin

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic report, the Directors’ report and the

financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, the Directors’ report and the financial

statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern; and

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
respensibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditor
The direciors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors® report confitm that, so far as they are

each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and each
director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

Independent auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG

LLP will therefore continue in office.

By order of the Board on 18 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Ut

M A Ratcliffe
Company Secretary
Registered Office address: Old Croft, Stanwix, Carlisle, Cumbria CA3 9BA



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Carrs Agriculture
Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Carrs Agriculture Limited (“the company”) for the year ended 2%

August 2020 which comprise the Profit and loss account and other comprehensive income, the Balance Sheet,
the Statement of changes in equity, Statement of accounting policies and related notes.

In our opinion the financial statements:

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 29 August 2020 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Rediuced
Disclosure Framework, and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”} and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial position means
that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of
the financial statements (“the going concern period™).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the
directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business model and analysed how
those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the Strategic report and the Directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Carrs Agriculture
Limited (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the Strategic report and the Directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report;

. in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements: and

. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statemenis are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 3, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend 1o liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do se.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinicn in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Carrs Agriculture
Limited (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members, as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Nick Plumb (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Quayside House

110 Quayside

Newcastle upen Tyne

NEI1 3DX

18 December 2020



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Profit and loss account and other comprehensive income for the year

ended 29 August 2020

Note 2020 2019
£ £
Continuing operations
Tumover | 25,524,171 23,978,507
Cost of sales (20,301,339) (18,434,653)
Gross profit 5,222,832 5,543,854
Distribution costs (1,127,649) (986,101)
Administrative expenses (1,138,734) (637,205)
Other operating income 2 749,546 -
Adjusting items — administrative expenses 2 1,299,028 627,090
Operating profit 2 5,005,023 4,547,638
Interest receivable and similar income 4 11,451 25,293
Interest payable and similar expenses 4 (185,932) {164,465)
Profit before taxation 4,830,542 4,408,466
Tax on profit 5 (383,412) (440,803)
Profit for the financial year 4,447,130 3,967,663

There is no other comprehensive income for the current or prior year.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Balance sheet as at 29 August 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 7 3,898,276 2,089,622
Tangible assets 8 2,277,372 1,873,972
Right-of use assets 9 452,515 -
Investments 10 9,470,957 8,355,035
16,099,120 13218,629
Current assets
Stocks 11 4,306,763 4,668,620
Debtors 12 3,296,920 4,798,346
Cash at bank and in hand 583,530 1,169,723
8,187,213 10,636,689
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 13 (4,262.,497) (17,202,623)
Net cu rient a_sse_ﬂ_(liaﬂbiitiesl . o 3,924,716 (6,565,934)
Total assets less current liabilities 20,023,836 6,652,695
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear 14 (292,838) (481,910)
Provisions for liabilities 17 {65,543) (37.182)
Net assets 19,665,455 6,133,603
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 11,872,206 6,200
Capital redemption reserve 6,181 6,181
Equity compensation reserve 32221 55,796
Profit and loss account 7,754,847 6,065,426
Total equity 19,665,455 6,133,603

The financial statements on pages 8 to 42 were approved by the Board of directors on 18 December 2020 and

were signed on its behalf by:

N A

N Austin
Director

Registered Number 00480342

g



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 29 August 2020

Called up Capital Equity
share redemption compensation Profit and
capital reserve reserve  loss account  Total equity
£ £ £ £ £

At 2 September 2018 6,200 6,181 104,690 5,332,750 5,449,221
Profit for the financial year - - - 3,967,663 3,967,663
Equity settled share based
payment transactions - - 26,077 - 26,077
Excess deferred taxation on share
based payments - - (1,254) (1,254)
Dividends (Note 6) - - - (3,308.104) {3,308,104)
Transfer between reserves - - (74,371) 74,371 -
At 31 August 2019 6,200 6,181 55,796 6,065,426 6,133,603
As previously reported at 31
August 2019 6,200 6,181 55,796 6,065,426 6,133,603
Effect of IFRS 16 adoption - - - (20,339) (20,339
At 1 September 2019 (restated) 6,200 6,181 55,796 6,045,087 6,113,264
Profit for the financial year - - - 4,447,130 4,447,130
Equity settled share based
payment transactions - - 21,030 - 21,030
Excess deferred taxation on share
based payments - - - {539) (539)
Dividends (Note 6) - - - (2,781,436) (2,781,436)
New share capital subscribed 11,866,006 - - - 11,866,006
Transfer between reserves - - (44,605) 44,605 -
At 29 August 2020 11,872,206 6,181 32221 7,754,847 19,665,455




Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to both the current and prior year, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
The company is a private limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The

company is limited by shares. The address of its registered office is Old Croft, Stanwix, Carlisle, Cumbria CA3
9BA.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, in
particular, Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and the Companies
Act 2006 (the Act). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a ‘qualifying entity” as defined in
the standard which addresses the financiai reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual
financial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of EU-adopted IFRS.

The company is a qualifying entity for the purpose of FRS 101. Note 23 gives details of the company’s
ultimate parent and from where its consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS may be
obtained.

The company has adopted the intermediate parent exemption under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006
whereby it is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements as the ultimate parent company prepares
publicly available consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS,

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of
the following disclosures:

¢ Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

e  Certain disclosures regarding revenue;

e  Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, intangible assets and tangible assets;
¢ Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

e Disclosures in respect of capital management;

s The effects of new butnot yet effective IFRSs; and

¢ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel.

As the consolidated financial statements of Carr’s Group plc, the ultimate parent company of Carrs Agriculture
Limited, include the equivalent disclosures, the company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101
available in respect of the following disclosures:

e IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settled share based payments;

¢  Certain disclosures required by [AS 36 Impairment of assets in respect of the impairment of goodwill
and indefinite life intangible assets;

e Certain disclosures required by [FRS 3 Business Combinations in respect of business combinations
undertaken by the company; and

e  Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures requited by
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

v

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from
those estimates, Significant judgements and estimates are outlined at the end of the statement of accounting
policies.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the Directors consider to be
appropriate for the following reasons.

The Company is a cross guarantor for the Carr’s Group pl¢ (“The Group™) banking facility and as such the
going concern status of the Company is reliant on the going concern status of the Group.

The Group has prepared cash flow forecasts for a 32 months period to 2 September 2023, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance. The Group is expected to have a sufficient level of
financial resources available through operating cash flows and existing bank facilitics for a period of at least 12
months from approval of these financial statements (“The going concern period™). These forecasts indicate that
the Group will be able to operate within its banking facilities and accordingly the directors of the company
have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The Group has sensitised the forecasts for severe but plausible downside scenarios. The severe but plausible
downside scenarios tested included significant reductions in profitability and cashflows for a period of three
months with similar impacts modelled to those experienced through the first Covid-19 national lockdown and
have been updated to reflect the expected impact of Brexit upon the Group. The results of this stress testing,
which is considered severe as the Group and Company have been able to successfully continue to trade
through the second national lockdown later in the year, showed that the Group and Company would be able to
withstand the impact of these severe but plausible downside scenarios occurring over the going concern period,
and that sufficient headroom on the Group’s banking covenants is available.

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and
therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Turnover recognition
Turnover is recognised when the company transfers control over a product or service to its customer. Tumover

is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The company recognises turnover at a point in time.

Foreign currencies
The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Sterling. Transactions in currencies other

than Sterling are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Translation differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency are recognised in the profit and loss account.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Retirement benefit obligations
Employees are members of Carr’s Group Pension Scheme, the Carr’s Group Retirement Savings Scheme and

NEST.

Contributions to the defined benefit pension scheme are across the participating companies. Costs are not
defined for each individual company as the company is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities in the scheme. Contributions payable by the company are charged to the profit and loss account in
the year they fall due.

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to profit or loss is the contributions payable in the year.
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments.

Adjusting items

Adjusting items that are material by size and/or by nature are highlighted separately on the face of the profit
and loss account and are also disclosed within a note to the financial statements. The separate disclosure of
profit before adjusting items is consistent with how business performance is measured internally and is
presented to aid comparability of performance. Events which may give rise to adjusting items include, but are
not limited to, adjustments to contingent consideration arising from fair value revaluation, losses on dissolution
of dormant subsidiaries and redundancy costs.

Interest
Interest is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

Dividends
Dividends payable are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which the dividends are paid or

approved by the company’s directors, whichever is earlier.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred

over the Company’s interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date, The
cost of separately acquired intangible assets comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
preparing the assets for use.

Amortisation commences when assets are available for use and is charged over their expected useful economic
life as follows

Software 10 years

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost

comprises purchase price and directly attributable costs.

Assets not fully constructed at the balance sheet date are classified as assets in the course of construction,
When construction is complete these assets are reclassified to the appropriate heading within tangible assets.
Depreciation commences when the asset is ready for use.

Land is not depreciated. For all other tangible assets, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
allocate cost less residual values of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  shorter of 50 years or lease term
Plant and machinery 5 10 20 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor equipment is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred; the
cost of major renovations and improvements is capitalised.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within the profit and loss account.

Impairment of fixed assets
Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment where there are any events or changes in circumstances that would

indicate potential impairment. In addition at each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is any
indication that goodwill may be impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the company makes an
estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the
asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use and is deemed for an individual asset. 1f the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. Discount rates reflecting the asset specific risks and
the time value of money are used for the value in use calculation.



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where

applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the stocks to their
present location and conditiont. Where appropriate, cost is calculated on a specific identification basis.
Otherwise stocks are valued using the first-in first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

At each reporting date an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of stocks
over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or
loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Leasin

The cor%pany adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with effect from 1 September 2019 and has applied the standard using
the modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is
recognised at the date of initial application. Further details of the effect of the adoption of IFRS 16 and the new
accounting treatment for leases where the company is the lessee can be found within the new accounting
standards section on pages 17 to 20,

Prior to transition to IFRS 16 the accounting policy was:

Leases are classified as finance leases at inception where substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the company. Assets classified as finance leases are capitalised on the balance
sheet and are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the term of the lease. The interest
element of the rental obligations is charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease using the
actuarial method.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Any incentives to enter into operating leases are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease termn
on a straight-line basis.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates that have been

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax arising from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, is not recognised. Deferred tax is measured using tax rates that have been
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account,



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments
The ultimate parent company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled

share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of the grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the company’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

Fair value is measured by use of a valuation model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

At each balance sheet date the ultimate parent company revises its estimate of the number of options that are
expected to vest. Changes to the fair value recognised as aresult of this are charged or credited to the profit
and loss account with a corresponding adjustment to the equity compensation reserve.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the company’s balance sheet when the company becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Trade debtors
Trade debtors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade debtors is
established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the debtors. Significant financial difficultics of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade debtor is impaired. The amount of the provision is the diftference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a provision for
impairment and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit and loss account. The provision is utilised
when a trade debtor is irrecoverable.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification of financial instruments issued by the company

Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity only 1o
the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the company to deliver cash or other financial assets or
to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the company; and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the company’s own equity instruments, it is either a
non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity
instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash
or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where
the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these
financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those
shares.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Borrowings
Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recognised initially at fair value net of direct issue costs and are

subsequently stated at amortised cost. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the year in which they arise.

Trade creditors
Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or

options are shown in equity, as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

New standards and interpretations
From 1 September 2019 the following became effective and were adopted by the company:

s [FRS 16 ‘Leases’

¢ [FRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

+  Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial instruments on prepayment features with negative compensation

*  Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investment in associates’, on long term interests in associates and joint
ventures

e Annual imprevements to IFRSs —2015-2017 cycle

+  Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’

With the exception of [FRS 16, which is discussed further below, the adoption of the above amendments and
interpretations has had no impact on the company’s profit for the year or equity.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The company adopted IFRS 16 with effect from 1 September 2019 and has applied the standard using the
modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is
recognised at the date of initial application. The company has restated its opening total equity position as at 1
September 2019 by a charge of £20,339. Comparative information has not been restated and is therefore still
reported under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and related interpretations. To assist comparability, note 22 shows the balance
sheet as at 29 August 2020 had the company continued to adopt IAS 17 and related interpretations.

Under the modified retrospective approach used, the company has recognised right-of-use assets at their
carrying amounts as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the
company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The liability has been recognised at an
amount equal to the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the company’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The incremental borrowing rate used was 3%.
£329,181 of right-of-use assets were recognised on transition in respect of leases previously accounted for as
operating leases under IAS 17. A lease obligation of £341,011 was recognised on transition in respect of leases
previously accounted for as operating leases. Prepayments and accruals totalling £12,593 have been removed
from the balance sheet on transition.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)
New standards and interpretation (continued)
IFRS 16 'Leases (continued)

A reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 August 2019 to the lease liabilities
recognised on transition is as follows:

£
Operating lease commitments as at 31 August 2019 405,209
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at initial application (19,908)
Other (44,.290)
Lease liabilities at I September 2019 341,011
Included within:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 137,073
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 203,938
341,011

The following table shows the effect of IFRS 16 on the profit and loss account for the period ended 29 August
2020.

£
Reduction in lease expense recognised 197,465
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (178,258)
Profit on disposal of right-of-use leases 507
Interest cost of lease liabilities (12,424)
Impact on profit before tax 7290

Depreciation, profit on disposal and interest costs in the table above exclude amounts in respect of finance
leases that would have been recognised in the profit and loss account under 1AS 17,

On transition to IFRS 16 the company has applied the foflowing practical expedients permitted by the standard
on a lease-by-lease basis:

*  Accounting for leases where the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application as
short-term leases;

e Exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

s Use of hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

New standards and interpretation {(continued)

IFRS 16 Leases '(contined)

The company is not required to make any transition adjustment for leases previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17 where the underlying asset is of low value.

The company is also not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial
application. IFRS 16 permits the company to apply the standard only to contracts that were previously
identified as containing a lease under [AS 17 and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease’.

The company leases properties, motor vehicles and minor equipment. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of terms and conditions.

Prior to transition to IFRS 16 the company classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases in
accordance with [AS 17. Payments made under operating leases were charged to the profit and loss account on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Since transition to IFRS 16, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Each lease payment is allocated between the
repayment of the lease liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit and loss account over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis and is also subject to regular impairment reviews.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

* Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

s Variable lease payments that are based on an index or rate;

=  Amounts expeced to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

* The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

+ Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where this cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

¢  The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

¢  Any lease payments made at of before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,;
*  Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

*  Restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

New standards and interpretation (continued)
IFRS 16 “Leases (continued)

At the commencement date of property leases the company normally determines the lease term to be the fuli
term of the lease, assuming that any option to break or extend the lease is unlikely to be exercised and it is not
reasonably certain that the company will continue in occupation for any period beyond the lease term. Leases
are regularly reviewed and will be revalued if it becomes likely that a break clause or option to extend the lease
is exercised.

Payments associated with short-term leases and lease of low value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in the profit and loss account. Short term leases are lease with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low value assets generally comprise minor office and IT equipment.

Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates
Application of certain company accounting policies requires management to make judgements, assumptions

and estimates concerning the future as detailed below.

The following is considered to be a significant judgement.

Leases
Significant judgements are required, principally in respect of property leases, when determining the lease term

where the lease contains break clauses or options to extend the term. In valuing property lease assets the
company has assumed that the right to break or extend the lease is not exercised. The company will regularly
monitot these leases and should this assumption become inappropriate the asset and liability will be revalued
accordingly.

The following are considered to be accounting estimates,

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill must be assessed for impairment annually, or more frequently if there are
indications that goodwill might be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to which goodwill is allocated. Value in use is dependent on estimations of future cash flows
from the cash generating unit and the use of an appropriate discount rate to discount those cash flows to their
present value.

No impairment has been identified in the current or prior year. The carrying value of goodwill at the year end
is £2,039,119(2019: £2,039,119). Further details of cash generating units can be found in note 7.

Provision for impairment of trade debiors
The financial statements include a provision for impairment of trade debtors that is based on management’s

estimation of recoverability. There is arisk that the provision will not match the trade debtors that ultimately
prove to be irrecoverable. The carrying value of the provision at the year end is £164,002 (2019: £141,547).
Further details of the movement in the provision can be found in note 12.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates (continued)

Valuation of contingent consideration

IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ requires contingent consideration to be measured initially at fair value and
then subsequently revalued to fair value at each period end. This involves an estimate of expected future
payments based on profit forecasts and discount rates to reflect the tirne value of money. The fair value of
contingent consideration at 29 August 2020 in respect of Animax Limited is £nil. Further details can be found
in notes 13 and 14. The fair value of contingent consideration at the prior year end was £1,431,910.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 29 August 2020

1 Turnover

At 29 August 2020, all of the activities of the company fall into one class of business, namely the supply of
agricultural products. All activities originated in the United Kingdom. Under IFRS 15 the company’s turnover
is recognised at a point in time.

2 Operating profit

2020 2019
£ £

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit:
Staff costs (Note 3) 3,199,196 2,944,486
Depreciation of tangible assets (Note 8) 242,984 243,769
Loss on disposal of tangible assets 3,766 4,000
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 9) 190,730 -
Profit on disposal of right-of-use assets (507) -
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) 23,327 (69,348)
Operating lease expense — plant and machinery (IAS 17) - 173,763
Operating lease expense —property (1AS 17) - 120,796
Dividends (749,546) -
Adjusting items:
Adjustments to contingent consideration (1,431,910) (674,090}
Loss on dissolution of dormant subsidiaries 54,438 -
Redundancies 78,444 47,000

Adjustments to contingent consideration arise from the revaluation of contingent consideration in respect of
acquisitions to fair value at the year end. Any gain or loss related to the revaluation to fair value is recognised
through the income statement.

Services provided by the company’s auditors and network firms
During the year the company obtained the following service from the company’s auditors as detailed below:

2020 2019
£ £
Statutory audit 29,735 26,585

Full disclosure of any non-audit remuneration incurred by the ultimate parent company is included in the
consolidated report and accounts published by the ultimate parent company.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

3 Employees and directors

Staff costs for the company during the year 2020 2019
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,693,342 2,443,605
Social security costs 262936 251603
Share based payments expense 21,030 26077
Other pension costs {Note 15) 221,888 223201
3,199,196 2,944 486

The average monthly number of people employed by the company was:
By activity 2020 2019
Number Number
Sales, office and management 34 34
Manufacturing and distribution 40 42
74 76

The directors are remunerated by the parent company and details of such remuneration can be found in the
publicly available Annual Report and Accounts of the parent company. Accordingly, the above details include

no emoluments in respect of these directors.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

4 Interest receivable and interest payable

2020 2019
£ £
Interest receivable and similar income
Bank interest 10,971 24,640
Other interest receivable 480 653
Total interest receivable 11,451 25,293
Interest payable and similar expenses
Bank interest (35,669) (8,082)
Interest payable on amounts owed to group undertakings (135,920) (156,383}
Interest payable on leases (13,960) -
Other interest payable (383) -
Total interest payable (185,932) (164,465)
Interest payable on leases recognises an additional £12,424 following the adoption of IFRS 16.
5 Tax on profit
Analysis of charge in year 2020 2019
£ £
Current tax:
Current tax expense 341,352 420,761
Adjustments in respect of prior years (10,575) {(751)
330,777 420,010
Deferred tax (Note 17):
Origination and reversal of timing differences 45,504 33,849
Adjustments in respect of prior years 7,131 (13,056)
52,635 20,793
Taxation 383412 440,803
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

5 Tax on profit (continued)

The tax for the year is lower (2019: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2019:
19%). The differences are explained below:

2020 2019
£ £

Profit before taxation 4,830,542 4,408,466
Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19% (2019: 19%) 917,803 837609
Lffects of:
Adjustments in respect of prior years (3,444) (13,807)
Income not taxable for tax purposes (639,143) (406,231}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 106,308 27214
Effect of deferred tax rate 1,388 (3,982)
Total tax charge for the year 383,412 440,803

Income not taxable for tax purposes includes adjusting items of adjustments to contingent consideration (note
2) and the effect of income within the patent box regime.

The prevailing UK corporation tax rate of 19% was substantively enacted as part of the Finance Act 2019 on

12 March 2019. The rate was due to reduce to 17% from April 2020, however, in the budget on 12 March 2020
it was announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax will be held at 19%. Deferred tax is therefore
provided at 19%. UK deferred tax balances at the prior year end were provided at 17%.

6 Dividends

2020 2019
£ £
Dividend of £448.62 (2019 £533.57) per ordinary share 2,781,436 3,308,104

The dividends presented in the table above were paid prior to the increase in share capital in the year ended 29
August 2020, The Directors are proposing a final dividend of £2,806,285 (2019: £2,540,725) being £0.24 per
share (2019: £409.79 pershare). The financial statements do not reflect this proposed final dividend within

creditors,
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

7 Intangible assets

Goodwill Software Total
£ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2019 2,039,119 950,503 2,989,622
Additions - 912,838 912,838
At 29 August 2020 2,039,119 1,863,341 3,902,460
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 September 2019 - - -
Amortisation charge - 4,184 4,184
At 29 August 2020 - 4,184 4,184
Net book amount
At 29 August 2020 2,039,119 1,859,157 3,898,276
At 3] August 2019 2,039,119 950,503 2,989,622
The carrying value of goodwill has been allocated to the following cash generating units:
2020 2019
£ £
Scotmin profit centre 2,039,119 2,039,119

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is in excess of the carrying value and is determined

through reference to its value in use.

Departure from the historical cost accounting rules:

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if these are indicators that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill is tested for impairment by estimating future cash flows from the cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated and discounting these cash flows to their present value. This accounting
policy represents a departure from the historical cost accounting rules and, in particular, paragraph 22 of
Schedule 1 of the Companies Act 2006, which requires goodwill to be reduced by provisions for depreciation
calculated to write off the amount systematically over a year chosen by the directors, not exceeding its useful
economic life.

However, the directors consider that these requirements would fail to provide a true and fair view of the profit
for the year and the balances carried forward in the financial statements in relation to acquisitions.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

8 Tangible assets

Leasehold Plant and Motor Assets in Total
improvements machinery vehicles  the course of
construction
£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2019 1,082,006 4,796,517 475,847 35,247 6,389617
Additions at cost 46,092 119,827 - 41,664 207,583
Transfers from group 447,067 - - - 447,067
Reciassifications 2,000 - - (2,000) -
Disposals - (52,159) (96,968) - (149,127)
At 29 August 2020 1,577,165 4,864,185 378,879 74,911 6,895,140
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At | September 2019 232,366 3,877,942 405,337 - 4,515,645
Depreciation charge for the 35,883 201,093 6,008 - 242,984
Disposals - (51,761) (89,100) - (140,861}
At 29 August 2020 268,249 4,027.274 322,245 - 4,617,768
Net book amount
At 29 August 2020 1,308,916 836,911 56,634 74,911 2,277,372
At 31 August 2019 849,640 918,575 70,510 35,247 1,873,972

Depreciation is recognised within cost of sales.
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for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

9 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Land and Plant, Total
buildings equipment
and vehicles
£ £ £
Cost
At | September 2019 - - -
Transition to IFRS 16 45,736 283,445 329,181
Additions 135,706 190,934 326,640
Disposals - (12,576) (12,576)
At 29 August 2020 181,442 461,803 643,245
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At | September 2019 - - -
Depreciation charge for the year 71,642 115,088 190,730
At 29 August 2020 71,642 119,088 190,730
Net book amount
At 29 August 2020 109,800 342,715 452,515
At 31 August 2019 - - -
2020 2019
(IFRS 16) (IAS 17)
Lease liabilities £ £
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 158,613 -
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 292.838 -

451,451
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9 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

The remaining contractual maturities of the lease liabilities, which are gross and undiscounted, are as follows:

2020
£
Less than one year 172,981
One to two years 145,057
Two to three years 69,124
Three to four years 52,496
Four to five years 32,889
More than five years 8519
481,066
Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account
The profit and loss account shows the following amounts relating to leases:
2020
£
Depreciation 190,730
Profit on disposal (507)
Interest expense 13,960
Short-term leases and low value assets 31,271
235,454

There is no expense recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of variable lease payments that are not
included in the measurement of the lease liabilities.

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 29 August 2020 was £216,978.
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10 Investments

Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings

£
Cost
At 1 September 2019 10,800,698
Additions 62,143
Recapitalisation 1,355,995
Disposals (211,482)
Dissolution of dormant subsidiaries {2,545,300)
At 29 August 2020 9,462,054
Provision for impairment
At | September 2019 2,454,566

Dissolution of dormant subsidiaries

(2,454,566)

At 29 August 2020

Net book amount

At 29 August 2020

9,462,054

At 31 August 2019

8,346,132

During the year the company began the process of dissolving two dormant subsidiaries. They have been
officially dissolved post-year end. Also during the year the company disposed of its investment in Carr’s

Supplements (Brasil) Nutrigio Animal Limitada.

The recapitalisation of £1,355,995 represents the increased shareholding in a subsidiary following the

capitalisation of inter-company debt.
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10 Investments (continued)

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost. A list of subsidiary undertakings is given below:

Country of  Country of Yo Class of
incorporation operation  holding share Nature of business
Scotmin Nutrition Limited! Scotland UK 100 Ordinary Dormant company
Carr’s International Industries
Limited' England UK 100 Ordinary Dormant company
Carr’s Supplements (NZ) New Distributor of animal
Limited New Zealand Zealand 100 Ordinary feed blocks
Distributor of animal
Conegar S.A. Uruguay Uruguay 100 Ordinary feed blocks
Manufacture of
animal health
Animax Limited England UK 100 Ordinary products
New Distributor of animal
Animax NZ Limited New Zealand Zealand 100 Ordinary health products
Manufacture of
specialist
Clinimax Limited England UK 100 Ordinary disinfectants

! Dissolution process commenced prior to 29 August 2020 and officially dissolved post-year end.
All holdings are of ordinary share classes.

Scotmin Nutrition Limited has a registered office address of 13 Whitfield Drive, Heathfield Ind. Est., Ayr,
KAB 9RX, Scotland. Carr’s International [ndustries Limited has a registered office address of Old Croft,
Stanwix, Carlisle, Cumbria, CA3 9BA, England. Carr’s Supplements (NZ) Limited has a registered office
address of 515a Wairakei Road, Burnside, Christchurch 8053, New Zealand. Conegar S.A. has aregistered
office address of Juncal 1305, Piso 18, Montevideo, Uruguay. The registered office address of both Animax
Limited and Clinimax Limited is Shepherds Grove West, Stanton, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP31 2AR. The
registered office address of Animax NZ Limited is RSM New Zealand (Auckland}, Level 2, Building 5, 60
Highbrook Drive, East Tamaki, Auckland 2013, New Zealand.

Interest in joint venture

Cost and net book amount

At 1 September 2019 and 29 August 2020 4,050

The company holds 50% of the issued share capital of Silloth Storage Company Limited. The investment in the
joint venture is stated at cost. The principal activity of the joint venture is the storage of molasses. Of the
remaining 50%, 48% is held by Peter Cremer GmbH and 2% is held by Prime Molasses Limited, The
registered office address for the joint venture is 3 Filers Way, Weston Gateway Busines Park, Weston-Super-
Mare BS24 7JP.
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10 Investments (continued)

Other investments

Cost and net book amount

At 1 September 2019 and 29 August 2020 4,853

Other investments principally comprise ordinary shares in several private companies in the agricultural sector.

11 Stocks
2020 2019
£ £
Raw materials and consumables 2,096,873 2,514,306
Finished goods 2,209,890 2,154,314
4,306,763 4,668,620

Stocks are stated after a provision for impairment of £264.380 (2019: £30,173).

£234,466 (2019 £5,173) has beenrecognised as a charge within the profit and loss account in respect of stock
write-downs. This is included within cost of sales.

The cost of stocks recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales during the year is £19,572,093 (2019:
£17,982.,470).
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12 Debtors
2020 2019
£ £
Amounts receivable within one year:
Trade debtors 2,069,378 2,062,322
Less: Provision for impairment of trade debtors (164,002) (141,547)
Trade debtors — net 1,905,376 1,920,775
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,013,809 2,344,920
Amounts owed by joint ventures (Note 21) 22,583 48,546
Amounts owed by associated undertakings (Note 21) 35,568 92,438
Other taxes and social security 285,633 311,604
Other debtors 1218 1,000
Prepayments and accrued income 32,733 58,334
3,296,920 4777617
Amounts receivable after more than one year:
Deferred tax asset (Note 17) - 20,729
3,296,920 4,798,346

The movement in the provision for impaired trade debtors consists of increases for additional provisions offset
by debtors written off and unused provision released back to the profit and loss account. The provision is

utilised when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

A charge of £24,403 (2018: credit of £84,298) is recognised within administrative expenses in the profit and
loss account in respect of the provision for impairment of trade debtors. There is no impairment of other

debtors to be recognised in the current or preceding year.

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment date.
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13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020 2019

£ £

Bank overdraft 974,032 322,900
Leases (Note 9) 158,613 -
Trade creditors 1,545,558 1,493,900
Amounts owed to group undertakings 33,945 12,534,325
Amounts owed to joint ventures (Note 21) 2,266 -
Amounts owed to associated undertakings (Note 21) 18,069 48,136
Cuirent tax creditor 341353 385,123
Other creditors 1,007,252 2,305,657
Accruals and deferred income 181,409 112,582
4,262,497 17,202,623

The bank overdraft is secured under a cross guarantee (note 20). Amounts owed to group undertakings
includes trade balances in the normal course of business which are interest free and unsecured together with
loans in the prior year, which are unsecured, have no fixed repayment date and carry interest rates between 0%
and bank of England base rate + 2.5%. Other creditors includes £nil (2019: £950,000) in respect of contingent

consideration arising on the acquisition of Animax Limited.

14 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019

£ £

Leases {Note 9) 292,838 -
Other creditors - 481,910
292,838 481910

Other creditors relates to contingent consideration arising on the acquisition of Animax Limited.
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15 Retirement benefits

(a) Carr’s Group Pension Scheme

The company participates in a group pension scheme operated by Carr’s Group plc, its ultimate parent
company. The pensicn scheme offered a defined benefit and a defined contribution section. The defined
benefit section shares risks between entities under common control. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the sponsoring company and are invested with independent investment managers.

From 1 September 20135 the defined contribution section was closed. Members of that section were enrolled in
a new defined contribution scheme, the Carr’s Group Retirement Savings Scheme (Carr’s Group RSS), set up
under a Master Trust arrangement.

The defined benefit section of the scheme was previously closed to new members, and has closed to future
accrual with effect from 31 December 2015. Members of this section became entitled to become members of
the Carr’s Group RS8S from 1 January 2016. The pension expense for the defined benefit section of the scheme
for the year was £nil (2019: £nil).

The defined benefit section of the scheme is valued every three years by a professionally qualified independent
actuary, the rates of contribution payable being determined by the actuarty. In the intervening years the actuary
reviews the continuing appropriateness of the rates. Common contribution rates apply across the Carr’s Group
plc group as a whole. The last finalised full actuarial assessment of the scheme was at 31 December 2017.

There is neither a contractual agreement nor a stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to the
individual group entities. Costs are not defined for each individual company as the company is unable to
identify its underlying share of the pension scheme assets and liabilities in the scheme. Accordingly, the net
defined benefit cost for the scheme as a whole is recognised in the financial statements of Carr’s Group ple, the
sponsoring employer of the scheme. Contributions payable by the company are charged to the profit and loss
account in the year they fall due.

Recognition of the defined benefit asset and related disclosures required by IAS 19 Revised: ‘Employee
benefits’ in respect of the group scheme are provided in the Carr’s Group plc financial statements.

(b} Carr’s Group Retirement Savings Scheme (Carr’s Group RSS)

Carr’s Group pic offers membership to the company’s employees in a Master Trust arrangement, Carr’s Group
RSS, following the closure of both sections of the Carr’s Group Pension Scheme. The pension expense for this
scheme in the year was £194,417 (2019: £213,287).

(¢) Other pension plans
The company contributes into NEST on behalf of certain employees. Contributions of £12,359 (2019: £9,537)

have been made in the year.

(d} Pension scheme related costs
During the year the company incurred costs associated with pension schemes of £15,112 (2019 £377}.
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16 Share-based payments

SAYE Share Plan

All employees, subject to eligibility criteria, may participate in the share save scheme. Under this scheme
employees are offered savings contracts for 3 year vesting period plans. The exercise period is 6 months from
the vesting date.

The expected volatility has been calculated using historical daily data over a term commensurate with the
expected life of each option. The expected life is the midpoint of the exercise period. The risk-free rate of
return is the implied yield of zero-coupon UK Government bonds with a remaining term equal to the expected
term of the award being valued.

During the year 41,204 options were granted with 16,188 options subsequently forfeited in the Share Save
Scheme 2020 (3 year plan) with a weighted average exercise price of £1.223. In addition, no (2019: 4,730)
options were forfeited in the Share Save Scheme 2018 (3 year plan) with a weighted average exercise price of
£1.061(2019: £1061).

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation of fair values are as follows:

Share Save Scheme Share Save Scheme Share Save Scheme
(3-Year Plan 2020) (3-Year Plan 2019) (3-Ycar Plan 2018)

Grant date 16/12/19 17/12/18 18/12/17
Share price at grant date (weighted average)

£1.565 £l1.44 £1.20
Exercise price (weighted average)

£1.223 £1275 £1.061
Number of employees at grant 10 10 21
Shares under option at grant 41,204 39,525 103,552
Vesting year (ycars) 3 3 3
Model used for valuatton Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Binomial
Expected volatility 36.4% 34 8% 32.7%
Option hife {years) 3.65 3.65 35
Expected life (years) 34 34 3.25
Weighted average remaining contractual lite
(years)

307 207 0.83

Risk-free rate 0.61% 0.81% 0.6%
Expected dividends expressed as a dividend
yield

3.04% 2.56% 2.7%
Expectations of vesting 95% 95% 95%
Fair value per option at grant £0.46 £0.36 £0 280
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17 Provisions for liabilities

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below:

2020 2019

£ £

Brought forward net (liability /asset (16,453) 5,594

Arising on transition to IFRS 16 4,084 -
Profit and loss account charge (Note 5) (52,635) (20,793)
Recognised in equity (539) (1,254)
Carried forward net liability (65,543) (16,453)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax
assets because it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are shown below;

Deferred tax assets: 2020 2019
Short term timing differences £ £
Brought forward asset 20,729 20,433
Arising on transition to IFRS 16 4,084 -
Profit and loss account {charge)/credit (16,119) 1,550
Recognised in equity (539) (1,254)
Carried forward asset 8,155 20,729
Deferred tax liabilities: 2020 2019
Accelerated capital allowances £ £
Brought forward liability (37,182) (14,839)
Profit and loss account charge (36,516) (22,343)
Carried forward liability (73,698) (37.182)
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for the year ended 29 August 2020 (continued)

18 Called up share capital

2020 2019
£ £
Allotted, issued and fully paid
11,872,206 (201% 6,200) ordinary shares of £1 each 11,872,206 6,200
11,872,206 6,200
19 Commitments under operating leases
2020 2019
£ £
Total future aggregate minimum lease payment§ under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Falling due before one year - 160,832
Between one to five years - 215413
After more than five yvears - 28,964
- 405209

Since 1 September 2019 the Company’s operating leases are accounted for under IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. Details of
contractual undiscounted cash flows for leases under IFRS 16 can be found in Note 9.

20 Contingent liabilities

The company has given an unlimited cross guarantee with regard to all amounts owing to Clydesdale Bank
PLC by its parent company and fellow subsidiary companies. At 29 August 2020 the aggregate amount
outstanding under these group banking arrangements was £23,064,343 (2019: £26,075,114).
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21 Related party transactions

The company had the following related party transactions:

In respect of the year ended 29 August 2020

Transactions with fellow group companies which are not wholly owned:

Sales Purchases Management Amounts Amounts
to from charges from owed by owed to
£ £ £ £ £
Carrs Billington Agriculture
(Sales) Limited 4,600,168 (2,620} (145,545) 196,740 (7.416)
Transactions with other related party companies:
Sales Purchases Management Amounts Amounts
to from charges from owed by owed to
£ £ £ £ £
Carrs Billington Agriculture
(Operations) Limited 451,957 - (85,000) 35,568 (18,069}
Bibby Agriculture Lumited 10,298 - - 766 -
Crystalyx Products GmbH 319,196 (7.846) - 21,817 (2,266)
781,451 (7,846) (85,000} 58,151 (20,335)
In respect of the year ended 31 August 2019
Transactions with fellow group companies which are not wholly owned:
Sales Purchascs Management Amaounts Amounts
to tfrom charges from owed by owed to
£ £ £ £ £
Carrs Billington Agriculture
(Sales) Limited 4,169,373 (29) (142,669) 167,034 (8,238)
Transactions with other related party companies:
Sales Purchascs Management Amounts Amounts
to from charges from owed by owed 10
£ £ £ £ £
Carrs Billington Agriculture
(Operations) Limited 560,896 - (85,444) 92,438 (48,136}
Crystatyx Products GmbH 619,085 - - 48,546 -
1.179.981 - (85.444) 140,984 (48,136)

Crystalyx Products GmbH is a joint venture of Carr’s Group plc and Carrs Billington Agriculture (Operations)

Limited is an associate of Carr’s Group ple. Carr’s Group ple is the company’s immediate parent. Bibby
Agriculture Limited is a joint venture of Carrs Billington Agriculture (Sales) Limited.
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22 Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The company adopted IFRS 16 with effect from 1 September 2019 and has applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of
initial application. Comparative information has not been restated and is therefore still reported under 1AS 17.

Adjustments to the opening balance sheet arising from adoption of IFRS 16 are as follows:

31 August Adjustments 1 September
2019 2019
£ £ £
Fixed assets
Right-of-use assets - 329,181 329,181
Current assets
Debtors 4,798,346 (8,509) 4,789,837
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (17,202,623) (137,073} (17,339,696)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (481,910) (203,938) (685,848)
Total equity
Profit and loss account 6,065,426 (20,339) 6,045,087
Headline figures
Fixed assets 13,218,629 329,181 13,547.810
Current assets 10,636,689 {8,509) 10,628,180
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (17,202,623) (137,073) (17,339,696}
Net current liabilities (6,565,934) (145,582) {6,711,516)
Total assets less current liabilities 6,652,695 183,599 6,836,294
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (481,910) (203,938) (685,848)
Provisions for liabilities (37,182) - (37,182)
Net assets 6,133,603 (20,339) 6,113,264
Total equity 6,133,603 (20,339) 6,113,264

The adjustments to the opening position reflect the recognition of 329,181 right-of-use assets and £341,011
lease liabilities in respect of leases previously accounted for as operating leases under [AS 17. Prepayments
totalling £12,593 in respect of leases recognised on the balance sheet as at 31 August 2019 have been removed.

A deferred tax asset of £4,084 has been recognised on transition.
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22 Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (continued)

To enable the users of these accounts to compare the periods presented in the financial statements the
following table shows the balance sheet of the company as at 29 August 2020 as though IAS 17 still applied.

29 August  Adjustments 29 August

2020 (as 2020 (1AS
reported) 17)
£ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2,277,372 129,088 2,406,460
Right-of-use assets 452,515 (452,515) -
Current assets
Debtors 3,296,920 12,593 3,309,513
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (4,262,497) 130,925 (4,131,572)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (292,838) 196,813 (96,025)
Provisions for liabilities (65,543) (2,188) (67,731)
Total equity
Profit and loss account 7,754,847 14,716 7,769,563
Headline figures
Fixed assets 16,099,120 (323,427) 15,775,693
Current assets 8,187,213 12,593 8,199,806
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (4,262,497) 130,925 (4,131,572)
Net current assets 3,924,716 143,518 4,068,234
Total assets less current liabilities 20,023,836 (179,909) 19,843,627
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (292,838) 196,813 (96,025)
Provisions for liabilities (65,543) (2,188) (67,731)
Net assets 19,665,455 14,716 19,680,171
Total equity 19,665,455 14,716 19,680,171

The adjustments to the reported figures as at 29 August 2020 reflect the derecognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities except for finance leases that would have been capitalised under IAS 17, It also reinstates
prepayments in respect of the lease payments for those leases that were accounted for as operating leases under
IAS 17.

41



Carrs Agriculture Limited

Notes to the financial statements
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23 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Cart’s Group plc, a company
registered in England and Wales, which is the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to
consolidate these¢ financial statements. Copies of Carr’s Group plc consolidated financial statements can be
obtained from the Company Secretary at Carr’s Group plc, Old Croft, Stanwix, Carlisle, CA3 9BA.
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Carr's is an international business at the forefront
of innovation and technology.

The Group is a global leader in the supply of
value-adding products and services to customers
in the Agriculture and Engineering sectors.

Agriculture

The Agriculture division includes a livestock supplementation
business which manufactures feed blocks, boluses and other
trace element supplements from locations across the UK,
USA and Europe.

These products are supplied through an extensive distribution
network to farming customers across the globe.

In the UK the division also sells animal feed, fertiliser, animal
health products, oil, farm machinery and rural supplies from
a network of country stores and depots.

Engineering

The Engineering division designs and manufactures
specialist equipment and components, robotic goods and
remote handling equipment, and provides technical
services, from five sites in the UK, one site in Germany
and two sites in the USA,

These highly specialised products and services are supplied
predominately into the nuclear, defence, and oil and
gas markets.
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A robust
performance in a
year of significant
challenge
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Operational highlights

Robust performance in a challenging

ging
year. demonstrating the be-efits of
the Group's diveraity

COVID-1¢:

a Health, safety and well-heing of
employees remains of paramount
importance

Dynamic global business
response incluchng rigorous
health and safety regimes
adhering ta government and local
guidelines, ensunng bhusinessies
reman operational to oot
clsicmers

Close financial and operational
monitoring and controts including
contingency planning

No rmaterial financial impact
during the year overalt

Challenging H1 in UK Agnculture
largely mitigated by strong H2. with
increased deliveries and collection
model adopted to mamtam supphes
to farmers during COVID-19
ockdown

Continued growth of Supplements
ousiness internationatly. and taunch
of new FesCool and Pick Block
oroducts

Engneenng performance impacted
by project delays, restricted access
to customer sites cwing to COVID-1g.
and weakened oil price

Strong performance by NW Total in
first full year as part of the Group

New Global Robotics showrooms
opened in Japan and USA

Strong cash and net debt position

Financial highlights

£395.6m
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Dividend Per Share

1.7y
2019
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£13.8m

Reported Operating Profit

£17.0m
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16.2m
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Strategic Report
At a Glance

Carr's Group plc is an international business operating
across Agriculture and Engineering sectors which

supplies products and services to over 50 countries
around the world.

Agriculture

Locations

90 6 |1

USA | Germany

04 Carr's Group ple i -

The Agriculture division develops and manufactures a range of
innovative livestock supplementation products under highly
regarded brands which are distributed to customers globally.

The division also services UK farming and rural communities through
a network of retail stores, supplies specialist equiprment and

machinery, and distributes fuels,

Locations

Our Supplements business develops
and manufactures products from three
sites in the UK, six sites in the USA and
one site in Germany. These products are
sold througit a vast distnibution netwaork
across the JW Europe. North Amerca,
South America and Austraiacia

Our Uk Agricuture business operates
predominantly across the north of
England and soutrern Scotland from
a rerwork of retal stores. machinery
distributorships and fuel depots

Customer base

Our customer base includes leadng
livestaci farmers acioss the globe n
the dairy beef sheep, pig and equime
sectors

Brands

Cur branded product rargon e

the result of extensive research and
development and include feed blocks
sold under the Crystalyx | Horalyx |
Smartlec and Megastart brands and
bholuses sold under the Tracezuwre  and
Alloure brands

For more information.
see pages 20-23




Strategic Report

Qo ernanac

brrancrsl Siaienicnty

| |
n I n % I I n For more information,
see pages 24-27

The Engineering division designs and manufactures bespoke
equipment, and provides specialist technology and engineering
solutions, for the nuclear, cil and gas, defence and petrochemical
industries.

Its diverse range of products and services includes robotic

manipulators and remote handling equipment. life-of-plant extension
technologies, radiation protection and decontamination services,
equipment condition monitoring. specialist design and fabrication
and precision machining

Locations Product ranges

Cur Engmeering division is spread across  Ouwr range of innovative products and

eight key sites globally, five in the UK, services include TELBOT  remote

two in the USA and cne in Gerrrany handling equipment, MSIP life-of-plant

From these sites we supply products extension technology, Power Fluidics™

and services worldwide across Europe waste mobilisation systems and nuclear

North Amerca South Amenca Asia decontamination servwces We also

Africa and Australasia supply specialist design, fabricaton,
testing and precision machining services.

Customer base

Qur customers include global businesses

and government bodies acrass nuclear

energy, pharmaceutical and vtilities

mdustries worldwide

Locations

912 |1

UK USA Germany

Carr's Group plc 1
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Chairman's Statement

In difficult market conditions the
Group delivered a robust financial
performance, responding well to
the challenges arising from the

COVID-1g pandemic.

o6
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Review of the year

For the year ended 29 August 2020, In
difficult market conditions the Group
delivered a robust financial performance,
with full year profitability slightly ahead of
the Board's revised expectations Across
both divisions. the Group responded well to
managing the challenges arising from the
COVID-19 pandemic

First half trading in the Agriculture division
was characterised by both challenging
market conditions affecting farm incomes
and continued unseasonal weather in the
UK and USA. Trading in the second half
of the year recovered well, and overall
profitability exceeded the Board's revised
expectations for the year. As COVID-19
restrictions were tightened, the UK
Agriculture businesses proved adept in
maintaining supplies to farmers whilst
keeping people safe In the Supplements
business, new and innovative products
were launched, and expanded production
and research capabilities supported cur
international footprint. particularly in New
Zealand and Canada where feed block
sales continued to build

In the Engineering division, the first hatf of
the year was impacted by contract phasing.
Whilst it had been expected some of this
would recover in the second half. delays

In receiving expected orders on overseas
projects meant that this was not the case
Restrictions imposed on travel and access
to customer sites as a consequence of
COVID-19. together with the weakened oil
price. also negatively affected the division's
full year performance with profitability
below the Board's revised expectations

At the onset of COVID-1g, all sites moved
quickly to follow government guidelines
and implemented a range of safety
measures including social distancing,
increased hygiene and shift-working.
People worked from home where possible,
maintaining strong engagement with ocur
customers, suppliers and each other. using
virtual media. Contingencies were planned
across both divisions. which remain under
constant review



Financial review

Revenue for the year decreased by 20"
to £3g956m 12019 L4033 gm) Adusted
opetating profit was down 142 . to £162m
12019 £18 oMy with Agnculture contributing
£134m (201g £14 7m) and Engineering
£38m 2019 £59m) Reported operating
proftt fellby 195~ to £138m (2019 £172m)
Adjusted profits are before amorhisation of
acquired ntangible assets totalling £14m
and rectructuring and closure costs of

t 2 om offset by adjustments to contingent
consicderation totalling £0 g9m. giving a net
total adjusting items of £2 am

Achusted profit before tax was down 174 -
to £14 9ny.2019 118 omy and reported profit
before tax decreased by 234 to £12 5m
12019 £163m) Basic earnings per share
were down by 214" 10 10 3p (2016 131p)
with fully diluted earnings per share of

10 2p (2019 12 8pt and adjusted earnings
per share down 18 5% to 11gp (2019 14 6p).

Net debt at 29 August 2020, excluding
leases, was £18 gm (2019 f20gm) This
movement included £18.1m generated
from operations. £8 gm used in investing
activities and £3 3m paid Iin dividends

The recent leasing stanclard IFRS 16

has been adoptect in the year, with a
consequential reduction to opening net
assets of £1.4m as operating leases were
zrought onto the balance sheet There was
also a conseguential Impact to the ncome
statement of an additional charge to profit
pefore tax of £0 1M resulting from the new
standard

W/ ith the onset of COVID-19. the Group
mplemented a ngorous cash forecasting
process which is tested regularly aganst

a varety of scenanos Cash management
measures were also imptemented to

imit non-essential expencliture Whilst an
interm dvidend decision in Aprit 2020 was
deferred, this was cubsequently confirmed
and reinstated in July 2020 once the short-
term impact of COVID-19 on the business
brecame clearer Such measures preserved
the Group s strong cash and net debt
positions, eaving good headroom on the
Group's committed banking faciities

Dividend

The Board 15 proposzing a finat dividend
of 2 5 pence per share which together
with the interim dividend of 2.25 pence
per chare declared in July 2020 makes a

total dividend for the year of 4.75 pence
per share (2019. 4.75p) The final dividend.
it approved by Shareholders, will be pad
on 15 January 2021, tc shareholders on the
register on close of business 4 December
2020, and the shares will go ex-dividend
on 3 December 2020.

Corporate governance and

Board succession

This has been an important year for
Board succession. After joining the Board
i November 2019, | took over as Non-
Executive Chairman following the AGM
in January 2620. in October 2020 Kristen
Eshak Weldon joined the Board as an
Independent Non-Executive Director,
bringing internaticnal experience of
nvestment appraisal along with real insight
nto new technclogy applications in the
agri-food sector

In August 2020 we anncunced that Tim
Davies would be stepping down after seven
years as CEO of the Group. On behalf of
all shareholders, | am extremely grateful
to Tim for his dedication and contribution
to the business Tim's leadership style

and genuine concern for colleagues have
been most evident since March 2020 as
everyone has come to terms with different
ways of working, heightened levels of
uncertainty and increased demands on
the business. Tim will leave the Board at
the AGM in January 2021 but will remain
available to give advice and share his
knowiedge during a handover period

Hugh Pelham joins Carr's Group as CEO

in January 2021, standing for election at

the AGM Hugh has relevant experience

in developing and growing businesses

and integrating them into larger group
structures, he has worked in many markets
around the world, and he has developed
high performing management teams. | look
forward to welcoming Hugh to the Group.

As part of its long-term succession strategy,
it is planned that Alistarr Wannop will stand
down from the Beoard at the conclusion of
the AGM in January 2022, Alistair was first
appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive
Director in September 2005, Given the level
of Board succession achieved during 2019
and 2020, and recognising Alistair's deep
knowledge of the Group's activities and
understanding of agricultural industries, the
Board considers it appropriate for Alistair

tc remain appeinted for another year to
ensure continuity.

Strategic Report

Governance

Fmnancial Statements

AGM January 2021

In the light of the COVID-1g pandemic, the
AGM on 12 January 2021 willbe held ina
revised format. As sharehclders will not

be able to attend the meeting in person,
the Board will be inviting shareholders to
vote on the resclutions proposed by prexy.
and to submit any questions in advance

of the meeting We will be publishing a
broadcast on the Company's website,
reflecting on the year, providing an update
on current trading, introducing Hugh
Pelham, and answering questions raised by
shareholders, following the AGM on

12 January 2021

Our people

Carr's employs over 1,100 pecple across the
globe, all of whom have made a significant
contribution to the business this year.
particularly in the demanding situation
arising from COVID-1g. | am extremely
grateful for everyone's support, endurance
and adaptability.

Outtook

The Group remains committed to building
value by focusing on markets with growth
potential, diversifying its international
footprint and differentiation through
innovation and technology.

The global economy has been dominated
by COVID-1g. creating uncertainty and
making forecasts difficult. Nevertheless. the
Group 1s well positioned as the agriculture
sector remains crucial in supplying raw
matenals and ingredients to the food
chain, and our engineering businesses are
predominantly involved in government
funded contracts in the nuclear sector.
Management will continue to focus on
optimising all the businesses in the Group.

Trading in the new financial year has
started in line with the Board's expectations
Whilst uncertainties remain in the broader
economic environment, the Board is
confident about the prospects of our
business in the medium term.

Peter Page
Chairman
23 November 2020

Carr's Group ple  Annual Report and Accounts 2020 o7
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Market Qverview

Qur vision is to be recognised as a truly international
business at the forefront of technology and innovation

in our chosen markets.

Agriculture

Global agriculture

Population is the key determunant
of total foud use Income, relative
prices and consumer Ufestyles,
meanwhile. determine a perzons
desired food basket

On accou nt of an exoected 110
expansion in the global poptlation
over the next ten yoars, a5 welias
notable gaing in per copita income
inall regions total consumption of
food commodities is expected to
rise by 157

Our key agriculturai markets

are likely to continue o expana
over aten-year perspective w.th
enhanced productmty being a key
driver for farmers

What this
means for
Carr’s

Growth will increasingly vary
regionally across the globe Gur
global footpr.nt puts us i a strong
position Lo respond to changes in
levels of demand

2%

Predicted increase in consumption
of food commodities over the next

ten years

Livestock sector

Global livestock production is
expected to expand by 144 over the
next ten years, supported by low
feed prices and stable

product prices

Our primary market negments

of global dairy, beef and sheep
pprroduction are expected to reman
N growth over the corming years

4%

Expected growth in global
tivestock preduction over the
next decade

UK policy and
environmental challenge

In the UK, Brexit and the passing
of a rew Agrniculture Billwill herald
the biggest shake-up in agriculture
seen for a generation or more

Environmental concems will
increasing.y mmpact fond
consumpiion and farmming proctices,
copecialy in developed countnes
Froduction projections, based
upon current policies and avalaole
technologies sugoest a growth in
direct greenhouse gas emissions
of B0 the next ten years, w th
livectock accounting for 8o of
this increase

Tihe UK market is heaaing inte
perod of signficant change leading
to changimg farmer demand and
opportunities to which we can
recpond pos tiveiy.

Respending to chimate change

is alzo lkey to become an
increasingly important isscue at

farm level

%

Estimated growth in greenhcuse
gas emissions from global
agriculture in the next decade




Engineering

Market
trend

What this
means for
Carr’'s

Civil nuclear

The requirement for nuclear
decommissioning and legacy waste
clean-up operations continues to
grow globally.

N coming decades it is expected
that a significant number of nuclear
reactors will be retired from use
ylobauy which together with a
growth in subsidised renewatle
technologies. is expected to
increase demand for products and
services in the decommissioning
market

Continued growlh in these Fighly
regulated markets will ncreaze
dermand for robotics products.
ceconmmissioning technologies
and the manufacture of waste
transportation containment
packages

Lifetine extensiohs at nuclear
facilities, and the denand

for enhanced pover plant

satety, require safe and proven
technologies which presents
opportunity for our sciutions such
as MSIP - and Dynamic Natural
Convection.

2%

Annual global growth spend in
nuclear decommissioning

Defence

Investment continues in the UK
defence sector with a committed
spend of £316bn for the Dreadnought
orogramme, the bulding of fou
nuclear submarines at Barrow
-in-Flrness.

The Submarine Dismantling Project
15 expected o contimue o tre
20408 costing at least £10.4bn

to decommission the redundant
submaring fieet of 2/ boats.

Continued long-term investment
by the U4 Government in detence
provides signiticant future
opportunities to utilise technologies
across the Group Carr's has a track
record of deliverng products and
services nto this highly regulated
ard growing market. and is well
placed to further deveiop its
chvisionai capabilities to support
cusiomers:n the sector

31bn

Value of UK Dreadnought nuclear
submarines programme

Strategic Report
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Oiland gas

Ol prices started 2020 strong at

o 5617k in January bt drooped

to a price of ¢ S40/b as a
consequence of recuced demancd
attributabie to the COVID-19
pandemic. Itis estinsated by the US
Energy Information Administration
that the ol price will average at

¢ S50/bin zoz21

in the short term. those of our

UK Sorvice & Marufactunmg
businesses which cerve ol and gos
markets are focus ng on overseas
opportunities n the mediuni-term
those businesses continue to
dveraify the markels they serve

to further reduce reliance on the
all and gas sector.

CGland gas companies are
investing in their green agenda
with opportunities arismg n
decomimissoning to clean up thei
oli and gas environmenta: footprint

$40/b

The current il price, to which the
market is having to adjust

Carr's Group plc




Strategic Report

Our Business Model

Diversified, innovative,

How we create value

Our Supplements business launched two now
products during the year: FesCool ™ in the USA
and Pick Block in Europe

Research and product development remain
at the core of our business which enables
us to reman at the forefront of innovation in
our markets

Investment
In iInnovation
& technology

We continue to grow by investing in our
people and assets, and through

carefully considered acquisitions which
align with our strategy. We apply this
approach across both our Agriculture
and Engineering divisions, centred
around a strong focus on innovation
and technology.

We also invested during the year in enhancing
manufacturing plants in ocur US Supplements
business to maximise cfficiencies and ensure
that they continue to consistently produce the
best quality products.

o
-
=
-
0
. -
(@)
<

ineering

Innovation and technology During the year our Global Robotics business
During the year we continusd to develop opened showrcoms in the USA and Japan to

new prodLets across both divisions further develop oppertunities internationally
We also made signdicontinvestment in

our people, and in process efticiencies, )
to ensure that we can deliver the best We also invested £1.3m in state-of-the-art

lesvels of service and add the moct value machinery at our UK Service & Manufacturing
to our customers globally site in Carliste. bringing large-scale machining
capabililies in-house and enhancing the range

of services we offer to customers,

Eng
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sustainable

Our resources Who we create value for

Talented We place great walue . aur glabal Employees 823
people workforee and are cornmitted to WG continac to crnanc 0,17 enisloyee
continuolrn development People are traning ang opment offering and Training days
cnticai to our cuccesns ang e Ltrive enhance our acernest nitlative . delivered inthe
to provide ironmentsin whicn o year
employeer can reach their potential

Global An A Group we have a diverce customer

distribution  ?a%e spanning over 50 countries Customers 1 7 UUU
worldwide Our strategy is to taiget ar S Lecest Gan be measos o Dy R e ’

network markets with the potential for growth on of custon scontinue la athiact anciretain. - Number of

an international scale through sar leacing piocuct ranges ara direct

creellont norvea levels UK Agriculture

s y o e ; T customers
Deep We have o atrong focus on mnovation

knowledge ard techrolagy Qo busines e puo;
awealth of epecialist knowledge and we

continue to invest in the development of ihvestors 4 7 5p

new procucis and solutions which can Cur stratec | -

add value to our customer ane suntanable growtn Over the Last five Dividend per

2 have been able to increas the share

st pay Lo mwastors by almost

Well We continue to invest m our butinesses

invested to enswre that they remain best placed to
deliver our strategic objectiven

Partners 7

. , - Az o Group wo onjoy clono relabonshing

Long-term, .\fv./e‘ ﬁﬁe -promi t[i !H\:‘E.Ulr“‘t I"()H'L‘:"'tj"%l”“g #ith -an!';g of h:J\A'.tyz'-(l teqic Lr*‘r%-u',. Numkber of joint

trusted L”,K‘ tmﬁ,le.(l <eL1u{n " ;:OU,HUH acrons the LK USA ana Lo opo venture and

relationships ll,.-)()n the c;u.m\j O gu .f)‘ el wlg! U.Ll‘l associale
crganisatonal culture, and o el of businesses

cuLtomer service

Market- Qur businesses have market leading Communities £ 8 ‘l k
leading brancls and products w h.\clj are Scroms e Croun we belave in supnortig
recognived internationaily including chartable mtiatives and the comnsenitices, in-- Charitable
Cryata CAmmoMax Tracesure | whicn we operate donations in the
Starttic” and FesCool n Agrniculture year
ard TELEQT - MSI2 anc Powen Fuadicn™
in Engineering

Culture and As a Group we have a clear ot of Environment 43%
values values and are conunitted to rrvesting We believe in elhical buseos sy arhicen
in and engaging with our employes:s inelucing tng steps to e s our Reductionin
and other kehaldars to ensare tnat crvitanmental impact COz emissions
cur businesses remain ethicacly and . aver the last
custainably managed three years

Carr's Group plc




Strategic Report
Our Strategy

Strategic Objectives

Build business value by
focusing on markets
with growth potential

Grow and diversify
our international
footprint

2020 achievements

During the year, our Agriculture division enhanced its strong position
in global supplementation, through the development and launch

of new product ranges which increase animal performance and

add value to our farming customers Sales volumes across cur
Supplements business increased 1 2% in the year despite market
challenges which places the division well for future growth,

In early FY20, we completed the integration of NW Total into our
broader Engineering division NW Total has brought significant
opportunity to the Group. particularly in nuclear defence markets
where the business continues to further strengthen its order book.
We also continue to develop innovative solutions for the nuclear
decommissioning sector which represents a considerable long-term
opportunity for the Group.

Our Supplements business has seen international growth
in the year. particularly into Canada where we have made
progress through local distribution channels and in New
Zealand where year-on-year feed block sales have
increased by 40% Our German joint venture business has
also seen increased exports across Europe including inte
Russia, Spain, ltaly and Turkey.

We continue to see significant international sales for

our Engineering business including increased revenues
generated from the USA, and the opening of showrcoms
in the USA and Japan for our Global Robotics business. Our
Global Technical Services business continues to develop
its strong order book, particularly following its success

in securing a $6m MSIP* contract to be delivered into
Switzerland

Future priorities

Agriculture

In Agriculture, we will continue to grow sales volumes across our
Supplements business in the UK, Irish, European and New Zeatand
dairy sectors, and to enhance our market share across beef

sectors in the USA and Canada We will also look to build upen our
presence in related sectors including equine in the UK and USA and
poultry across Europe.

Engineering

Qur Engineering division continues (o concentrate on global nuclear
markets, with a particular focus by our Global Rebotics business on
opportuntties in the USA, Europe and Japan. The 2019 acquisition of
NW Total has provided us with a strong foothold into the UK nuclear
defence market where significant opportunities exist.

Agriculture

We will continue to develop our international presence in
Agriculture across Eurcpe, the USA, Canada, and Australasia
through strategic partnerships and enhanced business
development initiatives focusing on building relationships
and maintaining excellent levels of customer service

Engineering

In Engineering we will continue to focus on global
opportunities, particularly across the USA, Eurcpe and Asia.
Our divisional structure aligns the products and services we
offer with customers in our chosen markets and enhances
our international offering.

Carr's Group ple  Annval Report oed Accounl, 2000
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Governance

Financial Statements

Differentiate ourselves
through innovation
and technology

Lead in our
chosen markets

Following research trials undertaken with Kansas State
University, our US Supplements business launched FesCool*
N 2020, which enhances the performance of grazing cattle
(see page 23). Qur German joint venture Supplements
business also launched its Pick Block product this year, which
promotes improved animal welfare and poultry performance.
We also made progress in automating bolus manufacture

at Animax, which will help drive future efficiencies and even
higher preduct quality.

In the year, our Engineering division developed a new client
relationship management system which aligns our businesses
with customers and markets and enables improved business
development globally.

Qur innovative approach Lo staying open safely and using
technology during the COVID-19 pandemic enabled

our UK Agriculture busingss to maintain leading levels

of service, ensuring that our farming customers could
keep producing. In the USA we have invested this year

In production systems, driving business efficiencies and
ensuring that we continue to produce the best products.

During 2020, we invested in new manufacturing
technologies across our UK Manufacturning businesses,
adding additicnal machining capabilities and ensuring that
our processes remain state-of-the-art

Product development

Key to the Group's future is our engoing investment 1n the
development of intellectual property and product ranges,
which is achieved through our culture of collaberation and the
sharing of know-how across each of our divisions

Acquisitions

We also remain alert to suitable acquisition opportunities,
where businesses can be integrated within the Group to
achieve synergies and enhance the range of products and
solutions offered to our global customer base.

Service levels

We will continue to invest in our people and in the
delivery of our offering. Our collaborative approach and
organisational culture willensure that we continue to offer
leading levels of service to our customer base globally.

Adding value

We also strive to ensure that our manufacturing processes
are optimised and efficient, enakling us to add the most
vatue to our customers.

Carr's Group ple  Annual Report and Accounts 2020 13



Strategic Report

Chief Executive's Review

Despite challenging trading conditions
early in the year together with the onset
of COVID-19, a robust performance in
the second half resulted in a full year
performance which exceeded the
Board's revised expectations.

14 Carr's Group ple  Annual Repan b and Aceolnts 2620

Introduction

As outlined m our trading update on

12 March 2020, trading conditions across
both divisions during the first half of the
year were chatlenging and. unrelated to
COVID-19. led to a reduction in the Board's
performance expectations for the full year

I am pleased to report, nowever that
despite these challenges. and the
significant measures adopted across the
Group in order to manage the effects of
the pandemic. a very robust performance
in the second half resulted in a full year
performance which exceeded those
revised expectations

While cash preservation has remained

a key pricrity. we have been able to
continue to invest In key areas to ensure
that the Group remains well placed for the
future Buiing the year. we strengthened
aur presence in growth markets across
the world, whilst driving innovation and
technological advances to maintan our
strong positicn in our established markets

Agriculture

As previously reported, trading in our
Agriculture division in the first half was
slower than the prior year, largely driven
by atypical weather patterns and growing
conditions from the previous summer
which reduced demand for key products.
Improved trading during the second half.
however, resuited in a robust outturn for
the full year

During the year, revenue was down 4.17% to
£342 6m (2019, £3574M) Adjusted operating
profit was down 8 5% to £134m (2019

£14 7m). whilst reported operating profit was
down 4 8% to £134m (2019 £14.1m)



Engineering

The Engineering division performed
resiliently despite cignificant challenges
First half tradiing was slow due to contract
phasing and delays in receiving key robotics
orders This chd not improve in the second
half. ac had been expected. mainly due to
temporary disruption to nuclear and defence
projects due to COVID-19 restrichons, which
affected travel and access to customer sites
In addition, the sharp decline in the ol price
led to customers deferring mvestments

in the ail and gas sector Whilst delays to
projects had a negative impact on divisicnat
performance. the busmess was abie to
strengthen its customer relationships

by working flexibly to accommodate
changing needs

Dunng the year revenue was up 14.0"7

to £530M (2019 146 5rmy NW Total
acquired towards the end of the prior year,
contributed £117m (2019 £1gm) Adjusted
operating profit was down 35867 to £38m
{2019 L gn and reported operating profit
was down 772 . to F14m {2019 £60m)

Qutlook

Agriculture

The Group continues to remain confident
in the medium-term prospects of the
Agriculture division

Walst short-term uncertainty relating to
Brexit continues. our resihent performance
i UK Agnculture dunng the pandemic
illustrates the strength of our business
and its ability to overcome future
challenges That adaptability. combined
with operational efficiencies and enhanced
customer focus. places the business well
for future growth Since the year-end,

we have also significantly expanded the
geographic coverage of our machinery
franchise across southern Scotland with

a more focused product range. which
provides an opportunity to grow sales over
the medium term

Internationally, our Supplements business
continues to enhance its presence

in territories with significant growth
opportunity, particularly across Europe,
the USA Canada, and New Zealand We
also remain focused upon INcreasing our
presence in new markets including the
UK dairy sector We continue to build
growth through strategic partnerships and
sustained research and development. and
remain conficlent in the division's medium
term outlook

Engineering

The Group remains confident in the
medium-term prospects of the Engineering
division.

Whilst parts of the division which serve

cit and gas markets have been impacted
in the shert-term, owing to a reducticn

N customer investment attributable to

the low oil price, there remain significant
opportunities across nuclear and defence
markets. The division also continues to
develop technologies, in conjunction with
its strategic partners, to provide innovative
solutions to customer challenges in nuclear
markets.

Qur improved divisional structure provides
a comprehensive offering, able to compete
on a larger scale than before Such changes
provide an uplift in the volume of contracts
we can tender for and leave the division
well placed for future growth

<
Tim Davies

Chief Executive Officer
23 November 2020
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Keeping farmers farming
during COVID-19

Throughout the pandemic our UK
Agriculture business has stepped up te
keep farmers farming.

We've stayed safe, but we've stayed
open. We've gone the extra mile.
keeping up our deliveries of feeds,
fuels and essential supplies to our
customers acress rural communities
And, most importantly, we've kept in
touch, particularly with those who are
vulnerable or self-isolating

Gur people have worked around the
clock, turming our network of Country
Stores inte collection and distribution
centres for our core ranges of
agricultural products. We implemented
an order-and-collect policy. alengside a
rigorous health and safety regime, at all
times following government guidelines
and social distancing rules.

We are very proud of cur colleagues,
who keep working hard and staying safe
{0 ensure that farmers can continue to
play their vital part in feeding the nation,

www.carrs-billington.com
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Strategic Report

Key Performance Indicators

Our performance

Our strategy is to be
recognised as an
international business at
the forefront of innovation
and technology in our (o)
chosen markets. -— 4 . 5 /o

201G: -1.8%

Underlying sales
growth/decline

Financial KPIs

In addition to the financial

highlights shown on page 3,

we monitor our growth and

health as a business, and Free cash flow
our performance against

strategy, using the key

performance indicators

noted opposite. £ 1 2 . 7 m

2019: £8.9m

Number of training
days delivered

823

2019: 722

Non-financial KPlIs

16 Carr's Group ple 7170 Foos




Gross margin

13.2%

2019: 13.4%

Return on
net assets

11.1%

2019: 13.8%

Injury incident
frequency rate

216

2019: 522

e = e bon s

11.1%

13.8%

13.7%

Adjusted Group
operating margin

4.1%

2019: 4.7%

Ratio of net debt
to EBITDA

0.91

2019: 0.99*

ot aduston b el B

CO, intensity metric

29.

2019 29.2

Carr's Group ple
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Strategic Report

Financial Review

Current and future development and performance

The key features of the year have been challenging markets in the UK and USA
for our Agriculture businesses and difficulties associated with COVID-1g, particularly
in Engineering.

18
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Revenue

Reported revenues from continuing
operations were £395.6m. 2.0% behind last
year (2019: £403.9m).

Alternative performance measures
This Financial Review and other parts of the
Strategic Report include both statutory and
alternative performance measures (APMs)
The principal APMs measure profitability
excluding items regarded by the Directors
as adjusting items (note 5). These APMs,
generally referred to as ‘adjusted’
measures, are used in the management
and measurement of business
performance on a day-to-day basis and are
also used in assessing performance under
the Group's incentive plans. A glossary and
reconciliation of APMs is included towards
the end of the report and accounts on
pages 143 to 144,

Operating profit

Adjusted Group operating profit of
£18.2m is down 14.2% on last year (2019:
£18.9m). As a percentage of revenues,

the Group's adjusted operating margin 15
4.1% compared to 4 7% in 2013, Reported
operating profit was £13.8m (201g: £172m)
Our trading performance is covered in
detail in the Chief Executive's Review on
pages 14 to 15 and in the Divisional Reviews
on pages 20 to 23 and 24 to 27.

Adjusted cperating profits per division and
as a percentage of divisional revenues are
as follows:

3.9%

Agriculture adjusted operating margin

1.2%

Engineering adjusted operating margin



Adjusted” Operating Profit 2020

2020 2020 2019 2019
Adjusted Operating Protit £'Q00 Y% £000 -
Agriculture 14,651 44
Enginesring 5917 12.7
Central (1,638)
Total 18,930

“Segmental reported profit figures can be found 1 note 2 to the financiat staterments

The Group's share of the adjusted post-tax result in its associate
and joint ventures was £2.6m (2o01g: £2.7m).

Adjusting items

The Group incurred £2.4m (201g. £1.7m) In respect of adjusting
items in the year. This year's charge included amortisation of
acquired intangibles of £14m. restructuring and impairment
charges of £1.9m. offset by a credit of £0.9m in relation to
contingent consideration on historic acquisitions (further details are
set out in note 5).

Finance costs

Net finance costs of £1.3m were 51 6% higher than in the previous
year, principally related to the increased interest payable on leases
following adoption of IFRS 16. Interest cover was 10 3 times based
on reported profit (121 times an an adjusted profit basisi compared
to 19,4 times in 201G.

Profit before tax

Adjusted profit before tax at £14 9m was 17 4% lower than in the
previous year (2019: £18 om} Reported profit before taxation was
£12 5m {2019 £16 3mM)

Taxation

The Group's effective tax charge on profit from activities after net
finance costs and excluding results from the associate and joint
ventures. which are recorded after tax, was 16 0% (2019: 19.3%), A
reconciliation of the actual total tax charge to the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 1% is given in note 8 to the financial
statements. The year benefitted from R&D related tax credits in
the USA

Earnings per share

The profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
amounted to £9.5m (2013: £12 om). and basic earnings per share
was 10.3p (2019: 13.1p). a decrease of 21 4%

Adjusted earnings per share of 11.gp (2019: 14.6p} is calculated by
dividing the adjusted profit atinibutable to equity holders for the
year by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year The decrease of 18.5% reflects the reduction in trading
petformance partly offset by the lower effective tax rate in 2020.

Strategic Report
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Cash flow and net debt

a free cash flow of £12.7m was generated in the year, representing
an increase of 421% on £8.gm in the previous year. This was driven
by improved cash flow from operating activities, which increased
from £12.6m to £18.1m.

Headroom against existing facilities was £35.1m at the year end.
The Group's man banking facilities were renewed in November
2018 for a five-year peried together with its invoice discounting
facility which was renewed for a three-year period in August 2020

2020 2019
Cash flow and net debt £m im
Cash flow from operating activities 181 12.6
Net debt (excluding leases) 189 209

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The Group has adopted (FRS 16 'Leases’ during the year,
recognising £11.5m of right-of-use assels previously treated as
operating leases together with £4.4m of existing assets held under
finance lease arrangements. Incremental lease liabilities of £12.7m
have also been recognised al the transition date of 1 September
2019. The impact on the income statement was modest, with a
reduction in lease cests of £2 1m being offset by depreciation of
£1.8m and interest of £0.4m to leave a net charge of £0.1m to profit
before tax. Further details of the impact of IFRS 16 are given in the
Principal Accounting Policies and note 37.

Pensions

The Group operates its current pension arrangements on a
defined benefit and defined contribution basis The defined
benefit scheme is closed to new members and closed to future
accrual The scheme currently has 82 deferred members and 224
current pensioners.

The valuation on an IAS 1g accounting basis showed a surplus
before the related deferred tax liability in the scheme at 29
August 2020 of £8.0m (2019 £7.8m). This is after an actuarial gain
of £0.1m (2019: loss of £1.8m) which has been recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

N AT
Neil Austin

Chief Financial Officer
23 November 2020
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Strategic Report

Divisional Review: Overview
Agriculture

The Group's Agriculture division
manufactures and supplies feed
blocks and supplementation
products for livestock, distributes
animal feeds and farm
machinery, and runs a UK
network of rural stores, providing
a one-stop shop for the farming
community.

Our Agriculture division
comprises of two
primary sub-divisions:

UK Agriculture

We have a significant presence of country stores
across northern England and southern Scotland
from which we serve the needs of cur core farming
customer base providing a range of retail and animal
health products.

Our UK Agriculture business also supplies a broad
range of compound and blended feeds for livestock
under a number of well-respected brands.

From a number of our retail sites we specialise in
the supply of farming machinery in the UK including
all-terrain vehicles. tractors and combine harvesters
which we distribute from seven sites,

The business also supplies fuels across the region
from eight depots.

£280.7m

Revenues in 2020

Agriculture

Our brands Our geographic footprint
CRYSTALYX® UK

HORSLYX® Europe

TRACESURE® USA

ALLSURE® Canada

AMINOMAX® New Zealand

SMARTLIC®

MEGALIC®

FLAXLIC®

FESCOOL®

FEED IN A DRUM®
CARR'S BILLINGTON
WORKWARE
HENDON®
SIMARGHU®

20 Carr's Group ple  Annual Repatt and Scoounts 2020



Supplements

We manufacture and sunply a broad range

of innovative animat nutritional supplements
under well-respected brands These include
patent-protected feed blocks and boluses
which effectively release lrace elements into
livestock consistently and over periods of up
to six months. These products help to maintain
animal health and improve performance

Our feed blocks are manufactured at a variety
of wholly owned and joint venture facilities
located across the UK, Germany and the

USA We manufacture boluses from a wholly
owned facility in the UK

These products are supplied through a large
distribution network across the UK, Europe,
Middle Fast. New Zealand and North America.

£61.9m

Revenues in 2020

Strategic Report
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Agriculture
key figures

£342.6m

Revenues

£13.4m

Adjusted Operating Profit

17,000

UK farming customers

134

Employees globally

Carr's Group plc ¢
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Divisional Review: The Year in Review

Agriculture

Overview

As previously reported, trading in our
Agriculture division in the first half was
slower than the prior year, largely driven
by atypical weather patterns and growing
conditions from the previous surmmer
which reduced demand for key products.
Improved trading during the second half,
however. resulted in a robust outturn for
the full year.

Duning the year, revenue was down 4 1% to
£342.8m (201g: £357.4m) Adjusted cperating
profit was down 8.5% to £134m (2019
£14.7m). whilst reported operating profit
was down 4.8% to £13.4m (2019 F14.1m).

During the period. following the
appointment of a new Managing Director
in the UK Agriculture business, the
management team was strengthened
through a further four senior appointments
to help cptimise efficiencies and drive
strategic growth, whilst maintaining an
absolute focus on serving our customers.
We atso appointed a new Commercial
Director in our Supplements business.

Suppliements

Total global feed block sales volumes were
up 12% year-on-year. Sales volumes were
slightly ahead of the Board's expectations
as a direct result of increased demand and
growth in target markets during the second
half. Despite everali volume increases,
however. increases in raw materal prices
were not wholly mitigated through selling
price increases which led to lower margins.
particularly in the UK

UK feed block volumes were up

5.2% compared to the prior year This
performance was driven by improved
livestock prices in the second half, which
ncreased farmers' willingness to invest In
supplementation

Following a weaker first half, US feed block
sales subsequently recovered towards

the end of the financial year, with volumes
up 05% in the period overall Whilst cattle
prices were suppressed during the majority
of the period. prices recovered towards

the end.

During the year. we successfully launched
our new FesCool# feed block in the

USA following extensive research trials
undertaken in conjunction with Kansas
State University. FesCool® enhances

the performance of grazing cattle in

warm climates by reducing the impact of
fescue toxicity and enhances cur range of
innovative supplements that add real value
to livestock farmers

In 2020, we atso invested In and

enhanced our production systems in the
USA spending £2.1m In improving our
manufacturing facilities at two of our sites
and in the creation of a research facility,
This investment will help drive efficiencies
and provide us with the opportunity to
develep and test new product ranges,
ingredients, and manufacturing techniques

We continue to make progress in
developing sales of feed blocks inte
Canada. As North America moved into
stricter national travel restrictions, we
benefited from having a sales team on

£21m

Invested in US manufacturing facilities
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the ground locally. The Canadian market
represents a significant potential market
for sales into beef and eqguine sectors, and
can be supplied out of the Group's existing
facility in Belle Fourche, South Dakota.

New Zealand feed block sales were up 40%
in the pericd where we continued to make
progress in raising customer awareness
and building relationships with further
distributicn partners. The Group continues
to consider the New Zeatand market as
offering strong potential for future growth.

In Germany, our joint venture business.
Crystalyx Products GmbH, saw a 41%
decrease in feed block sales compared to
the prior year. Dunng the year, the business
launched its new Pick Block preduct,
manufactured out of its plant in Oldenburg,
Germany. and sales are expected to build.
Pick Block 1s designed to improve poultry
welfare standards through environmental
enrichment. encouraging birds to
demonstrate a wider range of natural
behaviours.

Animax. the Group's manufacturer

of livestock bolus supplements, had

a challenging year owing to market
pressures coupled with milder weather
which reduced customer demand, During
the yeatr. the business appeointed a new
Cemmercial Director and increased focus
on international growth opportunities. The
Group continues to make progress on its
manufacturing autcmation project, which is
expected to help drive future efficiencres,
new product ranges and even higher
preduct quality

UK Agriculture

Total volumes in our compound feed
business declined by 6.9% during the

year. This was largely driven by the warm
summer in 2019 and subseguent mild
winter which led to high stocks of goed
forage and reduced farmer demand for
bought-in feeds during the first half Such
reduction in demand gave rise to increased
competition which impacted margins
during the period. During the second half,
the initial closure of the food service sector
impacted farmer incomes; however, the
strong retall sales subsequently seen led to
a significant pick-up in demand for certain
meat and dairy products which largely
offset the effect of this.



The Group's fuel distribution business saw
sates volumes Increase 2.9% on the priar
year. This was dnven by colder weather
during March 2026 and customers stocking
up on heating ol in the early stages of the
pandemic when commodity prices were
low, as well as increased demand from
farmers due to a busy spring period on
farms generally

Machinery sales were particularly strong

in the year, up 19.2% overall and achieving
record sales of £45 5m. New machinery
sales were up 17% on the previous year
The performance was driven by improved
farmer confidence and government loan
schemes supperting farming investments,
together with pent-up demand following

a penod of subdued activity prior to

the original Brexit date. Growth 1n the
machinery business, which outperformed
the market significantly, 1s alsc attributable
to the development of cur relationship with
a key supplier.

The Group's retall outlets performed
resiliently, with lke-for-like sales up 1.6%
and overall sales up 06% dunng the period.
During the pandemic, extensive measures
were taken to ensure that our network of
country stores could continue to service
our core farming customers, who remain
critical to the UK's food supply chain

These innovative measures included the
successful roll-out of a pre-order, collection
and delivery service across all branches,

During the year we alse progressed our
rationalisaticn and efficiency programme in
UK Agriculture. Cur engeing review of retail
store effectiveness resulted in the closyre
of four sites as we focus our offering at
strategic locations and enhancing our
delivery and collection models. During the
pandemic. the early stages of lockdown
gave us the ability to test new ways of
working, which has provided valuable
strategic insight for the future and helped
develop our strategy for managing a
second wave
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found across 40 million acres of gr
pastures in the USA and consumed by
nearly 17 million beef cattle.

Whilst a highly cost-effective source of
nutrition, feeding on tall fescue comes
with a common issue: fescue toxicity.

Cattle consuming infected tall fescue are
susceptible to overheating caused by the
constriction of blood vessels. Numerous symptoms
are displayed. and cattle performance is affected.

During the year, and following thorough research and
trials undertaken in conjunction with Kansas State
University, our US Supplements business, Animal
Feed Supplement, Inc., launched FesCool*. a new
low moisture feed block which improves temperature
regulation in cattle through the increased dilation of
blood vessels.

In controlled university trials, animals supplemented
with FesCool* exhibited better core temperature
regulation and increased forage intake. resultingin
significantly improved performance.

FesCool" represents another significant
development in cattie supplementation and
enhances our range of innovative products which
bring value to our farming customers.

https://smartlic.com/products/fescool/

Carr's Group plc
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Divisional Review: Qverview
Engineering

The Group's Engineering division
designs and manufactures
specialist precision components,
bespoke equipment, robotic goods
and remote handling equipment,
and provides technical services,
from five sites in the UK, one site in
Germany and two sites in the USA.

These specialised products and services

are supplied to customers globally including
government bodies and some of the world's
largest companies and nuclear site operators.

Engineering

our Engineering division comprises of three sub-divisions:

Our global markets

Our businesses
WALISCHMILLER ENGINEERING
NUVISION ENGINEERING
NW TGTAL

BENDALLS ENGINEERING
CHIRTON ENGINEERING

We supply into highly
regulated markets
including:

- Nuclear decommissioning
- Nuclear power generation

CARRSMSM -Defence '
HINDSEBENDALLS —Pi_'larmaceutlcals
-Oiland gas
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UK Service and Manufacturing

\We operate four facilities across the north of
England which design. manufacture and service
complex and bespoke equipment.

These facilities specialise in equipment {o be
supplied into regulated markets including electro-
mechanical machinery, process equipment
packages, pressure vessels and special purpose
fabrications. We also supply a range of on-site
technical services through teams of highly qualified
personnel.

Our businesses pride themselves on their reputation
for quality and service excellence which has led

to the establishment of longstanding and trusted
customer relationships.

£29.4m

Revenues in 2020



Global Robotics

Our Global Robotics business
camprises one facility in the UK,

one in Germany and one in the USA
These businesses collectively design,
manufacture and supply a broad
range of complex robctic and remote
handling equipment.

These highly innavative products are
delivered predominantly into nuclear
markets and are designed to withstand
radicactive and other challenging
environments

Through sustained investment in
research and development we ensure
that our Global Robotics business
remains at the forefront of remote
handting technology and that our
products centinue to provide innovative
solutions for cur globat customer base

AR

Revenues in 2020

Global Technical Services

From our two sites in the USA, we offer

a range of engineering applications and
technical services which provide innovative
solutions across gtobal nuclear industrics.

These services include ouwr patent
protected Mechanical Stress

Improvement Process (MSIP ), Power
Fluidics™ technology and a range of
decontamination services which are
supplied to utilities, OEMs and government
contractors worldwide.

Our Global Technical Services business
focuses heavily on research and
development. and has been engaged
by governments to develop solutions to
compiex problems affecting the nuclear
industry

£8.8m

Revenuesin 2020

Carr's Group plc
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Engineering
key figures

£53.0m

Revenues

£3.8m

Adjusted operating profit

369

Employees globally
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Divisional Review: The Year in Review

Engineering

Overview

The Engineering division performed
resiliently despite significant challenges
First half trading was slow due to contract
phasing and delays in receving key
robctics orders. This did not improve In

the second half, as had been expected,
mainly due to temporary disrugtion to
nuclear and defence projects due to
COVID-19 restrictions. which affected
travel and access to customer sites. In
addition, the sharp dectine in the ol pnice
led to customers deferring investments

in the oiland gas secter. Whilst delays to
projects had a negative impact on divisional
performance, the business was able {o
strengthen its customer relationships by
working flexibly to accommodate changing
needs

Curing the year, revenue was up 14 0%

1o £53.0mM (2019 £46 5. NV Total,
acquired towards the end of the prior year,
contributed £11.7m (2019 £2.9m). Adjusted
operating profit was down 356% to £3.8m
{2019’ £5.9m) and reported operating profit
was down 77 2% to £14m {2019: £6.0m),

26 Carr's Group plc

UK Service and Manufacturing

Our UK Service and Manufacturing
business delivered a solid performance
during the first half. The second half,
however, was heavily impacted by the
decline in the oil price and significantly
reduced investment in the oil and gas
sector, which led to delays on one major
project. In the year, total revenues were
£20.4m {201g. £23.0m), including N'W Total
revenues of £11.7m (2019: £1.9m).

NW Total had a strong performance in its
first full year as part of the Group Whilst
COVID-19 restrictions were imposed
temporarily on one customer site, this had a
limited impact on the business overall and
the risk of further impact or delay to that
project is reduced by on-site controls now
in place. The crder book for the business
remains very strong and we remain

very encouraged by the cpportunities.
particularly in the defence sector, that NW
Total brings te the division.

During the year. the Group alsc invested
£1.3m in state-of-the-art machinery at

its site in Carlisle, bringing large-scale
machining capabilities and enhancing the
range of customer services available within
the division.

Global Robotics

The Group's Global Robotics business
had a challenging year. This was drnven
by a weaker order book, resulting from
centract phasing and delays to projects

in Japan. together with export restrictions
which continue to affect China. These
challenges were exaceriated by delays
and travel restrictions imposed as a result
of CCVID-19. Revenues for the year totalled
£14.8m (201g: £16.5m).

While the business experienced lower
levels of activity during the year, the order
book was strengthened significantly.

We also remain optimistic about
oppertunities in Japan, where many of the
country's nuclear facilities continue to be
decommissioned. In the year. we opened

a showroom for our products in Japan
which will help develop opportunities in the
region

Our Global Robotics business continues

te develop its position in the USA, Goced
progress centinues to be made on the
significant $8.5m contract previously
anncunced, and during the year we opened
a robetics showroom at our facility in
Mooresville, North Carolina, which will help
demonstrate the efficacy of our products to
customers in North Ametrica.

£11.7m

Full year revenue contribution from NW Total

Annual Keport and Acccunt 2020



GlobalTechnical Services

The Group's Global Technical Services
business performed in line with
expectations, generating revenues of
£88m {2010 £7.0M).

The phasing cof several long-term
Mechanical Stress improvement Process
(MSIPR:) projects enhanced performance
in the second half of the year, which will
continue throughout the current year.
During the period. the business was
awarded ancther $6m MSIP®: contract to
be delivered through to 2022,

The development of our passive cooling
technology continues to progress.
following the award of funding from the
US Department of Energy in 2019 Itis
anticipated that an application for a second
tranche of funding will be made dunng
2021 This technology has the potential to
be retrofitted on existing nuclear power
plants to improve safety.

Our Global Technical Services business,
NuVision Engineering, Inc.. is the world

leader in the use of Power Fluidics
stems for nuclear applications.

These waste management systems use changes
in air pressure to mobilise radicactive sludges.
slurries. and liquids with no moving parts coming
into contact with contaminated substances.

Sinceits first installation at Cak Ridge National
Laboratory in 1996, NuVision has completed

hundreds of Power Fluidics™ instaliations globally,

with more than 50 projects completed for the US
Department of Energy. To date, there have been
no reported instances of system failure. erosion or
mechanical or corrosion damage.

Power Fluidics™ is a key competence of our
Global Technical Services business and provides a
reliable and highly effective means of mixing,
sampling. and pumping of radioactive waste in a
manner which is safe and eliminates facility
downtime.

https://nuvisionengineering.com./

Strategic Report
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Risk Management

Our success as a Group depends upon our ability to identify and
maximise the opportunities generated by our businesses and the
markets in which we operate. In doing so, we continue to develop an
embedded approach to risk management which puts risk and
opportunity assessment at the heart of our strategy.

Our risk appetite and approach to
risk management

The Group adopts a risk profile aligned
to our vision to be recogrised as a truly
international business at the forefront of
technology and innovation. Our available
capital and resources are appled to
underpin our strategy in accordance with
our business model.

The Board believes that in operating the
Group's businesses it is critical to strike the
right balance between an appropriate and
comprehensive control environment and
encouraging entrepreneurial behaviours
required to seek out and develop the
business

However well this is struck, the business
will always be subject to a number of

risks and uncertainties. Our approach to
risk management s designed to provide
reasonable assurance that our assets are
safequarded The risks facing the business
are assessed and, where possible,
mitigated and all relevant information is
disclosed and reported o the Board.

Organisation and process

The Board assumes overall respensibility
for the management of risk and for
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board has established a clear
organtsational structure with well-defined
accountabilities for the principal risks the
Group faces in the short, medium. and
long term, across alt divisions together
with emerging risks, This is overseen

by the Executive Directors, who have

an active responsibility for focusing on
those areas of risk The Board reviews
these nisks, including consideration of
environmental, social. and governance
matters This review is undertaken
quarterly

For each of our principal and emerging
risks we have a risk management
framework detailing our assessment of the
risk, the controls we have in place, who is
respensible for managing the risk. as well
as any further mitigating actions required

Board's assessment of compliance
with the risk management
framework

The Board carries out a robust assessment
of the principat risks quarterly together
with any emerging risks. This is

supperted by an annual review of the risk
management system undertaken by the
Audit Committee. Details of the activities
of the Audit Comemittee in relation to this
can be found 1n the Audit Committee
Report on pages 49 to 52, Decisions that
could have a material impact on the Group
are reviewed as and when required at
Beard meetings

Principal risk factors

Our business is subject to a variety of
risks and uncertainties. On the following
pages we have identified the risks we
regard as most significant to cur Group
and performance at this time. These
may change as the Group develops
over the year We have commented

on mitigating actions that we believe
help us manage these risks. However,
we may not be successful in deploying
some or all of these mitigating actions

If the circumstances in these risks occur
or are not successfully mitigated, our
cash flow, operating results, financial
position, business and reputation could be
materially adversely affected.
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@ @ @ : Change in risk (increase /decrease/no change)

Risk

Brexit

@

COVID-19

®

IT and Cyber-
Security

©

Acquisitions

©

Description of the risk .

The impend:ing end to the transition pericd following the UK's
exit from the European Union (EU) highlights a numiber of nsks
for the Group

Part of our customer base is Inherently reliant on agricultural
subsidies from the EU, and therefore future government
pelicy and support for the agricultural sector will potentially
impact on our custormers with a knock-on effect to our
Agriculture businesses. Cur customers alsc rely on trade
flows into the EU for their produce. and any tariffs on exports
could impact demand for therr products with a consequential
impact on dernand for our products and services.

Similarly, for some areas of the business the Group imports
raw materials from within the EU. The imposition of tariffs or
other related cost increases, together with any issues relating
o availability of raw materials. could impact the cost base of
the Group or its ability to service customers.

Qur business may be impacted through disruption caused by
COVID-19.

In Agnculture, our businesses were able to remain open
dunng 2620 and were not subject to restrictions or closures.
Their biggest risk is a loss of staff due to anoutbreak at a
production facility, or a wider requirement to self-isolate, that
causes us to be unable to preduce or deliver goeds

Within Engineering. the same risk applies. Additionally,
broader travel restrictions or customer-specific site
restrictions may impact cur ability to deliver projects where
site-based engineerng or installation is required.

At & Group level, any disruption to our businesses could have
an impact an cash flows.

The Group relies on information technology and key systems
to support the business In common with other organisations,
the Group undertakes development of its IT systems and is
currently implementing a new Group-wide ERP system. The
Group remains susceptible to cyber-attacks with the nsk

of financial loss and threat to the overall confidentiality and
availability of data in systems.

The Group i1s acquisitive and is therefore exposed to the
possibilty of acquiring a company based on inaccurate
information, unrealistic synergies and financial benefits, oran
inappropriate deal structure.

Failure to effectively integrate acquired businesses could also
undermine any expected synergies.

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

What we are doing to manage the risk

We continue to moniter developments post Brexit and
incorporate steps into cur future business planning
where these might be required in order to mitigate any
potentially adverse consequences including any arising
through changes to agricultural subsidies and support or
the imposition of any tariffs.

The Group benefits from its operational and geographic
diversity and 15 not substantially dependent on the EU for
either raw materals or revenues

We continue to monitor the impacts on our business
week by week. Rigorous procedures implemented at
all of cur sites are overseen by the Group's HSE and
Risk Manager.

All sites are operating in line with government restrictions
in respect of social distancing, PPE requirements, and
other measures. Additional hygiene protocols are in place
around all of our operations, and where required our self-
isolation requirements are more prudent than required by
governments.

Cash flows continue to be frequently monitored and
all businesses run a number of sensitised scenarios
demonstrating the impact of disruption. These are
consolidated for an overall Group picture.

The Group has a comprehensive suite of [T security
solutions In place, which are reviewed and tested by
speclalist third parties where appreprate. These have
been further updated and improved during the course of
2019/20.

From a system development perspective, major
projects are subject to appropriate project governance
arrangements.

Athorough and careful due diligence process is
undertaken, utilising relevant skilled internal personnel
as well as external expertise when required. Individual
business unit and Group resource is used to analyse
potential synergies and financial benefits. Consideration
is given to the composition and skilis of the management
team of the acquired company and support and relevant
training is provided by Group personnel to ensure a
successful integration.

The deal structure and proposed financing arrangements
are determined on a case-by-case basis

Post-acquisition reviews are alsc undertaken to identify
any areas for improvement in future transactions.
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@ @ @ : Change in risk {increase/decrease /no change)

Risk
Pecple

©

Strategic
partners

©

Customer
demand

S

Treasury

©

Business
continuity

©

Managing
costs

S

Emerging risk

Climate
change

®

Description of the risk

The knowledge. experience and skills of our employees are
central to the success of the Group

We must attract integrate. and retain the talent required to
fulfil our strategic growth ambitions.

inatulity to retain key knowledge and adequately plan for
suctession could have a negative impact on the Group's
performance.

The Group has a number of strategic partners, particularly
i the Agricutture divison, who are invalved either as joint
venture partners or significant minerity shareholders. A
successful working relationship with these partners s
paramount to the success of those businesses,

Changes in customer demand, be that retail, commercial or
government customers, caused by economic factors could
result in a fallin demand for the Group's product offenng,
resulhing in a significant loss in revenue.

We are exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to
treasury. The Group must ensure that it has an adequate
level of facilities to provide sufficient funding to operate its
businesses and to develop growth opportunities

Changes to the value of currencies can fluctuate widely

and could have a significant impact on a division's results.
Furthermore, because the Group has international businesses,
it is subject to exchange risks in the translation of the
underlying net assets and earnings of its foreign subsidiaries
and joint ventures

The operation of manufacturing plants involves many risks
that could cause a temporary or permanent stoppage in
production and could have a material adverse effect on the
Group

Margins may be affected by fluctuations in raw matenal prices
due to factors such as harvest and weather conditions, crop
disease, crop yields, alternative crogs, and by- product values.

In some cases. due to the basis for pricing in sales contracts,
or due to competitive markets, we may not be able to pass on
to customers the fullamount of raw material price increases
or higher energy. freight or other operating costs.

Description of the risk

Operating In the Agriculture sector, climate change, raw
material sustanability and regulatory requirements can have
an impact on the performance of the Group. Such impact can
include the cost of raw materials and the sustainakility of raw
material supples. farming and manufacturing operations, and
custormer demand for the Group's products.

What we are deoing to manage the risk

The Group has remuneration policies designed to attract
and retain employees with the ability and experience to
execute the Group's strategy.

Management development programmes are In place,
alongside detailed succession planning across the Group.
Succession plans for senior management and other

key roles are reviewed by the Nomination Committee
reqularly.

The Group undertakes a range of employee engagement
initiatives with a view to maintaining positive workplace
cultures and good working environments

Close working relationships are mantained with all the
Group's strategic partners. This includes reguiar meetings,
both formally and informally, and close involvernent in the
setting and monitoring of strategy for those businesses. In
acidition, arrangements are appropriately documented in
contracts and legal agreements

The Group operates in diverse worldwide markets, which
provide resilience for the Group against difficulties faced
by ary one market or economy. The businesses are
managed flexibly to react to changing demands in their
own sector,

The levels of facilities are regularly reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer. and these are also regutarly reported to
and discussed by the Board.

The Group operates a treasury policy of hedging all
significant transactional currency exposures

For interest rate risk on floating rate debt, we maintain
a mix of fixed rate debt, primarily finance leases, and
floating rate debt. These levels are monitered and
assessed agamnst forecast changes in interest rates and
forward guidance from interest rate setting authoerities.

The Group has Business Continuity arrangements in place
to enable continutty of supply. as quickly as practicable.
of product to customers in the event of a natural disaster
or major equipment or plant failure. A programme of
insurance 1s also in place to pretect aganst the cost of
mayor business interruptions.

The Group has a number of strategies in place to manage
this risk. These include:

- strategic long-term relationships with suppliers:
- multiple-source suppliers for key ingredients;

- raw material and forward energy purchasing policies to
provide security of supply and cost; and

- close monitering of contract execution to ensure
supply is within agreed terms.

What we are doing to manage the risk

The Group is gecgraphically and operationally diverse
and has a focus on international growth markets. The
Group carefully manages its procurement of raw
materials, utiising ethically managed and sustainatle
sources, and invests in the development of products
which are tailored to different farming conditions and
which incorporate alternative ingredients to reduce
reliance on imported soya for feed products.

The Group's business model and strategy are central to an understanding of its prospects, and details can be found on pages 10 to 13.
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The Group is very diverse both operaticnally and geographically The Group set down a strategic plan two years ago, which 15 subject to
engoing monitoring and development as described below.

The Group's focus is parbicularly on developing the Supplements business. because of the opportunities for international expansion and
product development. and its nuclear engineering business because of the global expansion opportunities in the nuclear sector and
adjacent markets

The Group's prospects are assessed primarily through its strategic planning process. This process 15 led by the Chief Executive across all
aspects of the Group The Board participates fully in the annual process through an annual strategy day. detailed strategic presentations
on all areas of the business by business teaders throughout the year, and an annual half-year strategic update. Part of the Board's role is
to consider whether the plan continues to take appropriate account of the changing external environment.

The cutput of the strategic planning process is a set of Group strategic objectives and a number of strategic priorities for the forthcoming
financial year. The latest updates to the strategic plan were finalised in August 2020 following this year's review. This considered the
Group's current position and the development of the business as a whole over the next three years

Given the nature of the business cycles in both Agriculture and Engineering, it was decided that a period of three years to 2 September 2023
was the most appropriate for the purpose of a viability assessment. The Group has prepared detailed financial forecasts for the 3 year
period to 2 September 2023, 50 that 2 years 10 months remains at the ime of approval of this year's Annual Report. The first year of the
financial forecasts form the Group's operating budget and is subsect to a re-forecast process at the half-year. The second and third years
are in a similar level of detait

The Group's principal risks are set out on pages 2g to 30. The purpose of the principal risks table is primarily to summarise those matters
that could prevent the Greup from delivering cn its strategy. A number of other aspects of the principal risks - because of their nature or
potential impact - could also threaten the Group's ability to continue in business inits current form if they were to occur. Of the principal
risks identified, the following are the most important to the assessment of the viability of the Group:

Brexit.
CovID-19;
Managing costs;
Reliance on key customers:
Strategic partners: and
. Customer demand.

DO B W

It was determined that none of these individual risks would, in isolation, compromise the Group's viability.

Although the strategic plan reflects the Directors’ best estimate of the future prospects of the business, they have also tested the
potential impact on the Group of a number of scenarios over and above those included in the plan by quantifying their financial impact
and overlaying this on the detailed financial forecasts in the plan. These scenarios represent 'severe but plausible’ circumstances that the
Group could experience.

The scenanos tested included significant reductions in profitability and associated cashflows associated with the risks highlighted above,
with consumer demand affecting all business units, additional impacts on Agriculture business units from Brexit and a targer impact on
Engineening from disruption caused by COVID-1g. The results of this stress testing showed that, due to the stability of the core business,
the Group would be able to withstand the impact of these scenarios occurring over the period of the financial forecasts by making
adjustments to its operating plans within the normal course of business.

The Group also considered a number of scenarios that would represent serious threats to its liquidity. None of these were considered to
be plausible. We have assumed that, should the need arise we would have both the ability to renew existing debt facilities which mature
over the three-year period and be able to raise new debt.

Based on their assessment of prospects and viability above, the Directors confirm that they bave a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due cver the three-year period ending 2 September 2023

The Directors also considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, as explained in the Basis of
accounting and Going concern paragraphs in the Principal Accounting Policies on page 85 of the accounts.
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Corporate Responsibility

Carr's Group promotes a supportive culture of

engagement, transparency and fairness. We take great
pride in doing what we can to ensure the health, safety
and wellbeing of our people and that we adhere to

ethical and sustainable business practices.

People

People are fundamental to the delivery of
our strategy and the long-term success of
the Group Continwng to identify talent and
develop our people remain key priorittes
across all of our businesses

We promote high levels of teamwork and
co-operation and consicler these to be
major contributing factors in the Group's
success. Our organisational culture is led
from the top-down and places great value
in the principles of trust, respect, and
Integrity.

We remain committed to providing a

working environment that:
Is consistent and fair,

+ is diverse and free from discrimination;
encourages the development of skills:
and
promoetes employee engagement

Employee engagement

We strive to ensure that employees across
the Group are kept informed about key
developments and business performance.
This is achieved through the 1ssue of
briefing notes by Executive Directors and
senior management which are circulated
regularly. Management within the Group
is also kept Informed on issues that

may affect employees which enables
effective. transparent communication and
consuitation where appropriate

Throughout 2020, we have been able to
utibse CarrsConnect, our employee intranet,
as an effective communication too! during
the COVID-19 pandemic. Information was
regularly posted on CarrsConnect including
blogs, video blogs. anncuncements,

and updates to ensure that our people
remained abreast of key developments

We have also been able to use our IT
systems, in particular Office 365 and
Microsoft Teams, to facilitate working

from home, which has ensured business
continuity and enabled us to remain in touch.

Engagement survey 2020

as part of cur increased focus on employee
engagement, in Novembker 2020 the Group
launched its first Employee Engagement
Survey to all staff across the Group. The
survey sought confidential feedback on a
range of topics including Job satisfaction
and wellbeing, organisational culture,
health and safety and diversity. We want

to better understand the views of our
people in order to help shape future Group
culture, policy and strategy. We recognise
that colleagues who have interesting and
fulfilling roles, work in safe and healthy
environments and feel valued willnot only
be happier and healthier, but more likely to
drive better business performance.

The results of the survey will be reviewed
dunng late 2020 and reported to the
Board and to Group employees during
early 2021. Where appropriate, action
plans will be developed across the Group
taking into account feedback and progress
monitored by the Board regularly. It will be
our intention to repeat the survey in future
years to monitor developing employee
views, and to ensure that any actions have
been appropriate in addressing areas of
concern

Sharesave

The Group operates a Sharesave scheme,
in which all UK-based employees

are entitled to participate. The Group
recegnises that the scheme is a well-
established method of employee
engagement, facilitating ownership across
the Group
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Diversity and equal opportunities
The Group 1s committed to an active

equal opportunities policy premoting an
environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victmisation. where
everyone will receive equal treatment
regardless of gender, colour, ethnic or
rational origin, disability, age, marital status,
sexual orientation or retigion.

All decisions relating to employment
practices will be objective, free from bias
and based upon the needs of the business
and individual merit. The Group values

the benefits of a diverse workplace and

is responsive to the needs and views of
stakeholder groups.

We remain committed to maintaining open.
fair and non-discriminatery recruitment
and development processes across the
Group. We promote flexible working

where possible and seek to have full
engagement in order to support any
empioyee who becomes disabled during
their employment

Year overview 2020

We continue to provide extensive
development opportunities for all
employees.

The Group is committed to continuing
development and now offers a broad
range of courses and seminars which are
delivered in-house. We continue to support
a range of individuals acress the Group
working towards professional qualifications
or accreditation.

In line with the Group's focus on continuous
health and safety improvements, we have
seen a significant increase in health and
safety training at all levels which we expect
to continue
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- "Engaging with our employees
. throughout the pandemic”

: COVID-19

Given the broad challenges presented by COVID-19, we took the decision
prior to lockdown in March to cancel all face-to-face training and to focus

on virtual training utilising Microseft Teams. We found that training by
| video conference was most effective when delivered in shorter sessions
to fewer delegates We ensured that feedback was gathered after each
session, to heip improve the employee experience. with feedback being

very positive overall.

Wellbeing, which were widely viewed.

“Even though the social element of meeting

face to face cannot be fully emulated remotely,
undertaking the training over Teams was just as
beneficial as a normal session in the office. The
session itself was just as informative, constructive
and enjoyable as expected.” Employee feedback

We were fortunate to have a relatively high number of employees

who were able to work from home throughout the lockdown period.

To help our pecple adapt to new ways of working, we developed and
posted a series of short training video blogs on CarrsConnect. which
covered topics including Working from Home, Motivation and Health and

Coronavirus job retention scheme
During the early period of the pandemic,
our UK businesses furloughed a number
of employees under the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme (CJRS) where people
could not attend work and were unable to
work from home or where the pandemic
caused a reducticn in trade At the highest
point, this affected 62 employees.

In July 2020, we commenced collective
consultation in our UK Service &
Manufacturing business to best secure its
future sustainability given the significant
reduction in oil and gas investment
attributable to the pandemic. Following
such consultation, and the acceptance
of 10 veluntary redundancies, a further
15 employees were made redundant
These roles could not be sustained into
the longer term and so it was not
considered appropriate for the Group

to continue receiving support for those
employees under the CJRS.

E-Learning

In September 2zc1g the Group launched
its E-LLearning platform which provides
ail employees with unlimited access to
accredited health and safety and other
workplace training. Manual Handling has
been the most commonly completed
course to date with 75% of all activity
around Health, Safety and Wellbeing
and 25% of all activity on Business
Knowledge. We are currently working
with businesses across the Group to
develep a suite of core training modules
for all new employees to complete

as part of their induction, which will
further embed E-Learning and enhance
capabilities across the Group.

Health & safety

The health and safety of peopiein

the workplace remains of paramount
imporance. The Board considers health and
safety performance as a priority item at
each meeting and regularly reviews targets
and improvernents as part of the Group's
health and safety strategy.

COVID-19 brought significant health
challenges during the second haif of the
year. Pricr to the imposition of lockdown.
the Group developed its plans for
managing the effects of the pandemic
including detailed business continuity plans
across both divisions.

As the pandemic has developed, our
business continuity plans have remained
under close and constant review. From
March onwards, a variety of measures were
introduced across our businesses including
socal distancing and site access controls,
enhanced hygiene measures, shift-pattern
working, and working from home. We also
stopped all unnecessary business travel
and revised Group travel poticies to mitigate
risks. All such measures were developed in
strict adherence to government guidelines
(in the UK and overseas as apprepriate} and
were rigorously observed.
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Health and safety continued

Qur staff health and safety training
programme continues, with E-Learning
continuing to provide a range of accredited
courses All training courses that were
previcusly classroom-based, ncluding
|0OSH-accredited courses, have been
delivered remotely during the pandemic
via video conferencing.

In 2020, the Group also established an
occupational health programme for
employees in all UK locations

The hazard profile of the businesses
remains similar to the prior year All
Group businesses which are accredited
to internationally recognised standards,
such as OHSAS 18001, have succeeded
in retaining these dunng the year, and
are transitioning to the new interrmational
standard ISO 45001

Reported Incidents

| Group 201942020 2018/2019 ‘
Allinjuries 83 ! 78 !
s . _.
RIDDCR 9 5
injuries ! ‘
Allinjuries | 576 522 ‘
average iR’ *
T - .

RIDDCR ! 62 20 i
average FR’ | ‘

PR incident frequency rates, measurea as the
number of incidents/headcount x 100,000

Over the last 12 months, an increase in
incident frequency rates (IFRs} has been
seen with a 12 month all njunes average
from September 201g to August 2020 of
576 (2010: 522). and a RIDDOR injuries [FR
of 62 (201g: 20}

With no significant change in risk profile,
and progress being made towards the
Group's strategic health and safety targets.
we ceonsider this increase to be reflective
of improved injury classification, days lost
calculations and incident reporting across
the Group as local reporting and data
management improves. These statistics will
continue to be monitored across the Group
and reportect annually.

Two RIDDOR injuries were major injuries

The highest number of lost time njury types
during the year were hand injuries A hand
safety campaign was therefore launched
during the year to raise awarensss of hand
injuries, which led to a slight decrease in hand
injury frequency in the second half

A health, safety and environmental strategy
was launched at the end of the financial
year, infroducing a plan, action, review
cycle for nsk identification and control,
effective incident investigation. learning.
communication and consultation, and
monitoring and audit. Each business has
developed its own business specific plan
for achieving strategic objectives, with
progress being regularly reported to the
Beard throughout the current year.

Environment

The Group remains committed to
protecting the environment and reducing
the impact of its businesses through

best practice We have an Ervironmental
Committee which includes senior members
of management from across the Group and
which meets regularly to consider energy
consumption, waste and opportunities
including initiatives to make improvements.

In 2019, we adopted a new Group
Environmental Palicy which increases the
accountability of subsidiary businesses
and therr leadership teams for making
environmental improvements As part of
that policy, our data collection processes
have been enhanced to ensure that,

as a Group. we capture information
accurately to help drive policy Across the
Group, we monitor energy consumption,
transportaticn, carbon generation. water
utilisation and recycling. In the second
half of 2020, as resource turned to
management of the COVID-19 pandemic,
we maintained our data collection practices
whilst environmental intiatives were
paused terporarily.

Cur energy-intensive UK feed block
manufacturing business in Cumbria
continues to benefit under a Climate
Change Discount Agreement having met its
carbon emission reduction targets during
the year.

Solar panels installed on the roofspace
at the Animax site in Suffolk led to the
generation of nearly 40% of the total
electricity demand for the site during the
year

Al UK Group locations purchase their
energy from Haven Power Limited which
solurces 100% of its electricity supplies from
renewable resources
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Packaging

The impact of packaging en the
envircnment remains under focus,

We are exploring alternatives to plastic
through research being coenducted in cur
Agriculture business in the USA.

Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting

Carbon Reduction Performance’

| CO7 tonnes 201072020 | 2018/2019 J
‘ Agreulture UK | 4-29?7 4.67137#1
Agriculture, 6,240 6,269 X
Loverseas N l
| Engineerng. UK 753 J 581 l
‘?Engineenng‘ 253 ‘ 244 ‘
. overseas :
! l—;ad Qffice 103 ) i _77_ T
‘ Group t;tat e TLG; T 711,784 ‘

‘Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions

The Group did not generate any additional
gases other than carbon dioxide during
the year. Absolute energy use in the year
across the Group totalled 39.5m KWh,

The increase in emissions in Engineering.
UK 15 largely attributable to the first full year
inclusion of NW Total. Data for Head Office
has shewn an increase due to the inclusion
of air and rail travel.

The total amount of carbon dioxide
generated across the Group for the year
was 11,641 tonnes. a slight decrease on
the prior year. The relative carbon footprint
of the Group therefore equates to 29.4
tonnes per £m turnover. By comparison,
the footprint for the previous year was

29.2 tonnes per £m turnover.

Social engagement

Carr's takes an active role in supporting

the communities in which it operates. That
support takes a variety of forms including
charitabie monetary donations, fundraising,
partnering mitiatives and voluntary work.

Carr's is now one year into its partnership
with Yorkshire Dales Millennium Trust as
part of a three-year initiative to create

a lasting legacy for agriculture in the
Yorkshire Dales and surrounding areas. The
programme provides support for people,
innovation and the envirecnment to deliver
sustainable farm improvements. It also
creates new native broadleaf woodlands.



which are hugety valuable habitats for
wildlife and also provide areas of shelter for
farm animals and help with floed risks and
soil erosion

For a fifth consecubive year, Carr's Billington
15 supperting WellChild, the national charity
for seriously ill children. The business

has so far donated over £30,000 through
fundraising and from the proceeds of
purple wrap and netting. In addition to
raising funds, Carr's Billington also raises
awareness of this charity through its use of
a soclal media campaign which encourages
custemers te share pictures of eye-
catching purple hay bate displays

Carr's remains committed to helping young
people in the local community The Group
continues to suppert Carlisle Youth Zone
which provides a safe and fun environment
designed to support the social. recreational
and emotional development of young
people in the area. Also local to Carlisle,
Bendalls Engineering continue to sponsor
Dalston Under 155 football club, which it
has suppoerted for the last five years.

At the beginning of 2020, Carr's Bilington
became corporate supporters of RSABI
{Royal Scottish Agricultural Benevolent
Institution}, which provides suppoert

to individuals and families across the
agricultural sector.

Non-Financial Information Statement

Reporting requirement

During the pandemic, Carr's Billington also
made donations of slow-moving stock to
Carlisle Key (a homeless shelter for young
people aged 16-25) and Oak Tree Animal
Charity.

As a Group, we actively encourage our
people to participate in chantable and

community intiatives. In the past 12 months,

employees of NW Total cycled 500 miles
around the Scottish coastal areas, raising
over £2,000 for St Mary's Hospice in
Ulverston

Anti bribery and corruption

Carr's operates its businessesina

culture of honesty and openness. The
Group takes a very firm stance against
unethical behaviours including bribery and
corruption which are prevented through

a robust framework of controls, including
standardised policies and transparent
practices, which every employee is made
aware of and which are subject to regular
review The Group's policies require

the regular declaration by all personnel

of gifts and hospitality and provide a
whilstleblowing line which is available to all
for the reporting of concerns.

Group policies and standards

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

Human rights

Carr's 15 committed to the sustainable
development of its business and tc
improvement In its management of socio-
ethicat issues. nciuding ensuring that its
business and its supply chain remain free
from modern slavery and human trafficking.
Whilst the risk of modern slavery and
human trafficking within the Group and

its supply chain s assessed as low, Carr's
remams vigilant and is aware that the risk of
modern slavery appearing in supply chains
can increase, particularly as the Group
continues to grow. Carr's will not deal with
any third parties where concerns arise and
will accordingly report such circumstances
to appropriate authorities.

The Group operates internal policies which
are supported by training on the issue of
modern slavery which both protect against
risks and promote awareness.

A whistleblowing line is also awailable for
the reporting of concerns. We also carry
out appropriate due diligence on supply
chains and engage with suppliers in relation
to their palicies on tackling slavery and
human trafficking

Additional mformation

i Environmental matters

i Employees i

| Human rights

| Social matters

[ Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

| Policy implementation and due
I diligence i
g Description of principal risks and P -
Timpact on business activity |

- - —

, Description of the business model | -

. Non-financial key performance
ndicators

Employee Handbook, Health and Safety Policy

| Charitable Donaticns Policy

. Anti-Bribery Policy

| Environmental Policy

| Employee Handbook, Modern Slavery Statement
i . and Policy

i Employee Handbock. financial and other controls

. and internal due dligence/integration processes L

Environmental Policy. Health andiséget; Policy,
! Employee Handbook
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Strategic Report

Stakeholder Engagement: Our Section 172 Responsibilities

At Carr's Group we believe in fairness and acting Our stakeholders
responsibly in everything we do, so that we can
continue to make a positive impact on our people,
partners, investors, customers and the communities
in which we operate. We recognise that proper
consideration of the interests and views of our
broader stakeholders produces better outcomes
and enhances the sustainability of our businesses.

We have a broad range of stakeholders with whom we engage to provide CUStom ers
information about developments across our businesses and to understand
stakeholder prionties and perspectives. We adopt a number of initiatives
which focus on ensuring that a regular dialogue is maintained with cur
stakeholders, some of which are carried out directly by the Board whereas
others are built into day-to-day management across the Group. Consideration
is given by the Board to the impact on all of our stakeholders when reviewing

all major projects for approval. I
nvestors

On these pages. we identify our various stakeholders, explain how we
engage as a business, and describe the positive outcomes this brings. These
disclosures demonstrate how we have regard to the matters set cutin section
172(1) of the Companies Act 2006.

Board decision-making and stakeholder considerations during the year

included the matters set out below: P t

Board succession Cash management a r n ers
During the year, the Board oversaw the As part of the Board's strategy for

appointment of Peter Page as Non- managing the uncertainties associated with

Executive Chairman and Kristen Eshak COVID-19. the decision was reached to

Weldon as a Non-Executive Director. The suspend non-essential capital expenditure

Board also announced the reirement of and defer the payment of an interim

Tim Davies from the role of CEQ, and the dividend until the likely impact of the

subsequent appointment of Hugh Pelham pandemic became clearer. These decisions

who will take over as CEQ in January 2021 were communicated upon release of nan
These changes at Board level required full the intenm results in April 2026 following Comm u nl tles
consideration of the interests and impact detailed consideraticn of the impact

upon our colleagues, investors, strategic that this might have on cur investers, our

partners and customers strategic partners. and the communities

in which we operate. As the impact on
the Group became clearer, the deferred
dividend was reinstated and declared in
July 2020.

For more information on specific activities during the
year, please see:

People ’ Pages 32-33
Health and safety Pages 33-34
Communities ~ Pages 34-35
Board " 7 Page 40
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How we engage Stakeholder interests Qutcomes

Qur people remain a primary consideration in everything
we do We have a strong commitment to the health, safety
and wellbeing of our employees and introduced rigorous
measures as part of our management of the COVID-19
pandemic (see page 33). We also further enhanced the
range of training and development opportunities we offer
during the year In 2020, we launched our first Employee
Engagement survey which will be used to help improve
our employee experience and shape the future of the
Group We have also increased our use of employee
communications through CarrsConnect to make sure that
our pecple remain informed about developments across
the Group

We use a variety of methods to ensure

that our people remain engaged including
regular internal announcements, video
blogs and informal meetings with Directors.
In 2020, we introduced an Employee
Engagement Survey For more informatien,
zee page 312

Good open communication with customers has been
crucial during the pandemic Throughout 2020. we have
engaged in constant dialogue with our customers to
understand their developing needs, particularly on large-
scale projects being delivered in our Engineering division,
to help reduce risks, plan for contingencies and offer
support where appropriate.

Staying in touch with our customers and
suppliers has never been more mportant
Our management teams maintain regular
and open dialogue with those we do
business with which helps build long
lasting and trusted relationships Key
customer dialogue is reported to the Board
to ensure that customer perspectives are
properly understood as part of the Board's
decizion making process

In addition to our regular investor engagement, during the
year we liaised with key investors on matters such as Board
succession and changes to our Directers’ Remuneration
Policy We have also communicated our strategy for
managing the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. including
health and safety considerations across the Group, cash
management and contingency planning.

We maintain a regulag calendar of
announcements and events for investors
The Executive Directors frequently
communicate with institutional investors to
discuss strategy and broader markets The
Chairman, Non-Executives and Cormpany
Secretary also regularly engage with
investors en governance issues and other
matters concerning the Board

Our joint venture boards and rmanagement teams have
waorked dynarmically and collaboratively during 2020 to
ensure an aligned and risk-averse approach to CCVID-19
Working together has enabled all of our joint venture
businesses to continue trading effectively and helped
build strength and resilience into our business model, to
our mutual benefit

The Group includes a number of joint
ventures with strategic partners with

whorm we maintain an active dialogue
Regular formal and informal meetings

take place with our partners involving both
Beard members and senior management
covering strategic, operationat and industry
issues, which are regularly reported to

the Board to ensure that it remains fully
appraised

The Group is committed to ethical and responsible
business practices and adheres to a policy framework
on matters such as modermn slavery and the sustainable
sourcing of raw materials. We also ensure that
environmental considerations feature prominently on the
Board's agenda. Across the Group, our people devote
considerable time and resources to good causes and
community initiatives including Carlisle Youth Zone,
WellChild and The Yorkshire Dales Millennium Trust For
more informatioen on our corporate social responsibility
programme, please see pages 34 to 35

We practice responsible behaviours

at all times and are committed to the
communities where we have an impact
We encourage active participation in
community initiatives and continue to
support a range of selected charitable
causes. We are also party to raw material
sustainability programmes Reports

oh significant community issues and
sustainability programmes are delivered to
the Board from time to time.

£

This Strategic Report was approved by the Board on
23 November 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

J
Tim Davies

Chief Executive Officer
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Peter Page

Neon-Executive Chairman

Peter joined Carr's in November 2019 and became
Non-Executive Chairman in January 2020 Peter
was formerly Chief Executive of Devro plc

one of the world's leading manufacturers of
collagen casings for the foed industry, a position
which he held for 11 years auring which time

he transformed the company's Inter natiohal
manufacturing capabilites Prior to this, Peter
worked at poultry genetics and stock supplier
Aviagen

®0O

Tim Davies

Chief Executive Officer

Tim Jomned Carr's in March 2013 as Chief
Executive Tim was formerly the Group Managing
Director at Openfield. the largest farmer-owned
grain marketing business in the UK Prior to thes,
he progressed from Sales Director to Managing
Director of Granfarmers plc In 2005 and led the
company’s merger with Centaur Grain Lid in 2008
to form Openfield Tim will be standing down

as Chief Executive, and fiom the Board, at the
conclusion of the Company’'s AGM in

January 2021

0] - 10,

John Worby

Senior Independent Director

John was appomnted a Non-Executive Director in
April 2015, John is currently Senior Independent
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Hiltan Food Group ple He was previously

the Finance Director of Genus plc and a Non-
Executive Director of Cranswick ple and Fidessa
Group ple Johin 13 a chartered accountant and a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel

38 carr'sGroupplc An

lan Wood

Nen-Executive Director

lan was appointed to the Board in October

2015. He retired as the Commercial Director,
International Business Development for Centrica
{previously British Gas) in January 2016 having
held a number of positions with the Company,
covering various aspects of the business including
engincering, customer services, industnal and
commercial marketing, and energy trading within
the UK, Continental Europe and North America
lan 15 a Director of Talkin Energy Ltd and Chief
Executive of Cumbria County Heldings.

nual Report and Accounts 2020
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Neil Austin Alistair Wannop

Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director

Neil joned Cart's In January 2013 and became Employee Engagement Representative
Chief Financial Officer in April 2013 Nel was Alistair was appointed a Non Executive Director

formerly a Director at PwC. having joined as a n 2005 Alistair has been the Chairman of both

graduate mn therr Newcastle oflice In 1997 He was the County NFU and the MAFF northern regional

appointed as a Director of the Newcastle offce advisory panel He has served as a Divector of

in 2007 with lead responsibility for part of the The English Farming and Food Partnership, Rural

Assurance praclice working alongside FTSE 350 Regeneration Cumbria. and Cumbria Vision

companies and multi-national organisations Alstarr 1s a fellow of the Royal Agricultural Society
of England and between 201/ and 2018 held
office as High Sheriff of Cumbna

OEO O

Committee membership

Kristen Eshak Weldon Matthew Ratcliffe

Non-Executive Director Company Secretary ® Nomination
Knsten was appointea as a Non Executive Matthew joined Carr's in November 2016 as

Director In October 2020 Knsten was untit Cornpany Secretary and Legal Counsel. Matthew ® Remuneration
recently a member of the Executive G'r'oup al s a solicitor with a breadth of experience working

Louis Dreyfus Company, where she focused alongside both internaticnal and local businesses @ Audrt

on innovation and forward-locking investments in corporate, commercial and contentious

across global agriculture As Head of Food matters Me began his carcer with Pinsent Masons . Char
Innovation and Downstream Strategy, she ied before jomning a Cumbrian Law firm in 200g and

investment activities in the ag-tech and ftood being appointed a Director in 2014 G) None

technology industries Prior to Lows Dreyfus,
Kristen spent 13 years at Blacksione, the leading
global investment business. where she was co-
head of the Londen office for the company's
$750n Hedge Fund Solutions businoss
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Governance
Chairman’s Introduction

Peter Page
Charmian

On behalf of the Board,
| present the Group's
Corporate Governance
Report for the financial
year ended 29 August
2020.

The Group's governance framework is
designed to safeguard its long-term
suceess for the benefit of all stakeholders.
It evolves as the Group develeps and
premeotes transparency, respect and
accountability. It ensures that the Board
operates In a culture of openness and uses
its collective experience to optimise its
effectiveness.

This report describes how we adoept the
principles of the UK Cerporate Governance
Code 2018, which has applied to the Group
since 1 September 2019

In January 2020 Chris Holmes stood

down from the Board after 29 years’
dedicated service to the Group firstly

as Chief Executive and subsequently
Chairman. | became Chairman at the
January 2020 AGM. In October 2020
Kristen Eshak Weldon jeined the Board

as an independent Non-Executive
Director, bringing considerable

experience of investment appraisal and
extensive knowledge of new technology
opportunities in global agrculture. Hugh
Pelham wilt be joining the Board in January
2021, taking over as Chief Executive upon
Tim Davies standing down at the AGM after
seven years in the role

In last year's Annual Report, we explained
that the Board had formalised its
workforce engagement initiatives. with
Adistair Wannop being appointed as
Board Representative for Employment
Engagement. Due to COVID-1g. planned
face-to-face engagement was replaced
by videoconference technology to keep
people informed and involved. Staying
connected with our people has never been
more impertant

At the AGM in January 2021, our new
Executive Director Remuneration Policy will
be put to shareholders. as it will be three
years since the poticy was last approved.
Key changes to the policy (compared to
that approved in January 2018) are: (a) the
alignment of employer pension contribution
rates for Executive Directors with those
avallable to the majority of the Group's UK
workforce: and () the introduction of a new

49 Carr's Group plc  Annual Repert and Accounts 2020

requirement that Executive Directors hold
up to 200% of their base salary in shares
which have vested under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan for a period of two years
after they leave their employment, to
ensure that interests remain aligned with
shareholders over the longer term. These
two changes are in line with current best
practice and follow consultation with major
shareholders. The new policy is set out in
the Remureration Committee Report on
pages 54 to 60. We hope you wilt agree
that it is an appropriate framework for
rewarding performance and encouraging
entrepreneurialism in a manner which
aligns with the interests of our stakeholders.

Our forthcoming AGM will be different to
previous years. As COVID-19 restricticns
prevent the AGM from taking place in
persen. members will be invited to vote on
each of the resolutions proposed by proxy
and given the oppertunity to raise questions
in advance. We will also be broadcasting

a presentation online to report on the
Company's performance, provide answers
to questions and to introduce Hugh Pelham
In addition, we will publish responses to

the questions raised by members on the
Company's website Details will be provided
in the Notice of AGM.

Developing good governance is central to
the integrity, reputation and performance of
Carr's Group. | am committed to achieving
the highest standards at all times,

pw. po{(\

Peter Page
Chairman
23 November 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

Statement of Compliance with UK Corporate The Board considers that the Company has, dunng the year ended
Governance Code 29 August 2020, complied with the requirements of the Code 1in

The UK Corporate Governance Code dated July 2018 and issued by~ their entirety
the Financial Reporting Council sets cut standards of good practice

in relation to issues such as The Board

* Board Leadership and Company Purpose; The Directors have a collective duty to promote the long-term

*  The division of Responsibilities. success of the Company for its shareholders. In determining

*  Board Composition, Succession and Evaluation; long-term strategy and objectives of the Group, the Board is

* Audit, Risk and Internal Control. and mindful of its duties and responsibilities to its shareholders as

*  Remuneration. well as employees and other stakeholders The Board reviews the
performance of management and the Group's businesses and

We are required to state how we have applied the principles monitors the delivery of the Group's strategic objectives.

centained in the Code and explain any areas where compliance

has not been possible during the year. The Board's time can be grouped in to six key areas as outlined

below. A portion of its time is alsc spent on administrative mafters.

Strategy Risk Goverpance

Setting strategic aims and objectives. Cversight of the Group's risk management | Compliance with legal. regulatory and
and internal control framework. disclosure requirements.

Setting organisational cultures and

behaviours Consideration of feedback from external Determination of matters reserved for the
and internal audit. Board and terms of reference for Board

Reviewing new business developments committees.

and opportunities including potential

acquisitions. Board and Committee performance

evaluatior.

Investing in research and technology.
Succession planning and Scard
appointments.

Finance Stakeholder engagement Health, Safety and Environmental

Approving budgets. Engagement with employees. Consideration of Health, Safety and
shareholders and cther stakeholders and Environmental reports from management.

Monitoring financial performance. consideration of feedback.

Providing support where appropriate to
Oversight of the preparation and Approval of public announcements. drive continuous improvement.
management of the financial statements
Consideration of feedback from investor
Approving major capital projects or meetings and roadshows.

materially significant contracts.

Determining dividend policy

Determining pensions strategy.

Carr's Group ple  Antual Report and Accounts 2020 41



Governance
Corporate Governance Report continued

The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association. In addition the Directors have responsibiliies and
duties under legislation, in particular those ansing under s 172 of
the Companies Act 20086

During the year ended 2g August 2020, the Board comprised of
two Executive Directors, a Non-Executive Chairman’, and up to five
Nen-Executive Directors: There is alsc a Company Secretary to the
Board. Subsequent to the end of the financiat year, Kristen Eshak
Weldon was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 1 October
2020. and it was announiced that Hugh Pelham would be appointed
to the Board as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Designate with effect frorm 4 January 2021, Bicgraphies of the
Board can be feund on pages 38-39.

The Board met on 11 scheduled occasions throughout the year. In
addition to regular scheduled mestings. a number of additional
meetings took place during the year in order to deal with specific
business arising from time to time Whilst the Board's planned
agenda was for afl scheduled meetings to take place in person.
the majority of Board and Committee meetings during 2020

were held by videoconference in order to minimise the risk of
COVID-1g transmission. Board agendas are set by the Chairman in
consultation with the Executive Directors and with the assistance
of the Company Secretary All Directors are expected to attend
scheduled Board meetings and relevant Committee meetings in
addition to the Annual General Meeting unless they are prevented
from deing so by prior work or extenuating personal commitments
Directors who are unable to attend a particular meeting receive
relevant briefing papers and are given the opportunity to discuss
any issues with the Chairman, the Chief Executive or the Chief
Financial Officer

To enable the Directors of the Board to carry out their
responsibilities, all Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information. The Board maintains a schedule of matters
reserved for the Board which is reviewed against best practice. A
summary of thoge matters is set out below and a full schedule is
avallable on the Company's website.

The Board is responsible for:

* the Group's strategy:

* acquisitions and divestment policy:

+ corporate governance, risk management and environmental
policy;

* approval of budgets:

+ general treasury policy:

*  major capital expenditure projects,

+ dividend policy; and

*  monitoring the Group's profit and cash flow performance.

The Board has delegated authority to the Audit, Remuneration. and
Nominabon Committees to carry out certain tasks as defined in
their wnitten terms of reference approved by the Board; these are
also available on the Company's website.

The Code stipulates that there should be a clear division of
responsibility between Board governance and executive
management

The Chairman Is responsible for

*  providing effective leadership of the Board,;

*  promoting ethical behaviours and high standards of corporate
governance;

* ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in determining and
developing strategy. and in fulfiling its responsibilities.

+  setting the Board agenda.

*  ensuring that members of the Board are well informed to
enable the Board to make sound and effective decisions and
ensure constructive discussion:;

* ensuring effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders:

+ identifying and meeting On conjunction with the Company
Secretary} the development needs of the Board and for each
Director: and

*  providing strategic insight and a sounding board for the Chief
Executive on key business decisions. and challenging proposals
where appropriate

The Chief Executive is responsible for.

* the executive management of the Group's business, to deliver
the strategy and commercial cbjectives agreed by the Board:

* researching and proposing the Group's strategy and commercial
objectives, which are developed in conjunction with the Chairman:

«  effecting the decisions of the Board and its Committees:

« maintaning and protecting the reputations of the Group and its
subsidiaries:

* establishing an annual budget consistent with the agreed
strategy to be agreed by the Board:

* managing the performance of the Group against the agreed
budget,

+ ensuring that dialegue is maintained with the Chairman on
important issues facing the Groug;

«  providing information and advice on succession planning to the
Board, and managing executive succession planning:

*  providing information and advice to the Board on health. safety
and environmental issues and overseeing the Group's strategy
on such matters,

+  setting the Group's culture, vatues and behaviours and
conducting the affairs of the Group adhering to the highest
standards of integnty and goed governance.

Elections

The Company's Articles of Asscciation provide that one third of
the Directors retire by rotation each year at the Annual General
Meeting. In accordance with the Code, the Board consider it best
practice to regquire all Directors to retire and stand for re-election
annually

1 Untir conclusion of tne AGM on 7 January 2013, Chris Helmes was Son-Executive Chairman Following conclusion of that AGM. Peter Page became Non-Executive

Chairman

2 From the appomtment of Peter Page io the Board on 1 November 2019 until Chris Holmes standing down from the Board upon conclusion of the AGM on 7 January
2019. there were five Non-Executve Directors For the remainder of the financial year, there were four Non-Executive Directors
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Attendance and Agenda

In advance of all Board meetings the Directors are supplied

with detalled and comprehensive papers covering the Group's
strategy, performance and operations Members of the executive
management tearm or other third parties may also attend meetings.
or parts of meetings. where approprate from time to time by
invitation. The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
the timeliness and quality of information

Details of the scheduled meetings of the Board, and of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration Committees, during the peried
together with members’ attendance are set out in the table below.

Scheduled Meeting Attendance

Audit  Remuneraton Nonmnation

Board Committee Committee Commiltee

No. of meetings 1 4 5 6
4 4 5

T T 1
4 2 6”

4 3 6

4 5 ]

4 ) 6

4 5 ]

Attended meeting in full or part by invitation
Appointed on 1 Nevember 2019 (attended 100% of meetings whilst appointed).
" Stood down on 7 January 2620 (attended 100% of meetings whilst appointed)

Support

Directors can cbtain Independent professional advice at the
Company's expense In performance of their duties as Directors.
None of the Directors cbtained independent professional advice
in the period under review All Directors have access to the
advice and the services of the Company Secretary. In addition to
these formal roles, the Non-Executive Directors have access to
senior management across the Group either by telephone or via
involvement at informal meetings.

Directors' conflicts of interest

The Companigs Act 2006 and the Company's Articles of
Association require the Board te consider any potential conflicts

of interest. The Board has a policy and procedures for managing
and, where appropriate, authorising actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Under those procedures, Directors are required te declare
all directorships or other appointments to organisations that are
not part of the Group and which could result i actual or potential
conflicts of interest. as well as other situations which could result in
a potential conflict of interest .

The Board is required te review Directors’ actual or potential
conflicts of interest at least annually. Directors are required to
disclose proposed new appaointments to the Chairman before
taking them on, to ensure that any potential conflicts of interest can
be identified and addressed appropriately. Any potential conflicts
of interest in relation to proposed Directors are considered by the
Board prior to their appointment. Any conflicts are also required to
be declared at the outset of every Board meeting in relation to the
matters on the agenda. In the financial year ended 29 August 2020,
there were no declared conflicts of interest.
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Board evaluation

Each year the Board undertakes a review of its effectiveness. The
Beard last undertook an independent external review in 2017, which
was conducted by Independent Audit Limited. That review, and the
report delivered to the Board, drew positive conclusions including
that the Board and its Committees were performing effectively
and appropriately constituted The report went on to make certain
further recommendations including the planning of agendas to
include further business-specific reviews and increasing the focus
on succession planning and people issues more generally.

In each of the years ended 2018 and 201g, the Board carried out
internal reviews which built upon the 2017 external review. These
reviews were led by the Chairman with the support of the Cempany
Secretary Reviews commenced with discussions between the
Chairman and the Company Secretary, together with a review of
the findings of prior reviews and of progress made during the year
against recommendations for improvements, The discussions led
to the issue of questionnaires to members of the Board. Responses
were collated by the Company Secretary and reports presented

to the Board detailing any views on an anonymous basis, together
with progress made te date against previous recommendations.
Reports were the subject of detailed and constructive discussion
ty the Board.

Although the Group sits cultside the FTSE 350, the Board
considered facilitating an external evaluation of the Beard and its
Committees during 2020. Given the changes to membership of
the Board during 2020, it was considered that the Group would
in fact benefit more from an externally facilitated review in 2021.
It was determined that the Board would therefore conduct an
internal evaluation in 2020, planning for an external evaluation in
the coming year. During 2020, the Board therefore undertcok an
internal evaluation in a similar fashion to those in 2018 and 2019.
A detailed report on questionnaire responses was compiled by
the Company Secretary including anonymised feedback which
was reported to the Board. This led to a detailed discussion

and the implementation of certain recommendaticns including
improvements to financial reporting, adding regular management
and industry updates to Board agendas. adopting changes to
employee engagement practices and adopting regular post-
investment appraisals for significant capital expenditure projects.

During the year. the Chairman also evaluated the performance

of the Non-Executive Directors througih discussions with Board
members and the Company Secretary. and infermal observations.
The Senior Independent Director alse held discussions with Board
members and the Company Secretary, without the Chairman
present, to appraise the Chairman's performance. Feedback was
provided following such evaluations and reviewed by the Beard.

Overall the Board considered the performance of each Director
to be effective and concluded that the Board and its Committees
provide effective leadership and that appropriate governance
and controls are in place. The Board will continue to review its
procedures, effectiveness and development in the future.

Carr's Group ple  Annual Report and Accourts 2020 43



Governance
Corporate Governance Report continued

Non-Executive Director independence

The Board's views on Non-Executive Director independence

were also reconsidered as part of the 2020 internal review. This
was afforded greater focus owing to Alistarr Wannop serving as a
Non-Executive Director for more than mine years. In carrying out its
assessment, the Board noted that no issues or concems regarding
independence had been highlighted during previous evaluations.
The Board noted that Alistair Wannop had no material business
relationships with the Company, does not hotd a significant
shareholding, does not represent any shareholder, does not have
any family connections with the Company. and has not served

the Company in any capacity other than as a Non-Executive
Director. The Beard accordingly determined that the ndependence
of Alistair Wannop was not compromised by his tenure, and

that there were no circumstances which could give rise to his
independence being questioned. The Board was entirely satisfied
that Alistair Wannop continued to exercise the level of objectivity
and challenge that would be expected of an independent Non-
Executive Director.

The Board has therefore assessed Alistair Wannop, lan Wood

and John Worby as independent. Upon their appointment to the
Board on 1 November 2013 and 1 October 2020 respectively,

both Peter Page and Kristen Eshak Weldon were assessed by the
Board to be independent. The question of Non-Executive Director
independence is a matter which is kept under review and assessed
annually by the Board

Non-Executive Director succession

Following the appeointment of Kristen Eshak Weldon and as part
of the Board's strategy for Non-Executive Director succession,
Alistair Wannop will stand down from the Board upon conclusion
of the AGM which will take place in January 2022. Alistarr was first
appointed to the Board in September 2005 Recognising Alistair's
deep knowledge of the Graup's activities and understanding of
agricuitural industries, and given the level of Board succession
achieved during 2019 and 20z0. the Board considers it appropriate
for Alistair to remain appointed for a further year to provide
continuity.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee's key responsibilities are to review

the effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting. the
performance of the external auditor and the Group's systems of risk
managerment and internal control

During the year, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
Non-Executive Directors John Worby (Chair), lan Wood ancl

Alistair Wannop. On 1 October 2020, Kristen Eshak Weldon was
also appointed to the Committee which now comprises four
independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board considers that the
Committee meets the requirements of the Code and is appropriate

for a company of its size. In particular, the members bring financial
agricultural and engineering experience to the Committee together
with a good understanding of the businesses within the Group

and the risks that they face. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
1s a chartered accountant with recent and relevant financial
experience. The work, responsibilities and governance of the

Audit Committee are set out on pages 49 to 52,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee's primary role 1s to review and set
the reward structures for Executive Directors and other senior
management to ensure that these promote the correct behaviours
and are appropriate when considered in conjunction with the levels
of pay and benefits offered across the Group.

From 1 November 2018/, the Remuneration Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors: lan Wood (Chair),
Peter Page. John Worby and Alistair Wannop. On 1 October 2020,
Kristen Eshak Welden alsc became a member of the Committee
which now comprises five independent Non-Executive Directors.
The work, responsibiities and governance of the Remuneration
Committee is set out on pages 53 to 66.

Nomination Committee

The role of the Nomination Committee is to ensure that an appropriate
balance of skills, experiences and backgrounds is achieved

across the Board, and that the Group is properly prepared for the
succession of members of the Board and senior management.

During the year. the Nomination Committee comprised of Peter
Page (Chair), Alistair Wannop, John Worby and lan Wood* On

1 October 2020, Kristen Eshak Weldon also became a member of
the Committee. The work. responsibilities and governance of the
Nomination Committee are set out on pages 46 to 48.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board recognises and values the importance of gecod
communications with all shareholders. The Group maintains
dialogue with substantial and institutional shareholders and
analysts, and hosts presentations cn the preliminary and interm
results. Shareholders have access to the Company's website at
WWW.Carrsgroup.com.

We engage with our shareholders through our regular
communications. Significant matters relating to trading or
development of the business are disseminated to the market

by way of Stock Exchange announcements. We announce our
financial results on a six-monthly basis with all shareholders
receiving a half-year statement. and we produce trading updates
during the year. All reports and updates are made available on the
Company's website.

3 Prior to 1 November 2019, the Committee compnsed of three independent Non-Executive Directors lan Wood (Chairman), Johin Worby and Alistarr Wannop
4 Prior to 1 November 2013, the Committee comprised of Chris Holmes iChairman). lan Wood, John Worby and Alistair Wannop Peler Page became a member
of the Committee on 1 November 2019 and became Comirmittee Char upon Chns Holmes standing down from the Board and the Committee on 7 January 2020
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The Annual General Meeting ordinarily provides all shareholders
with the opportunity to develop further therr understanding of the
Company. It s an excellent forum for all Directors to engage with
private Investors. All shareholders are given the opportunity to
raise questions on matters proposed for consideration at the AGM.
The Group aims to send notices of Annual General Meetings to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting.

as required by the Code. Following the AGM, the voting results

for each resolution are published and are available on the
Company's website

COVID-19 and our January 2021 AGM

Owing to the ongoing risks assoclated with COVID-1g,
arrangements for our January 2021 AGM will be different to

those In previous years, Members will not be able to attend the
meeting in person. but will be invited to cast their votes on the
resolutions proposed at the meeting by proxy in advance Voting
at the meeting will take place by poll. on the basis of the proxy
votes cast in advance of the meeting. Any members who do try

to attend the AGM in person will unfertunately not be permitted

to enter the meeting owing tc government restrictions and

social distancing guidelines. On the day of the AGM we will be
publishing a broadcast on the Company's website, reflecting on
the year, providing an update on current trading. intreducing Hugh
Petham, and answering questions raised by sharehotders. Wiitten
responses to questions raised by shareholders will also be made
available on the Company's website. We hape that our members
understand the need for caution in current circumstances and very
much lock forward to retuming to hosting our AGM in person in
future years.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors have reviewed the financial statements and taken as
a whole consider them to be fair, balanced and understandable,
and provide the information necessary for sharehelders to assess
the Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Internal control

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group's
systems of risk management and internal control. and for reviewing
therr effectiveness, including. financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management, which safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group's assets Such systems can only

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss, being designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

Strategic Report
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The Board of Directors is not aware of any significant losses caused
by breaches of internal cantrol in the year. The Group operates
within a clearly defined organisational structure with established
responsibilities, authorities and reporting lines to the Board. The
crganisational structure has been designed in order to plan,
execute, monitor and control the Group's chjectives effectively

and to ensure that internal control becomes embedded in the
operations. The Board confirms that the key ongoing precesses
and features of the Group's internal risk-based control system have
been fuily operative throughout the year and up to the date of the
Annual Report being approved. These include: a process to identify
and evaluate business risk; a strong control environment; an
informaticn and communication precess; a monitoring system and
a regular Board review for effectiveness. The Chief Financial Officer
15 responsible for overseeing the Group's internal controls.

The Group's internal controls systems cover controls over the
financial reporting process, including monthly reporting from
subsidiaries, its assoclate and joint ventures, This reporting is
subject to detalled review by the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financial Officer and detailed validation by the Group finance team,
and forms the basis for information presented te and reviewed

by the Board. Allmonthly repcrting is prepared in line with Group
accounting policies, which are reviewed annually and are also
subject to review by the external auditors.

The management of the Group's businesses identified the key
business risks within their operations, considered the financial
implications and assessed the effectiveness of the control
processes in place to mitigate these risks. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Board reviewed a summary of the
finclings and this. along with direct involvement in the strategies

of the businesses, investment appraisal and budgeting process.
enabled the Board to repart on the effectiveness of internal control.
A summary of the risk management framework and key risks to the
business are set out on pages 28 to 30.

By order of the Board

A=
Matthew Ratcliffe
Company Secretary
Carlisle

CA3 9BA
23 November 2020
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Nomination Committee Report

Peter Page
Chair of the Nomination Comnuttee

Dear Shareholder

| present this report on
the role of the
Nomination
Committee and its
activities during the
year.

Nomination Committee Highlights

+  Appointment of Hugh Pelham as
CEQG Designate

Appointment of Peter Page as
Non-Excutive Chairman

+  Appeointment of Kristen Eshak
Weldan as independent Non-
Executive Director

Internal evaluation completed
with external evaluation
planned for FY2021

Introduction

The Nemination Committee ensures

that the Board and senior management
team possess the right balance of skills.
experience and knowledge to support the
Group's strategy. Central to this is making
sure that effective succession plans are in
place to fill vacancies on the Board, and

in management teams, alongside robust
and transparent procedures for identifying
suitable candidates.

| joined the Beard in November 2019 and
tock over as Chairman of the Board and
Chair of the Nomination Committee upen
Chris Holmes standing down at the AGM in
January 2620.

In July 2020, we announced the recruitment
of Kristen Eshak Weldon to the Board as

an independent Non-Executive Director.
Kristen joined the Board on 1 October 2020
having previously been Head of Food and
Downstream Strategy at Louis Dreyfus
Company. where she focused on innovation
and investments acress global agnculture.
Prior to this, Kristen spent 13 years at
Blackstone where she was Co-Head of the
London office for the company's $75 bn
Hedge Fund Sclutions business. leading
their work on investment cpportunities
worlawide.

In September 2020, we anncunced that
Hugh Pelham will be joining the Board

on 4 January 2021 as Chief Executive
Officer Designate and will take over as
Chief Executive upon Tim Davies standing
down at the AGM later that month. Hugh
brings over 30 years’ experience in leading
growing businesses across various sectors,
having most recently been Global President
of Minova, part of ASX-listed Orica. a global
manufacturer and supplier of chemical
and mechanical earth control products,
adhesves and support equipment. Prior

to this Hugh spent four years leading
Wood Group Industrial Services, a supplier
of specialist coatings. access and fabric
maintenance services to the ol and gas.
marine and railindustries. Hugh's broad
experience and strong track record of
generating long-term value will be of real
value to the Group.

More information on the activities of the
Committee, including the recruitment
processes which led to the appointment of
Kristen and Hugh. is set out on the pages
which follow.
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Role of the Committee
The primary responsibilibies of the
Nomination Committee are:

Reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and
monitoring the range of skills.
knowledge and experience required for
the Board to operate effectively and to
deliver the Group's strategy.

Overseeing Board and senior
management succession planning,
including setting objective

selection criteria and transparent
recruitment processes, and making
recommendations to the Board in
retation to the appointment of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors: and

Setting the Greup's pelicy on diversity
and inclusion and overseeing its
implementation in succession planning
across the Group.

Activities of the Committee

The Committee met on six scheduled

occasions during the year to consider the

following matters:

- the Committee’s terms of reference to
ensure they appropriately reflect the
Committee's remit;
the succession plans in place for the
Board and sentor management across
the Group:
recruitment for Board appointments;
the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, its committees
and senior management across the
Group:
the Group's policy on diversity and
inclusion; and
the Group's talent management. training
and development programmes.




Attendance at meetings of the Committee was as follows:

Meatings
attended
100%
100%
100%

Member

100%
100%

Peter Page was appoainted to the Committee an 7 January 2020 at which
point Chns Holmes stood down Each attended 106% of meetings dunng
therr tenure

Changes to the Committee

| joined the Board as an independent Nen-Executive Director,
Chairman Designate and a member of the Committee on

1 November 2019, | subsequently became Nen-Executive
Chairman of the Greup and Chair of the Committee on 7 January
2020 upon Chris Holmes standing down After the year end.
Kristen Eshak Weldon jointed the Board on 1 Cctober 2020 and
became a member of the Committee

Board evaluation

During the year, the Board conducted an internal evaluation of the
Board and its Committees The Board's previous external evaluation
tock place in 2017, but owing to succession on the Board during
2020, the Committee considered it appropriate for an external
evaluation to take place in 2021,

The 2017 external review was facilitated by corporate gevernance
specialists Independent Audit Limited and reviewed the size,
compositicn and effectiveness of the Board and its Committees.
That review, which generated positive feedback. confirmed

that the Board and its Committees were appropriately

constituted and provided effective management of the Group

as a whole The review alsc involved a consideration of the
continued independence of the Non-Executive Directors and

the commitment required from each in order to properly fulfil

their duties. Following the review, and in consideration of all
circumstances, it was determined by the Beard that all Directors
comritted sufficient time to property fulfil their responsibilities and
that John Worby, lan Wood and Alistair Wannop were considered to
be independent.

The internal review during 2020, built upon the 2017 external
review, and further internal reviews undertaken in 2018 and 201g.
For mere information on the process see page 43. The review
involved a detailed consideration of the effectiveness of the
Board and its committees together with a review of diversity

and the range of skills. knowledge and experience required to
effectively deliver the Group's strategy The review also reflected
on the previous year. and on decisions made by the Board, In
order to identify where its effectiveness can be enhanced. The
2020 review also considered the continued independence of the
Non-Executive Directors. That review concluded that the Board
and its Committees are indeed apprepriately constituted, and that
Peter Page, John Worby, lan Wood and Abstair Wannop remain
independent.
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Group succession planning and development

The Group's succession strategy focuses upon ensuring that
appropriate and sufficient employees are recruited or developed
internally to meet the future management and leadership

needs of the Group, taking into account continued growth and
Group strategy.

During the year the Committee reviewed the Group's broader
succession and development plans with the Group Head of HR
and CEQ,

Recruitment processes for leadership and senior positions across
the Group are managed under the supervision of the Group Head
of HR inviting both internal and external candidates. Independent
recruitment consultants are also appointed where appropriate
taking intc account the requirements of the Group.

In recent years. the Group has made significant progress in the
implementation of its senior management succession plans. This
progress continued during 2020 with a significant recrganisation
of management teams in our UK Agriculture business under

the leadership of the recently appointed Managing Director. Our
Engineering division atso saw significant change with a greater
focus on Integration and the appointment of a new President in our
Glebal Technical Services business.

Across the Group our career pathway and employee development
initiatives continue to evolve which are designed to attract. retain
and develop the best talent. Further details of those initiatives are
described on pages 32 to 33.

Board succession

In addition to my appointment to the Board in November 2019,
which was detailed in last year's report. the Nomination Committee
led two Board recruitment exercises during the year.

As part of the Company's long-term succession planning for
Nan-Executive Directers, the Board announced the appoaintment
of Kristen Eshak ‘Weldon in July 2020. That recruitment process
was led by the Committee who, following a competitive tender
exercise, appointed recruitment consultants Independent Search
to assist, In selecting candidates, the Committee considered a
broad range of important skills and characteristics. The Committee
also considered the balance of skills, experience and knowledge
present across the Board, the culture of the Group and the benefits
of diversity. Kristen was appointed to the Board on 1 October 2020
as an independent Non-Executive Director and as a member of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

During the year the Committee undertook a rigorous search for a
Chief Executive Officer to succeed Tim Davies who will be standing
down from the Board at the AGM in January 2021. The Committee
engaged recruitment consultants Spencer Stuart following a
competitive tendering process. The search involved an in-depth
analysis of the skills, knowledge and experience which would best
benefit the Group and the development of a detailed candidate
profile. The search considered a large pool of 426 potential
candidates from a broad variety of backgrounds, industries, and
countries.
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Of the total candidate poolidentified. 35 individuals were
considered further for the position from both internal and external
sources (of that total, 26 candidates were male, eight were female
and one was undisclosed). Five shortlisted candidates were
ultimately identified, which led to the Committee's recommendation
that the Board appoint Hugh Pelham to the position.

Hugh's appointment was announced on 24 September 2020. He
willjoin the Board as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer Designate on 4 January 2021 and, subject to the approvat

of shareholders, will take over as Chief Executive Officer at the
conclusion of the AGM which is currently expected to take place on
12 January 2021,

Alistair Wannep has served on the Board since September 2005

As part of the Board's long-term succession strategy, and following
the appointment of Kristen Eshak Weldon, it is planned that Alistair
will stand down at the conclusion of the Group's AGM In January
2022. Given the level of Board succession achieved during 201g
and 2020, and recognising Alistair's deep knowledge of the Group's
achwities and understanding of agricultural industries, the Board
considers it appropriate for Alistair to remain appointed for another
year to ensure continuity.

Diversity and inclusion

The Group's principal concern when making employment

decisions s ensuring that candidates possess the skills, knowledge
and experience, or the potential to develop the required skills,
knowledge and experience, to meet the requirements of the Group.

The Board is aware of the benefits to the Group of diversity.
including gender diversity, and of the recommendations of the
Hampton Alexander Review, Diversity is an important consideration
when determining the needs of the Group and its businesses when
making recruitment decisions. Whilst the Board does not currently
set any specific diversity targets, as part of the Group's employee
survey (for more information please see page 32} information

witl be collected on the diversity of our people from across the
Group This information will be reviewed by the Committee and
the Board together with the Group Head of HR in order to enhance
understanding of diversity across the Group and 16 enable the
development cf policy and/or targets where appropriate
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The Group operates a strict equal apportunities policy. Al
appointments are made on the basis of merit and the requirements
of the Group regardless of factors such as race, colour, nationality,
religion or belief. gender. marital or civil partnership status, family
status, pregnancy. sexual orientation. gender identity. gender
reassignment, disability or age. There are no differences in pay
structures for persons of different genders performing similar roles.

Gender Breakdown
Group employees Total

Male
Female

Total

Senior managers

Male
Female

Total

Male
Female

Direct reports to senior managers

Re-Election

At the AGM on 12 January 2021, Hugh Pelham and Kristen Eshak
Weldon will stand for election by shareholders for the first time
since being appeinted to the Board. Tim Davies will not stand for
re-election owing to him standing down from the Board. All cther
Directors will stand for re-election in accordance with best practice
and the Corporate Governance Code. The Board will set out in the
Nctice of Annual General Meeting its reasons for supporting the
re-election of each Director Thelr biographical details on pages 38
to 39 demonstrate the range of experience and skills which each
brings to the benefit of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Peter Page
Chair of the Nomination Committee
23 November 2020
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Audit Committee Report

Introduction

This has been the second year in which
KPMG LLP (KPMGJ has acted as the Group's
auditor, having been first appocinted by
shareholders at the AGM on 8 January 2019
following the recommendation of the Beard
and the tender process conducted by the
Committee in the spring of 2018.

Responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the
Committee are to provide effective
governance over the integrity of the
Company's financial reporting and the
effectiveness of its systems of internal
control and risk management.

Under its terms of reference, the

Composition of Committee and Commiittee is required, amongst other

Meetings

) . . th L tor

During the year, the Audit Committee ngs. ko

John Worby compriged three Non-Executive Directors: T T T T
; of the fin L

Chair of the Audt Committes John Worby, who is Chair of the Committee. Monitor the integrity nancia

statements of the Company including
the appropriateness of the accounting
policies adopted and whether the
Annual Repert was far, balanced and

lan Wood and Alstair Wannop. On1
Qctober 2020, Kristen Eshak Weldon
bhecame a member of the Committee upon

Dear Shareholder her appointment to the Board. understandable:

On behalf Of the Audit The Chair of the Committee has recent Keep under review and evaluate the
and relevant financial experience and effectiveness of the Company’s internal

Committee, lam coltectively members of the Committee financial control, and other internal
have in-depth knowiedge and experience controls and risk management systems;

pleased to present this of agricultural and engineering industries,

and a goed understanding cf the Group's Appraise Lhe Board on how the

report to SharehOldel'S undertakings. Details of Committee CSTPT’EEDSF)GCES eireiassessercri; o
H H : members’ qualifications can be found on Oversee the relationship with
which hlghllghts the pages 38 to 30. the external auditor, making
areas of review du ring recommendations to the Board in
. The Audit Committee met four times relation to its appointment, remuneration
the year and expla|ns during the year, and has an agenda linked and terms of engagement;
. to the Group financial calendar it invites . _— -—
how the Committee the Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Moniter and review the effectiveness of
. Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Group the ?’(t?mal audit inclucing the external
has reviewed and Finance. the Head of Business Finance, auditor's independence, objectivity and
: : the Head of Internal Audit and the external effectiveness and to approve the policy
dISCharg edits auditor to attend its meetings. During the on the engagement of theA extemaL ‘
responsibilities year, the Committee met with each of the auditor to supply non-audit services,
Head of Internal Audit and the external Review and'épa'oiveithe mandate of the
auditor withcut the Executive Directors or internal auditor, evaluate the work and
ather senior management being present monitor the effectiveness of the internal
) _ auditer, and approve the appointment
The Committee has met twice since the or removal of the Head of Internal Audit,
end of the financial year to consider internal and
audit work and the results and Annual —— - e
Report for the year ended 29 August 2020. Review the adequacy of the Company's
: . ) . whistleblowing and anti-bribery
Audit Committee Highlights arrangements,
+ Adoption of IFRS 16
- Consideration of impact of
COVID-19
«  Appointment of Knste:n Eshak The Committee’s terms of
Weldon to the Committee reference can be found on the
Company's website
www.carrsgroup.com.
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Main activities during the year
Set out below is a summary of the key areas considered by the
Committee during the year and up to the date of this report

Financial Reporting

During the year the Audit Committee reviewed reports and
infermation provided by the Chief Financial Officer. and the
external auditor In respect of the half year and full year results
and Annual Report.

An important responsibility of the Audit Committee is to review

and agree significant estimates and judgements made by
management. To satisfy this responsibility, the Committee reviewed
a written formal update from the Chief Financial Officer on such
1ssues at the two meetings that reviewed the half year and year
end results, as well as reports from the external auditors. The
Committee carefully censidered the content of these reports in
evaluating the significant 1ssues and areas of judgement across

the Group.

The key areas of judgement in the year were as follows:

Contract risks in the Engineering division, including the risks
associated with the judgemental nature of revenue and profit
recognition over time. The Committee reviewed a selection of
significant active contracts, challenging management's forecast
outturns and profit recognition assessments and examining
commercial processes and controls to test the recoverability

of contract balances The Committee determined that the
Judgements adopted by management were appropriate.

The valuation of the Carr's Group defined benefit pension
scheme assets and obligations. The Committee reviewed
valuations of the scheme's investments. and the key actuarial
assumptions used to value the scheme cbligations. The
assumptions made were reviewed against market data in
conjunction with independent actuarial specialists, to assess
therr appropriateness and the disclosures on the sensitivity of
the obligations to changes in such assumptions were reviewed.
The Committee was satisfied that the scheme's assets were
appropriately valued. that the assumptions adopted in relation
to the scheme’s liabilities were appropriate, and that disclosures
made in relation to the scherme were appropriate.

The valuation of the Group's share of the Carrs Bitlington
Agriculture {Operations) Ltd defined benefit scheme surplus.
The Committee evaiuated the actuarial assumptions adopted in
estimating scheme obligations and reviewed asset statements
in relation to the scheme's investments in conjunction with
actuarial specialists. The Committee was satisfied following
such review that the valuation adopted for the scheme surplus
was appropriate

Estimates of the recoverability of trade receivables in the
Agriculture division. The Committee reviewed key centrols
within credit control processes, the estimates and policies
adopted in relation to debtors, and the adequacy of the
Company's disclosures relating to provisions for receivables.
The Committee determined that the estimates and disclosures
made were appropriate.
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Brexit and the associated increased levels of uncertainty

of outcomes. The Committee considered the Directors’
assessment of Brexit-related sources of sk and their potential
impact on the going concern assessment and viability
statement. Potential sensitivities were challenged against the
full range of reasonably possible scenarios, and adjustments
were considered to discount rates for forecast cash flows

for any residual uncertainties. The Committee aiso reviewed

the reasonableness of disclosures made in the strategic

report relating to Brexit. The Committee determined that the
assessments made by management were appropriate and that
the narrative disclosures were reasonable.

Potential goodwill impairment. The Committee challenged
the reasonableness of the tuture business performance
assumptions adopted by management for those businesses that
had underperformed against expectations. Factors considered
included historical perfermance, industry benchmarks and
where relevant the likely long-term impact of the COVID-19
pandemic The Committee agreed with management's view that
no impairments were necessary.

Inventory provisioning. The Committee reviewed
management's policies and related processes to monitor
inventory movernent, particularly given the potentialimpact

of Brexit and COVID-1g, and determined that no changes to
inventory provisioning was necessary.

Adoption of new accounting standard IFRS 16. The Committee
reviewed the accounting policies adopted to meet the
requirements of IFRS 16, management controls in relation to
key judgements. and the impact of adoption of the standard

on the financial statements including relevant disclosures.

The Committee was satisfied with the manner in which the
accounting standard had been adopted and reflected in the
financial statements.

Changes to the fair value of contingent consideration in
relation to the acquisitions of Animax, NuVision and NW Total.
The Committee challenged management's assessments of the
fair value of the contingent consideration likely to be payable

as potential earn-out payments for those acquisitions and
determined that such assessments were apprepriate.

The Committee, further to the Board's request, has reviewed

the Annual Report and financial staterments with the intention of
providing advice to the Board on whether. as required by the Code.
‘the Annual Report and Accounts. taken as a whole, is fair. balanced
and understandatle and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business
model and strategy’

To make this assessment, the Committee reviewed a report
prepared by the Chief Financial Officer outlining the relevant key
matters worthy of consideration. The Committee was satisfied that,
where relevant, all the key events and issues which have been
reported to the Board in the CEQ's reports during the year, both
good and bad, have been adequately referenced or reflected
within the Annual Regort.



The Committee has also reviewed the Group's going concern
and viability statement disclosures, particularly in relation to

the ongoing uncertainties associated with COVID-1g and Brexit.
It recerved a written report prepared by the Chief Finanaial
Officer which enabled it to review the base assumptions and
various sensitised scenarios throughout the forecast penod The
Committee was comfortable with the disclosures made

Internal Control and Risk Management

Durning the year the Committee continued to monitor the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control and sk management
systems and at the end of the year carried out a review of the
effectiveness of such systerns

The Committee reported to the Board that it had reviewed, and
was satisfied with, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and nsk management systems.

External Audit

KPMG was appointed as external auditor of the Group at the AGM
IN January 2020, having first been appointed at the AGM in January
2019 following the recommendation of the Board and a competitive
tender process managed by the Audit Committee which took place
during 2618 KPMG's current engagernent partner 1s Nick Plumb,
who has been in place since commencement of the audit for the
201g financial year. The Audit Committee assessed the qualifications.
expertise and independence of KPMG as auditors as part of the
tender process and updated its assessment during the year.

Following approval by shareholders to appoint KPMG in January
2020. the Audit Committee reviewed and approved the terms of
engagement and remuneraticn of the external auditcrs for the
2¢20 financial year

Audit Effectiveness

The effectiveness of the external audit process is dependent on
appropriate audit risk identification at the start of the audit cycle
KPMG presented its detailed audit plan to the Committee in June
2020, identifying ther assessment of these key risks.

The assessment of the effectiveness and quality of the audit process
and addressing these key risks is formed by, amongst other things.
the reporting from the auditors. In addition, each year, the Audit
Committee assesses its performance and the effectiveness of

the external auditor through a questicnnaire completed by Audit
Committee members and members of the Group's senicr finance
team Whilst the Committee was satisfied with the robustness of
the audit, the questionnaire highlighted some concerns with the
efficiency of the audit process which were discussed in detail with
KPMG through a thorough debrief process. It was agreed that
improvements would be made for the 2020 audit.

Auditor Independence

The Group meets its obligations for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the external auditor through the Audit Committee,
whose terms of reference Include an obligation to consider and
keep under review the degree of work undertaken by the external
auditor cther than the statutory audit. to ensure such objectivity
and independence is safeguarded

Strategic Report

Fﬁnancial Statements

In accordance with the Auditing Practices Board Ethucal Standards,
the Group's externat auditor must implement rules and requirements
which include that none of their employees working on our audit can
hold any shares in the Company. The external auditor is also required
to tell us about any significant facts and matters that may reascnably
be thought to bear on their ndependence or on the objectivity of the
lead partner and the audit team. The lead partner in the audit team
must change every five years.

The Audit Committee annually reviews the Company's Non-

Audit Services policy. updating and approving the policy where
appropriate The objective of the policy is to ensure that the
provision of any such services does not impair. or is not perceved
to impair, the external auditors' independence or ohjectivity. The
policy imposes guidance on the areas of work that the external
auditers may be asked to undertake and those assignments where
the external auditors should not be involved

There is a further category of services for which a case-by-case
decision is necessary. The policy can be viewed on the Company's
website www carrsgroup.com.

In order to ensure that the policy is effective. and the level of
non-audit fees is kept under review, all non-audit services must

be approved by the Chief Financial Officer and reported to the
Committee. Prior approval of the Committee is also required before
the external auditor is engaged to provide non-audit services costing
in excess of £25,000 In aggregate, During the 2020 financial year, there
was no non-audit work undertaken by the Group's external auditor.

The Committee concluded that it was satisfied with the
independence of KPMG as auditors and that it should recommend
their reappecintment to the Board,

Internal Audit
The Committee is respensikle for monitoring the perfermance and
effectiveness of the Company's internal audit activities.

During the year, the Committee reviewed and approved the
internal audit plan which is devised from assessments across the
Group's operations and aligned to the Group risk framework as
well as business-specific risks. On an annual basis, the Committee
also reviews and approves the Group's internal audit charter which
describes the role and mandate of the internal audit function

The internal audit plan was significantly impacted frem March 2020
by the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, particularly owing to the
Group's impaesition of travel restrictions. During this period, and to
reflect changes to risks across the Group, internal audit resources
were refocused towards business continuity planning, the
maintenance of cantrol envirenments whilst working remotely, and
the Group's ongoing ERP implementation project. During 2020. the
Committee considered the internal audit plan regularly to ensure
that internal audit activity remained aligned to any emerging risks.

At each of the Committee's meetings during the year, the Group's
Head of Internal Audit provided updates on internal audit activities.
Internal audit findings. together with responses from management,
were considered by the Committee and, where appropriate.
chatienged.
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The Committee also keeps the performance and effectiveress

of the internal audit function under review and in deing so it also
assesses the quality. experience and expertise within the internal
audit function. The Committee was satisfied that the internal audit
function continues to operate effectively. despite the challenges
irought by COVID-1g. and that the expertise and level of resource
avallable to internal audit were apprepnate

Since the year end. the Committee has agreed the internal audit
plan for 2021, which wilt continue to be reviewed on a guarterly
basis to respond to emerging risks or challenges in completing the
audit programme as the COVID-19 pandemic continues.

Other activities

The Committee also reviewed its terms of reference. its
effectiveness. the Group's policies on whistleblowing. business
ethics and on the prevention of bribery and modern slavery.

4( '%’O///P
J

John Worby
Chant of the Audit Comnittes
23 Novembor 2020
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Remuneration Committee Report

lan Wood
Chair of the Remuneration Conmmittee

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the
Remuneration
Committee and the
Board, | am pleased to
present the Report of
the Remuneration
Committee for the year
ended 29 August 2020.

Remuneration Committee
Highlights

+ New Directors’ Remuneration
Policy to be considered by
shareholders at January 2021
AGM

*+  Executive benchmarking
exercise undertaken as part
of CEQ succession planning
process

» Appointment of Peter Page and
Kristen Eshak Weldon to the
Committee

Annual Statement

The Committeg's report is presented in the

following sections.

1 This Annual Statement, which
summarises the key considerations
of the Commiittee during the year and
forms part of the Annual Report on
Remuneraticn

2. The Birectors' Remuneration Policy.
which sets out the Policy for the
Executive Directors, Charrman and
Non-Executive Directors The Directers’
Remuneration Policy will be put to
shareholders at the AGM due to take
place on 12 January 2021. Changes to
the previous policy, which was approved
by shareholders at the AGM on g
January 2018, are summarised below.

3. The Annual Report on Remuneration.
which sets out how the Remuneration
Policy has been applied in 2016/20.
the remuneration received by Directors
for the year and how the policy will be
applied during 2020./21. The Annual
Report on Remuneration will be subject
to an advisory shareholder vote at
the AGM.

Performance and Remuneration in
2019/20

Whilst full year performance was ahead
of the Board's revised expectations. it fell
short of the original budget with the result
that no annual bonus was payable relating
te financial targets.

Adjusted profit before tax of £14.9m was
17.4% below the prior year when the Group
achieved a record performance of £18 cm.
Adjusted Earnings Per Share was also down
to 11gp (2019 14.6p).

Non-financial targets were achieved during
the year. in relation to which annual bonus
was payable. The financial and strategic
targets set by the Committee, together
with the resulting remuneration payable to
the Executive Directors, are detailed in the
Remuneration Committee’s Report which
follows.

Strategic Report

| Financial Statements

Key matters for consideration in
2019/2020

The Committee maintains a schedule of
matters for consideration which aligns

with its terms of reference and ensures
that changes to the corperate governance
framework and remuneration best practice
are considered by the Committee when
appropriate, The areas of focus for the
Committee are set out in the Annual Report
on Remuneration on the pages which follow.

During the year, the Committee undertook
a review of its existing Directors’
Remuneration Policy The proposed policy.
which will be put to shareholders at the
AGM In January 202t includes certain
changes designed to ensure that it remains
in line with best practice These are:

1 Arequirement that Executive Directors
retain all shares which vest under the
Company's Long Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP), up to a value egual to 200% of
their basic salary, for a period of two
years following the cessation of their
employment with the Company for any
reason This requirement will apply to all
shares which vest after the Policy takes
effect, regardless of when awards were
made under the Company’s LTIP.

2 Afirm commitment that all Executive
Directors - both current and future
appointments - receive an employer
pension contribution (or cash in lieu
where apgropriate) at a rate that does
not exceed the employer contribution
rate available to the majority of the
Group's UK workforce (currently 4% of
basic salary per annum). Such alignment
of pension contributions will be
achieved by no later than the end of the
Company's current financial year ending
August 2021.

In addition to disclosing CEC pay ratios,
the Group has also reported on its UK-
wide gender pay gap. The Group's largest
subsidiary, Carrs Billington Agriculture
(Sales) Limited has reported on ts gender
pay gap since 2018.
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During the year. the Board appointed Peter Page who became
Non-Executive Chairman on 7 January 2020, After the year end. the
Board appointed Knisten Eshak Weldon as an independent Non-
Executive Director and Hugh Pelham as Chief Executive Officer
Designate Kristen joined the Board on 1 October 2020 Hugh will
be joining the Board on 4 January 2021 and, sugject to shareholder
approval, will become Chief Executive Officer upon conclusion of
the AGM on 12 January 2021. Whilst neither Krsten nor Hugh have
served during the financial year ended 2g August 2020, full details
of their remuneration are set out in the report which follows.

Inflationary salary increases of 1% were awarded to the Executive
Directors effective 1 September 2020, consistent with the broader
workforce.

After the end of the financial year, and as part of the Board's CEO
succession planning process, the Committee reviewed Executive
Director salaries. This highlighted that Neil Austin's remuneration
was significantly below the market. The Committee noted that
Neil's salary had increased by an average of 18% per annum
since appointment in 2613, Reflecting the significant contnbution
made by Neil, and his growth in role since joning the Board. the
Committee determined that it would be appropriate to increase
Neil's basic annual salary by 17 5% from 1 November 2020 to
£251,000. Neil has received consistently strong Board approval
during his tenure and will be integral to a smooth CEO transition.
The Committee carried out a market benchmarking exercise as
part of its review, and noted that the increased salary fell within

a market competitive range (albeit below median). Taking into
consideration changes to pension contributicns for Executive
Directors (as set out in the report which follows). the overall
Increase to Neil Austin's fixed remuneration is 6.3%. With this in
mind, the Committee is confident in its salary proposal. which it
considers to be fair and not excessive,

For 2020721, the maximum annual bonus for the Executive
Directors wili remain 100% of salary, with 25% of any amount
awarded being deferred for two years in the form of shares. The
Committee also intends to grant LTIP awards of 100% of salary.
which will be based upon stretching EPS targets

| hope that you are able to support the Remuneration Committee’s
Report, and the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the forthcoming
AGM on 12 January 2021

| Dt e,
lan Wood

Chair of the Renmuneration Committee
23 Nowvember 2020
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Remuneration Policy

This part of the report sets out the remuneration policy for the
Group and has been prepared in accordance with The Large and
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
{Amendment) Regulations 2013 {as amended).

The current policy was approved by the shareholders at the AGM
which took place on g January 2018, receiving a 99.7% proxy vote
in faveur. This policy builds upon the previous policy and includes
the following notable changes which align with the Corporate
Governance Code 2018 and emerging best practice:

1. Arequirement that Executive Directors retain all shares which
vest under the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP).
up to a value equal to 200% of their basic salary, for a period
of two years following the cessation of their employment with
the Company for any reason. This requirement will apply to all
shares which vest after the Policy takes effect. regardless of
when awards were made under the Company’s LTIP.

2. Afirm commitment that all Executive Directors - both current
and future appointments - receive an employer pension
contribution tor cash in leu where appropriate) at a rate that
does not exceed the employer contribution rate available tc
the majority of the Group's UK workforce (currently 4% of basic
salary per annum). Such alignment of pension contributions will
be achigved during the Company's current financial year ending
August 2021,

Further information on the above changes is set out in the
remunearation policy table on the pages which follow.

The new policy will be put to sharehelders for consideration and
approval at the AGM taking place on 12 January 2021

The rote of the Committee

The primary rele of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy for
executive remuneration. The Committee alse has delegated
responsibility for determining the remuneration and benefits of
the Chairman, the Executive Directors and senior management
including the Company Secretary

Key responsibilities include.

- determining the framework for the remuneration of the Group's
Executive Directers, senior management and Chairman,
reviewing workforce remuneration and related policies;
determining the total remuneration packages. authorising terms
and conditions, and issuing contracts for the Board:
approving the design and determining the targets for
performance related pay schemes of the Executive Directors;
reviewing the ongoing appropnateness and relevance of the
Remuneration Policy to ensure that is it aligned with the culture
and strategy of the Group:
ensuring that the Group rewards fairly and responsibly, with
clear links to hoth corporate and individual performance; and
reviewing the design of any share incentive plans for approval
by the Board and shareholders.
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Overview of policy

When setting the policy for Directors’ remuneration. the Committee
takes into account the overall business strategy. considering the
long-term interests of the Group, with the aim of incentivising the
delivery of rewards to the Group's shareholders, workforce and
broader stakeholders.

The Group's policy I1s that the overall remuneration packages
offered should be sufficiently competitive to attract, retain and
motivate high-auality executives and to align the rewards of the
Executive Directors with the progress of the Group, whilst giving
consideration to salary levels in similar size quoted companies in
similar industry sectors and views of shareholders.

The remuneration package is split into two parts:

+ anon-performance related element represented by basic
salary. benefit and pension; and
a performance related elemerit in the form of an annual bonus
and a Long Term Incentive Plan.

Considerations of conditions elsewhere in the Group

In determining the rermuneration of the Group's Directors, the
Committee takes inte account the pay arrangements and terms
and conditions acress the Group as a whole. The Committee seeks
to ensure that the underlying principles which form the basis for
decisions on Directors’ pay are consistent with those on which pay
decisions for the rest of the workforce are taken. For example, the
Committee takes into account the general salary increase for the
broader employee population when conducting the salary review
for the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Policy table

Element Purpose and link to strategy Policy and approach

However, there are some differences in the Executive Directors'
Remuneration Policy compared to that for the wider workforce,
which the Committee beleves are necessary to reflect the
differing levels of senionty and scope of responsibility. A greater
weight is placed on performance-based pay through the
quantum and participation levels in incentive schemes to ensure
the remuneration of the Executive Directors is aligned with the
performance of the Group and the interests of sharehclders.

In 201G we formalised our employee engagement activities with
Alistair Wannop being appointed as the Board's Representative for
Employee Engagement. Whilst we were able to carry out some initial
planned activities in the first half of the year, the onset of COVID-19
In the second half prevented group sessions with staff groups from
taking place. Employee engagement activities therefore turned
towards regular annocuncements and video blogs on business
activities through the Company’s intranet. CarrsConnect. In late
2020, we launched an employee engagement survey which will for
the first time seek feedback from employees on remuneration.

Consideration of shareholder views

in formulating this policy, the Committee has taken into
consideration the views and policies of shareholders and proxy
agencies. Proposed changes to the policy were communicated

to major sharehelders prior to its formation. and all feedback

taken into consideration. Advice was also taken on best practice
from appropriately qualified remuneration advisers Acn plc and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The views offered to the Committee
have been taken into account in the policy below. The Committee
welcomes feedback from all of the Group's stakeholders at all times

Opportunity

To attract and retain the
best talent.

Base salary

Reflects an individual's
experience, performance
and responsibilities within
the Group

of individual;

increases elsewhere In the Group, and
externail comparator groups (used for reference purposes only)

Salanes are normally reviewed annually with any increase effective

1September each year.

Salary levels (and subsequent salary increases) are set taking into
consideration a number of factors, including:

level of skill, experience and scope of responsibilities

business performance, economic climate and market conditions;

There is no formal
maximum; however,
increases will
normally align with
the general increase
for the broader
employee population
of the Group.

More significant
increases may be
awarded from time
to time to recognise,
for example,
development in

role and change

in position or
responsiioility.

Current salary levels
are disclosed in the
Annual Report on
Remuneraticn.
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Element Purpose and Link to strategy Policy and approach Opportunity

Pension Provides a competitive Executive Directars are entitled to participate in a defined Up to a maximum
and appropriate pension contribution pension arrangement or to receive a cash alternative rate not exceeding
package that 15 aligned to those contributions. that available to the
\Tfllth arrangements aCross Subject to as provided below. Company contributions for all majority of the UK
the Group Executive Directors are at a rate which does not exceed the \x:orkforce {currently

contribution rate available to the majority of the UK workforce 4%}
{currently 4%)

Tim Davies Is standing down from the Board upon conclusion of the
AGM on 12 January 2021. He will remain employed by the Company

until 22 August 2021 and, during such period, will continue to

receive his existing employer pension contribution of 15%.

To the extent that pensicn contributions exceed annual tax-free
allowances, Executive Directors will be entitled to receive payment
through ordinary payrell in lieu of pensicn contributions.

Benefits To aid retention and remain  Benefits provided include permanent health insurance. private Market rate
competitive in the market  medical insurance and life assurance. Relocation benefits may also  determines value.
place be provided in the case of recruitment of a new Executive Director.  There is no prescribed

The benefits provided may be subject to minor amendment from maximum level but

time to time by the Committee within this policy. the Remuneration

The Company may reimburse any reasonable business related Committee monitors

- . . : ‘ : the overall cost of

expenses incurred in connection with ther roie tincluding tax benefits b

thereon if these are determined to be taxable benefils). enents fo ensure
that it remains
appropriate.

Annualbonus Designed to reward Bonus levels and appropriateness of performance measures and Maximum of 160% of
delivery of key strategic weighting are reviewed annually to ensure they continue to support  base salary.
pricrities during the year our strategy. Bonuses are capped at 100% of base salary 25% of any

bonus earned will be deferred into awards over shares. with awards
normally vesting after a two-year period.

Performance is measured against stretching targets. These

may include financial and non-financial measures. Financial
measures will account for the majority and will typically include

a profit related target Performance targets will be disclosed
retrospectively The threshold level of bonus under each

measure is 0%.

The cash element of the bonus is usually pard in November each
year for performance in the previous financial year,

Dividends will accrue on deferral awards over the vesting period
and be paid out either as cash or as shares on vesting and in
respect of the number of shares that have vested.

Amalus and clawback mechanism applies in specific
circumstances including in the event of a material misstatement

of the Group's accounts and also for other defined reasons
including material financial misstatement. reputational damage.
gross misconduct. fraud, error in the assessment of performance
measures and corporate fallure. These provisions apply to both the
cash and deferred slements of the bonus.

Save As You To encourage employee An HMRC approved SAYE scheme is available to eligible staff, The schemes are

Earn (SAYE) involvement and including Executive Directors subject to the limits
encourage greater set by HMRC from
shareholder alignment. time to time.
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Element Purpose and link to strategy Policy and agproach Opporturity

Long Term To motivate and incentivise  Annual awards of performance shares which normally vest after Maximum of 100% of
Incentive Plan delivery of sustained three years supject to performance conditions. base salary for annual
(LTIP} performance over the awards.

Award levels and performance conditions required for vesting are
reviewed annually to ensure they continue to support the Group's Exceptional awards
strategy. Annual awards are capped at the equivalent of 100% of can be made of up to
base salary at the date of award. 200% of base salary.

longer term, and to support
and encourage greater
shareholder alignment.

In accordance with the rules of the LTIP, which were approved
by shareholders at the AGM on 8 January 2013, in circumstances
considered by the Committee to be exceptional single awards in
excess of 100% of base salary can be made. up to a maxsmum of
200% of base salary at the date of the award.

Awards are currently based solely upon an EPS growth measure.
although the Committee reserves the night to introduce further or
alternative performance measures where considered appropriate
from time to time and following consultation with major shareholders.

25% vests at thresheld performance There 15 straight-line vesting
between threshold and maximum.

A two-year post-vesting holding period applies to the net of tax
shares for awards granted in 2018 and beyond.

Amalus and clawback mechanism applies in specific
circumstances including in the event of a material misstatement of
the Group's accounts and also for other defined reasons.

Shareholding To provide alignment with  Executive Directors are required to build up a sharehotding N/A
guidelines shareholder interests, equivalent to 200% of base salary over a five-year period.
Post-cessation To provide alignment with  Executive Directors are requirect to retain all shares acquired on N/A
“—shareholding shareholder interests in the vesting under the Company's LTIP, up to a value equal to 200% of their
long term basic salary. for a period of two years following the cessation of their

employment with the Company for any reason. This requirement will
apply to all shares which vest after the Policy takes effect. regardless
of when awards were made under the Company's LTIP.

Chairman’s and Non-Executive Directors' Remuneration

Non-Executive To attract and retain a Remuneration reflects: Non-Executive

Directorfees  high-caliore Chairman and the time commitment and responsibility of their roles, Directors receive

Non-Executive Directors ' a single fee for
by offering market- +  market rate; and all services to the
competitive fee levels - that they do not participate in any bonus, pension or Company. Levels

of fee are reviewed

] ‘ ‘ ) annually with any
Our policy is for the Executive Directors to review the remuneration  ,-reases normally

of Non-Executive Directers annually following consultation with the aligning with general
Chairman. The Chairman's remuneration is reviewed annually by the o~ oqces for the

share-based scheme

Remuneration Committee. broader employee
The Charrman and the Non-Executive Directors are entitled to population of
reimbursement of reasonable expenses. They may also receive the Group.

limited travel or accommeodation-related benefits in cennection
with their role as a Director.

The Non-Executive Directors will not participate in the Group's
share, bonus or pension schemes.

Non-Executive Directers are engaged for terms of one year subject to
appointment and reappointment at the Company's AGM.
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Remuneration Committee discretions
The Committee will cperate the annual bonus plan and LTIP
according te their respective rules. To ensure the efficient
operation and administration of these plans, the Committee retains
discretion in relation to a number of areas. This is consistent with
market practice and these include (but are not limited to)
the following:
+ the participants;
the timing of grant and/or payment;
the size of grants and/or payments (within the limits set out in
the Policy table), .
the determination of vesting based on the assessment
of performance. ’
the determination of a ‘gocd teaver and where retevant the
extent of vesting In the case of the share-based plans;
treatment in exceptional circumstances such as a change
of control:
making the appropriate adjustments required in certain
circumstances le.g. rights issues, corporate restructuring events,
variation of capital and special dividends):
cash settling awards, and
the annual review of performance measures. weightings and
setting targets for the discretionary incentive plans from year
to year.

The Committee also retains the ability to adjust existing
performance conditions for exceptional events so that they can

still fulfil their original purpose. Any vaned performance condition
would not be materially less difficult to satisfy in the circumstances.

Performance measures and targets

Our Group strategy and business objectives are the primary
consideration when we are selecting performance measures for
incentive plans. The annual bonus 15 based on performance against
a stretching combination of financial and non-financial measures.
Profit before tax reflects the Group's strategic objective to Increase
profit. In addition, Executive Directors are assessed on strategic
chjectives as agreed by the Committee at the beginning of the
year. The LTIP is assessed against growth in adjusted Earnings Per
Share as it rewards improvement in the Group's underlying financial
performance and 15 a measure of the Group's overall financial
success and is visible to shareholders.

Targets within incentive plans that are retated to internal financial
measures, such as profit, are typically determined based on our
budgets. The threshold and maximum levels of performance are
set to reflect minimum acceptable levels at threshold and very
stretching but achievable levels at maximum. At the end of each
performance period we review performance against the targets.
using judgement to account for tems such as foreign exchange
rate movements, changes in accounting treatment, and significant
one-off transactions. The application of jJudgement is important

to ensure that final assessments of performance are fair and
appropriate. In acddition. the Remuneration Committee reviews the
bonus and incentive plan results before any payments are made
to Executive Directors or any shares vest and has full discretion to
adjust the final payment or vesting downwards if they believe the
circumstances warrant it.
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Approach to recruitment remuneration

The remureration package for a new Executive Directar would
be set in accordance with the terms of the Company’s approved
remuneration pelicy in force at the time of appointment.

Buy-out awards

In addition. the Committee may offer additional cash and/or
share-based elements (on a one-time basis or ongoing) when

it considers these {0 be in the best interests of the Group (and
therefore shareholders). Any such payments would be limited to
areasonable estimate of value of remuneration lost when leaving
the former employer and would reflect the delivery mechanism (e
cash and/or share-based), time horizons and whether performance
reguirements are attached to that remuneration.

Maximum level of variable pay

The maximum initial levet of iong-term incentives which may be
awarded to a new Executive Director will ordinarily be limited to
200% of base salary (i.e. 100% annual bonus plus 100% Long Term
incentive Plan). This can be increased to 300% in exceptional
circumstances (e 100% annual bonus plus 200% Long Term
Incentive Plan). These limits are in addition to the value of any
buy-ocut arrangements which are governed by the policy above.

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay etement
awarded in respect of the pricr role would be allowed to pay out
according to its terms, adjusted as relevant to take intc account
the appointment. In addition, any other previcusly awarded
entitlements would continue, and be disclosed in the next
Annual Report on remuneration.

Base salary and relocation expenses

The Committee has the flexbility to set the salary of a new
appointment at a discount to the market level initially, with a series
of planned increases implemented over the following few years
to bring the salary to the appropriate market position. subject to
individual performance in the role.

For external and internal appointments, the Committee may
agree that the Group will meet certain relocation expenses
as appropriate

Appointment of Non-Executive Directors

For the appcintment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive
Director, the fee arrangement would be set in accordance with the
approved remuneration policy in force at that time.

Directors’ terms of employment and ltoss of office

The Group's current policy is not to enter into employment
contracts with any element of notice period in excess of one

year. All Non-Executives are appointed for terms of 12 months
and stand for re-election annually at the Company's AGM, Copies
of Executive Directors’ service contracts and Non-Executive
Directors’ letters of appointment are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal hours of business.
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Dates of service contracts and first appointment to the Board for all Directors are given opposite.

Date of service contract/
letter of appointment

Date first appointed /

to be appointed to the Board Date stood/standing down

Executive Directors
Hugh Pelham

Neil Austin

Tim Davies

23 August 2020
1January 2013
18 October 2012

4 January 2021
1 May 2013

1 March 2013 12 January 2021

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Page 1 September 2020
John Worby 1 September 2020
lan Wood 1 September 2020

1 September 2020
26 July 2020
1 September 2019

Alstair Wannop
Kristen Eshak Weldon
Chris Holmes

1 November 2019
1 April 2015

1 0October 2015

1 September 2005
1 October 2020

7 January 1992 7 January 2020

An Executive Director's service contract may be terminated summarily
without notice and without any further payment or compensation,
excepl for sums accrued up te the date of terminatien, if they are
deemed to be guilty of gross miscenduct or for any other material
breach of the obligations under their employment contract.

The Group has the right tc terminate contracts by making a
payment in tieu of notice. Any such payment will typically reflect
the individual's salary, benefits and pensicn entitiements. The
Group has the ability to mitigate costs and phase payments, if
alternative employment is obtained

There will be no automatic enlitlement to a bonus if an Executive
Director has ceased employment or is under notice However, the
Committee may at its discretion pay a prorated bonus in respect of
the proportion of the financial year worked Such payment could be
payable mn cash and not subject to deferral

Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director
under the Group's share plans will be treated in accordance with
the relevant plan rules, Usually, any cutstanding awards lapse
on cessation of employment. However, in certain prescribed
circumstances, such as death, ill-health, injury, disability,
redundancy, retirement with the consent of the Committee,

or any cther circumstances at the discretion of the Committee,
‘good leaver' status may be applied.

For good leavers under the LTIP, outstanding awards will vest at the
original vesting date to the extent that the performance condition
has been satisfied and be reduced on a pro rata basis to refiect the
pericd of time which has elapsed between the grant date and the
date on which the participant ceases to ke empleyed by the Group.
For good leavers under the deferred bonus plan, unvested awardls
will usually vest in full upen cessation. :

In determining whether a departing Executive Directer should be
treated as a ‘'good leaver', the Committee will take into account the
performance of the individual and Group over the whole period of
employment and the reasecns for the individual's departure.

In the event of a change of control resulting in termination of office.
the Executive Directors are entitled to 12 months base salary.

The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any compensation
for loss of office

Estimates of total future potential remuneration from
2020 pay packages

The tables below provide estimates of the potential future
remuneration of each Executive Director based on the
remuneration cpportunity granted in the 2020/2021 financial year.
Potential outcomes based on different scenarios are provided for
each Executive Director.

The assumptions underlying each scenario are described below.

Fixed Consists of base salary, pension and other benefits.
Base salaries are as at 1 September 20207

Benefits are valued using the figures in the total
remuneration for the 2019 financial year table, adjusted
for any benefits that will not be provided during 2020.

Pensicns are valued by applying the apprepriate
percentage to the base salary.

Tetal
£000
333
262
235

Pension
£000 £000
289 1 43

251 1 10

2252 1 9

Benefits
£000

Base

Tim Davies
Neil Austint
Hugh Pelham

Based on what a Director would receive if performance
was in line with plan and the threshold level was
achieved under the LTIP.

On target

Assumes that the full stretch target for the LTIP are
achieved, and maximum perfoermance is obtained
under both the financiat and non-financial targets set
for the annual bonus scheme.

Maximum

1 Neil Austin's total potential remuneration tor the zozo/21 financial year has been
adjusted to reflect the adjustment made from November 2020 as a conseguence
of the salary review undertaken by the Committee in 2020

2 The fixed remuneraticn for Hugh Pelham has been prorated to reflect that his
appointment commences from 4 January 2021 The full year equivalent would be
a base salary of £337.000. and total fixed remuneration of £351 006
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Annual Report on Remuneration

This part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets cut a summary
of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was applied dunng the
201g/20 financial year.

Remuneration Committee

During the 2019720 year, the Remuneration Committee comprised

lan Wood (Chair), John Worby. Alistair Wannop and Peter Page®. The
Committee met on 5 occasions during the year with all members in
attendance (see page 43)

The Executive Directors may attend meetings of the Remuneration
Committee by invitation and in an advisory capacity only. No person
attends any part of a meeting at which his or her own remuneration
15 discussed. The Chairman and the Executive Directors determine

the remuneration of the other Non-Executive Directors,

During the year the Committee considered:

+ the Committee’s terms of reference:
the Corporate Governance Code and developing remuneration
trends, and their impact cn the activibes of the Committee and
remuneration policy;
the Directors’ Rermnuneration Policy;
levels of basic pay for Executive Directers. the Chairman and
senior management;
the remuneration package to be offered to the incoming
Chief Executive Officer Designate;
performance targets. both financial and non-financial for
Executive Director variable pay;
pay and benefits structures across the broader Group {including
gender pay gap reporting and CEO pay ratios);
the outcome of benus arrangements for Executive Directors
and senior management;
the award, and vesting, of leng-term incentives for Executive
Directors and senior management;
overall remuneration of Executive Directors; and
shareholder feedback relating to changes being proposed to
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

3 Who became a member on 1 November 2019 upon his appointment to the Board
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2020 Remuneration {Audited Information)

In this section we summarise the pay packages awarded to our Executive Directors for performance in the 2020 financial year versus
2019 The table below shows all remuneration that was earned by each individual during the year and includes a single total remuneration
figure for the year.

Total Total Total

Salary/feec Bensfits Pension fixed pay Bonus LTIP* vanable pay rermuneration
£000 2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2018
Executive Directors
Tim Davies 286 2380 1 1 43 43 330 324 43 169 135 271 178 440 508 764
Neil Austin 211 207 1 1 32 31 244 239 38 131 98 200 136 331 380 570
Non-Executive Directors
Chris Holmes: 29 82 - - - - 29 82 - - - - - - 29 82
Alistair Wannop 40 39 -. - - - 40 39 - - - - - - 40 39
John Werby 40 39 - - - - 40 39 - - - - - - 40 39
lan Wood 40 39 - - - - 40 39 - - - - - - 40 39
Peter Page® 75 N/A - N/A - N/A 75 N/A - N/A - N/A - N/A 75 N/A

Benefits consist of private medical Insurance. death in service and income protection Nsurance

Chris Holmes stood down from the Board on 7 January 7020

Peter Page was appeinted to the Board on 1 November 2019

LTIP award values are calculated using the average share pnce over the final three menths of the relevent financial year

DLy oo

2020 Annual Bonus Payout

The annual benus is calculated using a combination of financial and
strategic performance targets which are set with regard to Group
budget, historic performance. market outlock and future strategy

80% of the bonus was based on Group adjusted profit before tax
(PBT). Adjusted PBT is calculated as reported PBT after adding back
or deducting any ene-off items outside of normal trading that were
not anticipated at the time the performance targets were set. such
as acquisition related costs. The Group 1s committed to disclosing
its performance targets retrospectively save where this is prevented
due to commercial sensitivities. For the year ending 29 August 2020,
the PBT targets were set in accordance with the table below.

Threshold target (0%} Basic target (30%) Maximum target (8Q%)
£'000 €000 £'000
17,616 18,543 19.470

Payments are adjusted on a straight-ling basis between the targets

set out above. For the year ended 2¢ August 2020, adjusted PBT for

the Group was £14.9m. This performance was below the threshold '
target and sc nothing was payable to the Executive Directors in

connection with the Group's financial targets.
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Strategic targets, which account for 20% of the bonus, were set at the start of the year. Details of certain targets, tegether with
performance against those targets are provided In the tables below

Tim Davies:
Objective Performance measures Performance outcome
a. Successful ntegration of Development of target business and Business developing in line with acquisition plan with

NW Total intc the Group.

Engineering division in line with Board
strategy and acquisition plan.

Collaboration and joint working
between NW Total and other
Engineenng businesses

Continuing growth of order book over
medium term.

increasingly diverse order book and opportunity pipeline
growth in line with the Board's acquisition plan.

Several collaborative initiabives already underway with
other Engineering division businesses in UK Service &
Manufacturing

Strong performance by business in first year as part of the
Group.

b Centinued integration and

development of Animax
business.

Delivery of first phase of bolus
manufacturing automation including
successful manufacture to required
standards

Growth ininternational sales
and progress with UK business
devetopment strategy.

Boluses successfully manufactured using new automated
process Testing to date shows good quality product which
meets required standards.

International sales growth has been slower than expected
owing to delay in securing product registrations and the
implementation of international business development
strategy.

Identify and deiiver
suitable acquisitions
which align to the Board's
strategy.

Develop pipeline of suitable
acguisition opportunities with a
targeted return which meets the
Board's strategy.

Detailed appraisal of acquisition
oppertunities, with plans presented
to the Board for consideration and/or
approval where appropriate.

Seven acquisition profiles presented to the Board during the
year, with detailed work undertaken and presented to the
Board on three opportunities.

Progression of opportunities delayed owing to COVID-1g but
all potential projects remain under review.

. Continued development

of global Agriculture
strategy.

Development and presentation of
revised global Agriculture strategy.

Implementation of existing strategy
relating to Supplements including
focus on UK dairy and international
markets with demonstrable
year-on-year growth

Implementation of restructunng of
UK Agriculture business.

Significant year-on-year international Supplements growth
{New Zealand sales increased by 407%).

Dairy Supplements launch taking place in Recember 2020
{COVID-19 delayed original planned launch).

Development of strategy through consideration of markets,
customers and competitors, to facilitate transition to new
CEQ in January 2021.

UK Agriculture transformation plan presented to the Board
with implementation on track

Neil Austin:
Objective Performance measure Comments on pragress
a  Successful integration of Integration of business operations All integration work completed successfully, including the

NV Total into the Group

including financial reporting. T,
internal and external audit, tax
compliance, banking and payroll.

on-oarding of staff into the Group's defined contribution
pension scheme.

b

Successful continuation
of Group ERP project.

ERP project progressing in line

with approved revised budget and
delivery timelines

Regular progress reports delivered to
the Board.

Successtul go-lve within two UK
Supplements sites,

Progress with UK Agriculture
business with ge-live planned
for 2021,

ERP go-live for targeted UK Supplements businesses took
place successfully over the year. having been delayed from
March 2020 due to COVID-19.

UK Agriculture project underway and scheduled for go-tive in
May 2021

Revised scope and budget presented to the Board and
approved in August 2020.

Board regularly appraised and project head presented
detailed update to Board on 13 October.
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Comments on progress

a. Support CEQm
developing and delivery
of acquisition pipeline.

Support development of pipeline of
suitable acquisition opportunities and
provide detailed appraisals to the
Board for consideration

Beploy structured process in
respect of

a. acquisition identification;
b. deal evaluation:

c. due diligence; and

d. execution (if appropriate).

Development of a post-investment
appraisal precess for acquisitions

Seven acquisition profiles presented to the Beoard during the
financial year, with detailed work undertaken and presented
to the Board on three opportunities.

Pregression of cpportunities delayed owing to COVID-1g but
all potential projects remain under review.

Post-investment appraisal devised, and appraisais presented
in relation to NuVision Engineering, Inc and Animax Limited.

e Further devetop financiat
reporting.

Develop Board reporting to further
improve understanding of current
performance and incorporate more

More detalled commentary implemented during the year,
and reporting format improved 1o enable better visibitity of
trading performance for each business. Further refinements

forward-looking information.

inclusion of opportunity pipeline
information for Engineering
businesses.

Inctusion of latest year end forecasts

planned for FY21 following discussions with NEDs.

Opportunity pipeline has been developed ready for
implementation,

Farecasting information included from March 2020 and
further detailed forecast information presented at
Board meetings

Extensive new COVID-1g cash flow reporting in place.

In addition ta the above strategic performance indicators, the
Committee has a discretion to consider matters such as good
corperate governance which can include environmental, social and
governance considerations

Following the year end, the Committee reviewed overall outcomes
of the year and noted that good progress had been made towards
the non-financial targets. Noting the financial performance of

the Company, the Committee considered whether it would be
appropnate to exercise its discretion and withhold awarding any
payment to Executive Directors under the non-financial targets

In making its judgement. the Committee took inte account that
good strategic progress had been made. despite significant and
unprecedented external challenges, and also the exceptional
response by the Executive Directors to the COVID-19 pandemic,
which substantially mitigated its impact on the Company. In the
light of those considerations. the Committee determined that a
payment based upon achievement of the non-financial targets
was merited and awarded a bonus of 15% to Tim Davies and 18%
to Nell Austin,

Long Term Incentive Plan

The awards made to Executive Directors in 2017 were subject to
average annual adjusted EPS growth targets over the three-year
pericd ending on 29 August 2020 and from a base adjusted £EPS

of 10.7p. Threshold vesting was set at 3% average annual growth.
The average EPS growth over the three-year pericd was 5.49% and.
accordingly, 5§1.64% of shares under the long-term awards made to
Executive Directors n 2017 vested.

Long Term Incentive Plan awards during the year
(audited)

Long-term awards for 2020 were made to the Executive Directors
in line with the Directors’ Remuneration Pelicy.

Basls Face

on which vaille of End of

Number the awiard the award Threshold performance

of shares wias mads (E000) vesting petiod

Tim Davies 199,810 100% of 286 25% August
salary 2022

Neil Austin 147,859 100% of 21 25% August
salary 2022

The performance conditions which govern the vesting of those
shares are based on annual average growth in adjusted EPS

over a three-year period. The Committee regularly reviews

the performance measures it adopts to incentivise long-term
incentives and considers growth in adjusted EPS to be appropriate
because it directly measures the Group's underlying financial
performance and is visible to shareholders.

Average annual growth I % vesting
3 25
10 100

Nothing is payable below 3%, and a sliding scale cperates between
this and the maximum available.
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All-employee share plans
The Executive Directors are also eligible to participate in the UK all-employee plans.

The Carr's Group Sharesave Scheme 2016 is an HM Revenue & Customs "HMRC" approved scheme open to all staff permanently
employedin a UK Group company as of the eligibility date. Options under the plan are granted at a 20% discount to market value.
Executive Directors’ participation is included in the option table later in this report.

Total pension entitlements (audited)
The table below provides details of the Executive Directors’ pension benefits.

Cashin lieu

Total contnbubions of contributions

to DC-type to DC-type

Normal pension plan pension plan

rebirement age £000 £000

Tim Davies 67 - 43
Neil Austin &7 - 32

Each Executive Director has the right to participate in the Carr's Group defined contribution pension plan or to elect to be paid some or all
of ther contribution in cash. Dunng the year, pension contributions and/or cash allowances in the year were capped at 15% of salary for
existing Executive Directors although contribution rates will be aligned with the majority of the UK workforce before the end of the current
financial year. Newly appointed Executive Directors will receive an employer pension contribution that does not exceed the rate received
by the majornity of the UK workforce (currently 4% of base salary)

Payments to past Directors (audited)
No payments to past Directors have been made during the year

Payments for loss of office (audited)
No payments for loss of office have been made to Directors during the year.

Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company (audited information)
A summary of interests in shares and scheme interests of the Directors who served during the year is given below.

SAYE lunvestad

Total number of without perfarmance Unvested deferred % of zalary
nterests i shares vested LTIP Unvested LTIP conditions) bonus shares held in shares”
Executive Directors
Tim Davies 359,019 115,070 388,447 16,965 71,994 137%
Neil Austin 291,729 84,227 287,450 ' 16,965 54,330 178%
Non-Executive Directors
Alistair Wannop 22,610 - - - - n/a
John Worby 25,000 - - - - n/a
lan Wood 30,000 - - - - A
Peter Page 40,000 - - - - n/a

‘Based upon the average average shale price over the three months of the year ended 2g August 2020

Performance shares (audited information)
The maximum number of outstanding shares that have been awarded to Directors under the LTIP are currently as follows:

201718 award 2018712 award 2019720 award
Tim Davies 222,818 188,637 199,810
Neil Austin 163,095 139,591 147,859
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Assessing pay and performance
In the table kelow we summarise the Chief Executive's single remuneration figure over the past five years, as well as how variable pay
plans have paid out in relation to the maximum cpportunity. None of the remuneration shown is attributable to share price appreciation.

- 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Tirrt Davies Tirm Davies Tirm Dowies Tim Davies I Davies Tim Davies
Single figure of total remuneration 91t 531 308 861 764 508
Annual vanable element (actual award
VErsus maximum opportunity) 100% 55% . 0% 100% 60.41% 15%
Long-term incentive {(vesting versus
maximum opportunity} 100% 37.45% 0% 100% 100% 51.64%

Ten-year historical TSR performance

Graph

Change in Chief Executive’s remuneration
In the table below we show the percentage change n the Directers’ remuneration between the 2019 and 2020 financial years compared

to the other emptloyees

Bave pay/feas Benefits Annual honus
Tim Davies 2% 0% -T4.7%
Neil Austin 2% 0% -71.0%
Chris Holmes 2% N/A N/A
John Worby 2% N/A N/A
lan Wood 2% N/A N/A
Alistair Wannog 2% N/A N/A
Other UK employees -’ 2% 0% -39.2%

Other UK employees

The Remuneration Commitiee considers pay across the entire Group when setting Executive Director remuneration. Annual consultations
take place across the Group between the Executive Directors, senior management and the Group Head of HR Group in relation

to employee pay. The outcome of that exercise, and any changes to employee pay levels, are considered when determining the
appropriateness to changes in Executive Director pay.

Chief Executive Officer pay ratio (unaudited)
The table below shows the pay ratio based on the totat remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer to the 25th. 50th and 75th percentile

of all permanent UK employees of the Group.

CEQ pay 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Total pay (£'coo) 508 763 21 19 25 25 36 34
Pay ratio - - 24 41 17 3 14 22

The Group adopted Option A as defined in The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, as the calculation methodology
for the above ratios. The 25th, median and 75th percentile pay ratios were calculated using the full-time equivalent remuneration for all
UK employees as at 29 August 2020
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Gender pay gap

Since 2017, the Company has reported the gender pay gap within
its largest subsidiary, Carrs Billington Agriculture (Sates) Limited.
Detaited information on the Carrs Billngton gender pay gap can be
feund on the company's website at www.carrs-billington.com This
year, the Committee also considered the gender pay gap across
the whole of the UK Group, which was as follows for the snapshot
period ending 5 April 2019

Difference between men and women

Mean Median
Hourly pay 28% 25%
Benus 63% 63%
Proportion of people awarded a bonus
Mean
Men 48%
Women 35%
Percentage of men/wornen in each pay quartiles
{owest Q2 o2 Highest
Men 51% 67% 80% 86%
Wormen 49% 33% 20% 14%
Relative spend on pay
The table shows the relative impeortance of spend on pay
compared te distributions to shareholders,
2020 2019
£'000 £000 " change
Employee costs 52,890 48,397 9.3
Dividends paid to shareholders 3,344 4,173 -19.9*

*The reduction shown n dividends paid in the year 15 due to the deferral of the internm
dimdend announced on 15 April 2020, That intenm dindend was reinstated and declared
an 15 July 2020 land paid following the year end on 2 October 2026) The total dividends
declared inrespect of the year ended 20 August 2020 rernains unchanged from the
farior year

External appointments
The Executive Directors did not receive any remuneration in
respect of any external appointments in 201920

Implementation of the policy in 2020/21

For 2020/21, the maximum annual benus for the Executive Directors’
will remain 100% of salary. 25% of any bonus will be deferred for two
years in the form of shares. Performance will be assessed aganst
stretching targets which will be 80% financial and 207% strategic.
Financial targets will be based upon adjusted PBT for the Group
onty and will not have any divisional splits. All annual bonus targets
will vest at thresholds of 0%. Due to commercial sensitivity. targets
will be disclosed respectively in next year's report.

The Committee intends to grant LTIP awards of 100% of salary to
Neil Austin and, upoen him joining the Board, Hugh Pelham, with
future vesting conditional upon stretching targets based upon an
adjusted EPS growth measure. Awards will vest at a threshold of
25% for average growth of 3% per annum and will rise en a straight-
line basis to the maximum 100% for average growth of 10% per
annum dunng the performance period.
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Inflationary salary increases were awarded to the Executive
Directors effective 1 September 2020, of 1% which is consistent with
the broader workforce. A salary increase of 17.5% was also awarded
to Neil Austin with effect from 1 November 2020. following the
Executive Director benchmarking exercise undertaken by the
Committee after the year end as part of its CEO succession
planning exercise. Taking Into account the alignment of pension
contributions, the overall increase in fixed remuneration payable to
Neil Austin amounts to 6.3%.

FHugh Pelham will join the Board as CEQ Designate on 4 January
2021 and will take over as CEO upon conclusion of the Company’s
AGM on 12 January 2021, Hugh will receive an annual base

salary of £337.000 per annum. This base salary 1s reflective of an
increase of 16 6% against the previous CEQO base salary. although

a reduction in employer pension contributions means that overall
fixed remuneration is 5.4% higher. The Committee took advice from
remuneration consultants PwC in connection with the proposed
salary which was considered to be commensurate with

market levels.

External advisors

During the year, external advisers Aon plc (Ao and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) were engaged to advise the
Committee on remuneration issues, most notably in connection
with proposed changes to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and on the remuneration offered to the incoming Chief Executive
Officer Designate. Both Aon and PwC are a signatories to the
Rermuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct, which requires that
its advice be objective and impartial. The Company switched from
Aon to PwC due to the Committee’s primary adviser moving roles
Total combined fees paid for the services provided amounted to
£14,000. PwC provides other services to the Company. in relation
to accounting The Committee is satisfied that ne conflicts of
interest in respect of advice provided to the Committee exist. It

15 also satisfied that the members of Aon and PwC teams do not
have connections with the Company which might impair thesr
independence

2020 AGM

At our AGM in January 2020, the Committee's Annual Report on
Remuneration received a g9 6% proxy vote from shareholders in
favour (47.277.997 votes), with 0.3% against (143.90g votes) and 0.1%
withheld (47.175). The previous Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
which was approved at our AGM in January 2018, received a 99.7%
proxy vote from shareholders in favour (48.274.652 votes), with 0.2%
against (138.890 votes) and 01% withheld (74,059 votes).

By order of the Board

[ Oaandsodh.

lan Wood
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
23 November 2020



Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their report and the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended z9
August 2020.

The Company is a pubtic limited company Incorpeorated and
domiciled In England and Wales whose shares are listed and
traded on the London Stock Exchange The address of its
registered office 15 Old Croft. Stanwix, Carlisle, CA3 gBA.

Results and dividends
A review of the results can be found on pages 18 to 19

2020 2019
Interim dividenct 2.25p 2.25p'
Final dividend per share proposed 2.50p 2.50p

1 Inaggregate comprising a first interm dwidend of 1125 pence per share paid
on 31 May 2019 and a second intenm dividend of 1125 pence per share paid on
4 Qctober 2019

Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, the final
dividend will be paid on 15 January 2021 to members on the
register at the close of business on 4 December 2020, Shares will
become ex-dividend on 3 December 2020,

The Group profit from continuing activities before taxation was
£12 5m (201g: £16.3 M. After taxation charge of £1.6 m (2019 £27 m),
the profit for the year s £10.9 m (2019. £13.6 m)

Pensions

Estimates of the amount and timing of future funding obligations
for the Group's pensicn plans are based on various assumptions
including. among other things. the actual and projected market
performance of the pension plan assets, future long-term
corporate bond yields, longevity of members and statutory
requirements.

The Group continually reviews this risk and takes action to mitigate
where possible. In addition. while the Group 15 consulted by the
trustees on the investment strategies of its pension plans, the
Group has no direct control over these matters as the trustees are
directly responsible for the strategy.

Details of the Group's pension plans are In note 28 of the financial
statements.

Employment policies and employees

The Company is committed to its employees and further delails
on the Company's policies and commitment can be found in the
Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 32 to 35.

Environment
The Company's report on sustainability and the environment,
including its carbon footprint. is on page 34.
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Political and charitable donations

During the year ended 2g August 2020 the Group contributed £81,060
(2019: £41.000) in the UK for chantable purpeses. Further details
have been included with the Corporate Responsibility Statement

on pages 34 to 35. There were no political donations during the year
(2019 £nil

Share capital

The Company has a single class of share capital which is divided nto
Ordinary Shares of £0.025 each. The movement in the share capital
during the year 1s detailed in note 29 to the financial statements.

At the last Annual General Meeting the Directors received authority
from the shareholders to:

Allct Shares - this gives Directors the authority to allot shares
and maintains the flexibility in respect of the Company's
financing arrangements. The nominal value of Ordinary Shares
which the Directors may allot in the period up to the next Annual
General Meeting to be held on 12 January 2021, is limited te
£762.346.30 which is approximately 33% of the nominal value of
the issued share capital on 21 November 2019. The Directors do
not have any present intention of exercising this authority other
than in cennection with the 1ssue of Ordinary Shares in respect
of the Company's share option plans. This authority will expire
at the end of the Annual General Meeting to be held on

12 January 2021

Disapplication of rights of pre-emption - this disapplies rights
of pre-emption on the allotment of shares by the Company
and the sale by the Company of treasury shares. The authority
witl allow the Directors to allot equity securities for cash
pursuant to the authority to allot shares mentioned above, and
to sell treasury shares for cash without a pre-emptive offer to
existing shareholders, up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£115.507.00, representing approximately 5% of the Company's
issued share capital as at 21 November 2019. This authority witl
expire at the end of the Annual General Meeting to be held on
12 January 2021,

To buy own shares - this authonty allows the Company to buy
its own shares in the market, as permitted under the Articles of
Association of the Company, up to a limit of 9.240.560 Ordinary
Shares being approximately 10% of the Company’s issued
share capital at 21 November 2019 The price to be paid for any
share must not be less than £0.025, being the nominal value
of a share, and must not exceed 105% of the average middle
market quotations for the Ordinary Shares of the Company as
derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List

for the five business days immediately preceding the day on
which the Ordinary Shares are purchased. The Directors have
no immediate plans to exercise the powers of the Company

to purchase its own shares and undertaken that the authority
would only be exercised if the Directors were satisfied that

a purchase would result in an increase in expected earnings
per share and was in the best interests of the Company at

the time This authority will expire at the end of the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 12 January 2021. The Directors
would consider holding any of its own shares that it purchases
pursuant to this authonty as treasury shares.
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The interests of the Directors, as defined by the Companies Act
2006, 1IN the Ordinary Shares of the Company, other than in respect
of options to acquire Crdinary Shares (which are detailed in the
analysis of options included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 60 to 66). are as follows.

At 29 August 2020 At 31 Augut 2019

Ordinary Shares. Crdinary Shares
T J Davies 359,019 245,929
N Austin 291,729 202,054
P\ B Page 40,000 o]
A G M Wannop 22,610 22,610
2 G Worby 25,000 25,000
' Wood 30,000 10,000

All the above interests are beneficial There have been no other
changes to the above interests in the period from 29 August 2020
to 23 November 2020,

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

In a general meeting of the Company. subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Associatien and to any special rights or restrictions
as to voting attached to any class of shares in the Company (of
which there are none). the holders of the Ordinary Shares are
entitled to one vote in a pell for every Ordinary Share held. No
member shall be entitled 1o vote at any general meeting or class
meeting In respect of any shafes held if any call or other sum
then payable in respect cf that share remains unpaid. Currently all
issued shares are fully paid,

Full detaits of the deadlines for exercising voting rights in respect
of the resolutions to be considered at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 12 January 2021 will be set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting. )

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2008, the Company
may. by ordinary resolution. declare a dividend to be paid to the
members, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended
by the Board. The Board may pay intenim dvidends, and also

any fixed rate dividend. whenever the financial position of the
Company, in the opinion of the Board, justifies its payment. All
dividends shall be apportiched and paid pro rata according to the
amounts paid up cn the shares.

Major shareholders

The Company has been informed of the following interests at 23
November 2020 in the 92,465,833 Ordinary Shares of the Company,
as required by the Companies Act 2006:

Numiber of o of 1zsued

shares  share capital

Heygate and Sons Limited 12,652,870 13.68
BBHISL Nominees Limited (130227 4,270,000 4,62
Nortrust Nominees Limited (BAEMNL) 3973519 4.30
Chase Nominees Limited (ELUCIT) 3,701,254 4.00
Rathbone Nominees Limited 2,646,797 2.86
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Change of control

There are a number of significant agreements across the Group
with provisions that take effect. alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company. such as bank facility agreements,
agreements with strategic partners (including joint venture
agreements), employee share scheme rules and certain project
contracts within the Engineering division. The Directors are not
aware of any agreements between the Company and its Girectors
or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs solely because of a change of control.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and
the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements

in accordance with International Financial Repotting Standards as
adopted by the European Unicn (IFRSs as adopted by the EL) and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements on the same basis

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of
thejr profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently:
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant
and reliable;
state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU.
assess the Group and Parent Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern: and
use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company cor to cease
operations

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positicn of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reascnably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance
Statement that complies with that law and those regulations. The
Directors are responsible for the maintenance and ntegrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information

to auditors

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of

approving the Directors’ Report are listed on pages 38 to 39. Having

made enquiries of fellow Directors, each of the Directors at the

date of this report confirms that:

- they are not gware of any relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware, and
they have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken as a
Director in order to make themself aware of any relevant audit
inforrmation and to establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that infermation.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of

the annual financial report

Each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:
the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole: and
the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole. together with a descripbon of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face.

Each of the Directors considers the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareheclders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board

o

Matthew Ratcliffe
Company Secretary
23 November 2020

Carr's Group ple  Annual Report and Accounts 202G 69



Independent Auditor's Report
To the memibers of Carr's Group plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial staternents of Carr's Group plc ("the Company") for the year ended 2g August 2020 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement. Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive income, Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Consclidated and Company
Statements of Cash Flows. and the related notes, ncluding the Principal Accounting Policies

In our opinion:

- the financial statements give a frue and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 29 August
2020 and of the Group's prefit for the year then ended,
the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EU);
the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as
applied in accordance with the prowvisions of the Cormpanies Act 2006; and
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) ("ISAs (UK and applicable law.

Our responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion 15 consistent with our report to the Audit Committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders on 8 January 201g. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the two
financial years ended 29 August 20z0. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we remain mdependent of. the Group in
accordance with UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities. No non-audit
services prohibited by that standard were provided

Materiality: £1.500.000 (2019 £850.000)
Group financial statements  0.4% of Group revenue (2019: 4.9% of Group profit before tax before certain
as a whole adjusting items)

Coverage Q3% (2019 g2%) of Group profit before tax

Key audit matters Vs 2019

Recurring risks The ympact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the Eurcpean Union on our audit a»
Going concern A
Centract risk in Engineering on over time contracts 4
Parent Company: Valuation of Carr's Group defined benefit pension obligation <>
New: Provision for trade receivables A
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2. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professicnal judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us.
nctuding those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy: the allocation of resources in the audit: and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters, in arriving at cur audit opinion above, together with our
key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, cur results from those procedures These
matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken. in the context of and solely for the purpose of, our audit
of the financial statements as a whoele, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The impact of uncertainties Unprecedented levels of uncertainty We developed a standardised firm-wide approach to the
due to the UK exiting the consideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in
European Union on our All audits assess and challenge the planning and performing our audits. Qur procedures
audit reascnableness of estimates, in particular included:

as descrnibed in the Going concern, Contract - Our Brexit knowledge - We considered the Directors
Refer to page 2g {principal risk in Engineering on cver time contracts, assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk for the
risks), page 31 (viability Valuation of Carr's Group defined benefit Group's business and financial resources compared
statement). page 50 (Audit  pension obligation (Parent Company) and with our own understanding of the risks. We
Committee Report). Provisien for trade recevables key audit considered the Directors’ plans to take action to

. matters below, and related disclosures, and mitigate the risks.

the appropriateness of the geing concern - Sensitivity analysis — When addressing the Going

basis of preparation of the financial concern, Contract nsk in Engineering on over time

staterments (see below). All of these depend contracts. Valuation of Carr's Group defined benefit

on assessments of the future economic pension okiigation (Parent Company) and Provision for

environment and the Group's future prospects trade recelvabiles key audit matters, and other areas

and performance. that depend on forecasts, we compared the Directors’

analysis to our assessment of the full range of

In addition, we are required to consider the reasonably possible scenarios resulting from Brexit

other information presented in the Annual uncertainty and, where forecast cash flows are

Report including the principal risks disclosure required to be discounted. considered adjustments to

and the viability statement and to consider the discount rates for the level of remaining uncertainty.

Directors’ statement that the Annual Report +  Assessing transparency - As well as assessing

and financial statements taken as a whole s individual disclosures as part of our procedures on

fair, balanced and understandable and the Going concern, Contract risk in Engineering on

provides the information necessary for over time contracts. Valuation of Carr's Group defined

shareholders to assess the Group's position benefit pension obligation (Parent Company) and

and perfermance, business modet and Provision for trade receivables key audit matters,

strategy we considered all of the Brexit related disclosures

together, ncluding those in the Strategic Report,
Brexit 1s one of the most significant economic comparing the overall picture against our
events for the UK and its effects are subject understanding of the risks.

to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of

consequences, with the full range of possible  Our results — As reported under the Going concern.,

effects unknown Contract risk in Engineering on over time contracts,
Valuation of Carr's Group defined benefit pension
obligation (Parent Company} and Provisicn for trade
receivables key audit matters. we found the resulting
estimates and related disclosures, and disclosures
in retation to going concern to be acceptable.
However, no audit should be expected to predict the
unknowable factors or all possible future implications
for a company and this is particularly the case in
relaticn to Brexit.
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Going concern Disclosure quality Our procedures included

Refer to page 31 (viability The financial statements explain how the - Benchmarking assumptions - We assessed the

statement), page 51 {Audit Board has formed a judgernent that it s Group's forecast models to identify and challenge

Committee Reportl and appropriate {0 adopt the going concern basis the key underlying inputs and assumptions,

page 85 taccounting policy).  of preparation for the Group and Parent comparing the Group's assumptions used in the
Company. cash flow projections te externally derved data.

- Funding assessment - We assessed the current
That judgement is based on an evaluation of and available committed facilities to understand the

the inherent risks tc the Group's and financial resources available to the Group during
Company's business model and how those the forecast pericd from the balance sheet date
risks might affect the Group's and Company's and considered any related covenant requirements
financial resources or ability to continue and the evidence available regarding whether they
operations over a period of at least a year from will be met.
the date of approval of the financial - Historical comparisons - We assessed historical
statements. forecasting accuracy by comparing forecast cash
flows to those actually achieved by the Group.
Therisks most likely to adversely affect the - Sensitivity analysis - We considered sensitivities
Group's and Company's available financial over the level of availabie financial rescurces
resources over this period were. indicated by the Group's financial forecasts taking
account of reascnably possible (but not unrealistic)
The impact of COVID-19 on the economy adverse effects that could arise from these risks
asawhole, individually and collectively.
The impact of Brexit on the Group’s - Evaluating Directors’ intent - We evaluated the
Agriculture customer base in the United intent of the Directors and the potential mitigating
Kingdom linked to continued uncertainty actions within their controt that they would take to
over the nature of any future trade improve the position should certain nisks
agreements and agricultural subsidies: and materialise.
The potential impacts of Brexit on the - Assessing transparency - We assessed the
Group's supply chain completeness and accuracy of the going concern
disclosures in the financial statements with
There are also less predictable but realistic reference to our challenge of the Directors’ going
second order impacts. such as the potential concern assessment and considered whether they
impact of COVID-19 and Brexit in eroding reflected the risks most likely to adversely affect
customer or supplier confidence, which could the Group's and Company's available financial
result in a rapid reduction of available financial resources over the forecast period, and the risks
resources. associated with the Group's ability to continue as

& going concern.
The nisk for our audit was whether or not those
risks were such that they amounted to 2 Our results - We found the going concern disclosure
material uncertainty that may have cast without any material uncertainty to be acceptable
significant doubt about the ability to continue (2019 result: acceptable).
as a geing concern, Had they been such, then
that fact would have been required to have
been disclosed
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Contractrisk in Engineering Subjective estimate Our procedures included.
on over time contracts

For a significant proportion of its contracts in - Contracts were selected for substantive audit procedures
Contract revenue over time  the Engineering division, the Group recognises  based on quantitative factors, such as financial

(£34 8Bm; 201Q: £27.8m) revenue and profit over time Depending on significance and stage of compiletion, and qualitative
the nature of the performance obligation, the  factors. such as contracts under increased management
Refer to page 50 (Audit Group measures progress based either on the  scrutiny, that we considered to be indicative of risk. Cur
Committee Report), pages  Input method (by considering the proportion  procedures for the contracts selected inctuded:
86 to 87 and 94 laccounting  of contract costs incurred relative to the +  Contract documentation - We inspected the
policy} and pages 97 and 114 estimated total forecast costs at completion}, contract documents and challenged the
to 115 Financial disclosures)  or the eutput basis twith reference to certified identification of performance obligations and the
contract works). method of revenue recognition in accordance with
IFRS 15.
The recognition of contract revenue and +  Contract clauses scrutiny - Our inspection of
profit over time for performance obligations contract decuments included a search for unusual
measured on the input basis is dependent contract clauses or contractual mechanisms and
upon estimates in relation to the forecast total we assessed how these were reflected in the
costs of each performance obligation. which amounts recognised in the financial statements.
inform the percentage of completion +  Challenge key judgements - We obtained the
calculatign, detailed project review papers and challenged the
Group's estimates and judgements in respect of
The recognition of contract revenue and contract forecasts, variations, and the recoverability
profit over time for performance obligations of contract assets via agreement to third-party
-measured on both the input and the output certifications and confirmations, challenge of senicr
basis 15 dependent upon estimates in relation operational, commercial and financial management,
to forecast total revenues, including and with reference to cur own expertise. We also
assessment of contract revenue variations, performed corroborative enquiries of the Group's
which should be recognised only when in-house legal counsel.
evidence supports the conclusion that it is + Independent re-performance - We recalculated
highly probabtle that a sigmificant reversal of progress towards satisfaction of performance
revenue recognised will not occur, obligations to assess the expected revenue and
profit recognition and compared this to the
The effect of these matters s that, as part of amounts recerded.
our risk assessment, we determined that +  Tests of detail - We inspected correspondence
contract revenue, profit recognition and the with customers and third parties. including in
recoverabiiity of contract assets involve a Instances where contract variations have arisen,
high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a to challenge the revenue and costs recorded.
potential range of reasonable outcomes - Remote inspection - For contracts measured
greater than cur materiality for the financial on the input basis in the UK Engineering business,
statements as a whole we performed remote inspections, physically

inspecting the job progress around the year-end
point, and challenging the stage of completion and
forecast costs to complete through observation
and discussion with key personnel.

Cost allocation - We challenged the accuracy of
contract cost allocation through vouching costs to
source documentation and confirming that those
costs related to the stated contract, reviewing
certain controls including timesheet authorisation.
Assessing transparency - We considered the
adequacy cf the Group's contract-related
disclosures, including those in respect of estimates
and judgements relating to contract revenues and
profit recognition.

Our results - e found the revenue and profit margin
recognised on over time contracts to be acceptable (2016
result: acceptable)
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Provision for trade Subjective estimate Cur procedures included:
receivables

There are matenal amounts of trade +  Assessing assumptions - We assessed the
Trade receivables recenvables within the Agriculture division, Directors’ assumptions behind the provision against
{(£49.1m; 201Q: £51.4m) where historically there has been a slower trade receivables, and tested the accuracy of the
collection pattern and for which financial ageing calculations in order to recalculate
Provision stress may have increased during the year management’s provision.
{f1.9m; 2019Q: £1.3m) due to the impacts of COVID-19 and Brexit - Historical comparisons - \We assessed historical
{see abovel. recevable cellection patterns in the Agriculture
Refer to page 50 {Audit division and compared these to current trends.
Committee Report), The effect of these matters is that, as part of +  Tests of detail - We assessed the amount of cash
page g4 (accounting policyy  our risk assessment, we determined that the received against trade receivables at year-end,
and pages 115 to 116 provisicn for trade receivables has a high investigating significant, overdue amounts where
(financial disclosures), degree of estimation uncertainty, with a cash has not been received and for which no
potentiai range of reasonable cutcomes provision has been recognised.
greater than our materiality for the financial - Assessing transparency - Assessing the adequacy
statements as a whole. of the Group's disclosures about the degree of

estimation involved in arriving at the provision

Our results — We found the provision for trade
recewables to be acceptable.

Parent Company: Valuation Subjective valuation Cur procedures included:

of Carr's Group Pension

Scheme defined benefit The Company operates a defined benefit - Benchmarking assumptions - We challenged the

pension obligation pension scheme, the Carr's Group Pension key actuarial assumptions applied (discount rate,
Scheme. The defined benefit obligation in inflation rate and mortality rate) in estimating the

(£65.8m; 2019: £68.0m) respect of this scheme 1s material in the context defined benefit obligation with the support of our
of the overall balance sheet of the Company own pension specialists, including a comparison of

Refer to page 50 (Audit the principal assumptions against market data.

Committee Report), pages  Significant estimates in respect of key - Sensitivity analysis - \We assessed the sensitivity

87 and 94 (accounting actuarial assumptions including the discount of the defined benefit obligation te changes in

policy) and pages 124 to 129  rate. inflation rate and mortality rate, are made certain key actuariai assumptions.

{financial disclosures) in valuing the Company's defined benefit +  Assessment of experts - We assessed the
obligatien (before deducting the scheme’s competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
assets). The scheme is closed to future external actuary engaged by the Cempany.
accrual. but small changes in the assumptions - Assessing transparency - We considered the
and estimates would have a material impact adequacy of the Company's disclosures in respect
on the financial position of the Company. The of the sensitivity of the obligation to changes in key
Cempany engages external actuarial assumpticons.
specialists to assist in selecting appropriate
assumptions and to calculate the obligation. Our results - We found the valuation of the Carr's Group

Pension Scheme defined benefit pension obligation to be
The effect of these matters is that, as part of  acceptable (2019 result: acceptable).
our risk assessment, we determined that the
valuation of the Carr's Group Pension Scheme
defined benefit obligation has a high degree
of estimation uncertainty. with a potential
range of reascnable outcomes greater than
our materiality for the Company's financial
statements as a whole, and possibly many
times that amount. The financial statements
(hote 28) disclose the sensitivities estimated
by the Company.

The acquisitions of Animax and NW Tetal Engineered Solutions took place in the previous financial year. While there are aspects of the
acquisition accounting which are subject to audit procedures in the current year, we have not assessed this as a significant risk in our
current year audit We also continue te perform procedures over the valuation of certain Carr's Group defined benefit pension scheme
assets in relation te the Parent Company However, the assets held are subject to lower estimation uncertainty than in the previous
financial year and therefore we have not assessed this as one of the most significant risks in our current year audit. Therefore. these
items are not separately identified in our report this year.

74 Carr's Group ple  Annual ReporLand Accolnts 2000



Strategic Report

Governance

financial Statements

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the Group revenue Group matetiality
scope of our audit £3956m 1500 000
Materality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at 2019 £4038m) (2019 £850 GO0
£1.500.000, determined with reference to a benchmark of revenue
of which it represents 0.4% (2019 4 g% of Group profit befare tax,
normalised to exclude certain of the year's adjusting items as
disclosed in note 5, of £17.2m) Cur benchmark has changed because
we consider revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as it
provides a more stable measure year on year than Group profit
before tax, and is reflective of the size and complexity of the Group.

————
£900.000

Range of miaternuty

Materiality for the Parent Company financial statements as a whole
was set at £600,000 (2019, £350.000), determined with reference toa
benchmark of Company total assets, of which it represents ©.7%

(2019 0.4%). = £52,500
M s atenents reonte d
We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or B covenue e
3 > L2010 142 500

uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £52,500, in atldition Group materiality
to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds,

Of the Group's 53 (2019; 52 reporting components), we subjected Group revenue Group profit before tax
nine (2019. eight) to full scope audits for Group purposes and two
(2019 two) to specified risk-focused audit procedures. The latter
were not individually financially significant enough to require a full
scope audit for Group purposes, but did present specific individual
risks that needed tc be addressed. We conducted reviews of
financial informaticn (including enquiry? at these non-significant
cormponents to re-examine our assessment that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement.

93%

[Eie) RIS

(PO )

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated opposite

The remaining 7% of Group profit before tax and 1% of total Group
asselis is represented by 14 reporting components, none of which
individually represented more than 5% of any of total Group revenue, Group total assets
Group profit before tax or total Group assets. For these residual
compoenents, we performed analysis at an aggregated Group level
to re-examine our assessment that there were no significant risks of
material misstatement within these.

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the significant : 99%,
areas to be covered. including the relevant risks detailed above and o
the information to be reported back. The Group team approved the
compenent materialities, which ranged from £110,000 to £900.000.
having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across
the components The work on two of the nine components (2019:
two of the eight components) was performed by component
auditors and the rest, including the audit of the Parent Company. was

12019 87

performed by the Group team. B Full scope for Group audit purpose 2020

% Specified risk-focused audit procedures 2020
The Group team held video and telephone conference meetings ZE Full scope for Group audit purposes 2019
with the component auditors. At these meetings, the findings Specifed risk-focused audit procedures 2019
reported to the Group team were discussed in more detail, and any M residuat components,
further work required by the Group team was then performed by the
component auditor,

4. We have nothing to report on going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial staterments on the geing
concern basis as they do not intend te liquidate the Company or the
Group or to cease thewr operations, and as they have concluded that
the Company's and the Group's financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability
to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements {"the going concern period”}
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Independent Auditor's Report cor:nuea

To the members of Carr's Group plc

Currespeonsibility 1s to conclude on the appropriateness of the
Directors conclusions and, had there been a material uncertainty
related to going concern. to make reference to that in this audit
report However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions
and as subsequent events may result In outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the ime they

were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty inthis

Auditors report is not a guarantee that the Group and the Company
will continue in operation.

We identified going concern as a key audit matter (see section 2 of

this report). Based on the work described in our response to that key

audit matter, we are required to report te you if:

+ we have anything material to add or draw attention to in
relation to the Directors’ statement in the Principal Accounting
Policies in the financial statements on the use of the going

concern basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that

may cast significant doubt over the Group and Company’s use
of that basis for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements; or

the same staternent 1s materially inconsistent with our audit
knowledge R

We have nothing to report in these respects.

5. We have nothing to report on the other information in
the Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented
in the Annual Report tegether with the financial statements. Our
opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except as expticitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion
thereon

Our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so.
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work. the
information theren 1s matenally misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that
work we have not identfied material misstalements in the other
information.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

Based solely on our work on the other mformaticn:
we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report;
in our opinion the Information given in those reports for the
financial year i1s consistent with the financial statements: and

in cur opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance

with the Companies Act 2008,

Directors’' Remuneration Report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

Bisclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer-term
viability

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our financial
statements audit, we have ncthing material to add or draw attention
toin relation to
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the Directors confirmation within the Viability Statement on
page 31 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
emerging and principal risks facing the Group, including those
that would threaten its business maodel, future performance,
solvency and liquidity:

the Principal Risks disclosures describing these risks and
explainng how they are being managed and mitigated; and
the Directors' explanation in the Viability Statement of how
they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they considered that period
to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
of assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Viability
Statement. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the context of only
the knowledge acquired during our financial statements audit. As
we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent
events may result in cutcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonabie at the time they were made. the absence of
anything to report on these statements 1s not a guarantee as to the
Group's and Company's longer-term viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to report to you if:
we have dentified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit
and the Directors’ statement that they consider that the Annual
Report and financial statements taken as a whole s fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position and
performance, business model and strategy: or
the section of the Annual Repcrt descnbing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or
a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by
the Company.

\We are required to report to you if the Statement of Compliance with
the UK Corperate Governance Code does not properly disclose a
departure from the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Based sclely on our work on the other information described above
with respect to the Corporate Governance Statement
disclosures about internal control and risk management
systems in relation te financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures:

we have not identified material misstatements therein; and
the information therein is consistent with the financial
statements: and
in our opinion, the Corporate Governance Statement has been
prepared in accordance with relevant rules of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority.



6. We have nothing to report on the other matters on

which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2008, we are required to report to you if. in

our opinion.

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, of returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting recerds and returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law
are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their staterent set out on pages 68 to 69,
the Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view: such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether dus to fraud or error; assessing the Group
and Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations.
or have no realistic alternative but te do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as & whole are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or other irregularities {see belows, or error. and
to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance

is a high level of assurance. but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud,
other irregularities or error and are considered material if. individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided onthe FRC's
website at www.fre.orgukZauditorsresponsibitities.

Irregularities - ability to detect

We identifled areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the financial staterments from
our general commercial and sector experience. and threugh
discussion with the Directors and other management (as required by
auditing standards). and from inspection of the Group's regulatory
and legal correspendence and discussed with the Directors and
other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated identified
laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. This inciuded
communication from the Group to component audit teams of
relevant laws and regulations identified at Group level.

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

e —

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial
statements varies considerably.

Firstly. the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly
affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation {including related companies legislation), distributable
profits legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the
extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations
where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material
effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements. for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified
the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, regulatory capital
and liquidity and certain aspects of company legislation recognising
the nature of the Group's activities and its legal form. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
Directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and
legal correspondence, if any. Through these procedures, we became
aware of actual or suspected non-compliance and considered the
effect as part of our procedures on the related financial statement
items. The identified actual or suspected non-compliance was not
sufficiently significant tc our audit to result in our respense being
identified as a key audit matter.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit. there is an unavoidable
risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements

in the financial stalements, even though we have properly planned
and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards.

For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations (irregularities) is from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less Likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify

it. In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of
non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion.
forgery. intenticnal omissions. misrepresentations, or the override
of internal controls. We are not responsible for preventing
non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance
with all laws and regulations.

8. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This repert is made solely to the Company's members, as a body.

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for nc other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members. as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

u\-i,t‘l (}\ \_(‘!'J

Nick Plumb

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Quayside House

110 Guayside

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE1 3DX

23 November 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 29 August 2020

2020 2016
Notes £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 2,3 395,630 403,905
Casat of siles (343,381 (349,798)
Gross profit 52,249 54,107
Distribution costs (19,507) {18,454
Administrative expenses (21,535) (20,835)
Adiusted! share of post-tax result, of associate 1,191 1,230
Adiusting itenma 5 - (3086)
Share of post-tax resulls of associate 1,191 524
Share of post-tax resulls of joint ventures 1,442 1,453
Adjusted! operating profit 2 16,247 18,930
Adjusting tems 5 {2,407} (1,735)
Operating profit 2.4 13,840 17,195
Finance income 7 313 463
Finance costs 7 (1,656) (1,349
: Adjusted! profit before taxation 2 14,904 18,044
 Adjusding items 5 (2,407) (1,735
Profit before taxation F4 12,497 16,309
Taxation 8 (1,575) (2,685)
Profit for the year 10,922 13,624
Profit attributable to:
Eauity shareholders 9,533 12,049
Non-controlling interests 1,389 1,575
10,922 13,624
Earnings per ordinary share (pence)
Basic 10 10.3 13.1
Diluted 10 10.2 12.8
Adjusted! 10 1.9 14.6

i Adjusted resuits are consistent with how business performance 1s measured internaly and 1s presented to aid comparability of performance. Adjusting tems are
disclosed in note § An alternative performance measures glossary can be found on pages 143 to 144
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Consolidated and Company Statements
of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 29 August 2020
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Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Noles E'000 £000 £'000 £000
Profit for the year 10,922 13,624 6,739 6,768
Other comprehensive (expensel/income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign exchange translation (lossesl/gains arising on translation of
overseas subsidiaries (2,552) 1,857 - -
Net investment hedges (54) 37 - -
Taxation credit/{charge) on net investment hedges 10 (N - -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial gains/{losses) on retirement benefit asset
- Group 28 142 (1,845) 142 {1,845)
- Share of asscciate 408 88) - -
Taxation {chargel/credit on actuanal gains/(losses} on retirement
benefit asset:
- Group 19 27) " 314 27) 314
~ Share of associate (96) 15 - -
Other comprehensive {(expensel/income for the year, net of tax (2,169) 283 115 (1,531
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,753 13,907 6,854 5,237
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity sharehclders 7.364 12,332 6,854 5,237
Non-controlling interests 1,389 1,575 - -
8,753 13,907 6,854 5,237
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets

As at 2g August 2020

{Company Number 000G8221)

Group Company
2020 2020 o
[T £'000 £'000 L OG0
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwll n 32,041 32.877 - -
Other mtangible ausets " 9,171 9,318 334 376
Property. plant and equipment 12 38,259 41,917 ns 158
Rigght of-use assets 13 14,856 - 457 -
investment property 14 158 164 - -
investment in subsidiary unde-takings 15,18 - - 32,568 26,538
Investment in asseciate 15,16 14,307 13,392 245 245
Interest in joint ventures 1517 10,551 9,671 272 272
Other nvestments 15 73 76 - -
Financat assets
- Non-current 1ecenvables 22 20 22 34,735 16,413
Retirement benefit asset 28 8,037 7.769 8,037 7,769
Deferred tax assets 19 - 410 - 285
127,473 115,616 76,766 52,056
Current assets
Irventaries, 20 40,961 46,270 - -
Contract assets 21 8,14 9,466 - -
Trade and other recaivables 22 51,686 56,349 2,617 36,185
Current tax assets 23 1,535 - 1,954 840
Financial assets
- Derivative financial mstruments, 27 3 - - -
- Cash and cash equivalents 24 17,571 28,649 7.984 6,778
19,870 140,734 12,555 43,803
Total assets 247,343 256,350 89,321 95,859
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial labiltes
- BO”G\‘VIHQS 26 {11,420) (23,856) (2,450) (7,806)
- Lenses 13 {2,778) - {97) -
Contiact bapibties 21 (1,061) (1,269) - -
Trade and other payaoles 25 (55,522) (62,653) (1,660) (2,533)
Current {ax habilities (33) (1,010) - -
(70,814) (88,788) (4,207) (10,339
Non-current Liabilities
Financial labilities
- Borrowings 26 (25,021) (28,586) (22,947) (26,84¢6)
- Leases 13 11,1711 - (354) -
Deferrced tax liabilities 19 {4,783) (4,987 {1,365) (1,327
Other non-current labilities 25 (1,385) (2,999 - -
(42,360) (36,572) (24,666) (28,167)
Total liabilities M3,174) (125,360) (28,873) (38,506)
Net assets 134,169 130,990 60,448 57,353
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets connucc

As at 29 August 2020
(Company Number 000g8221)
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Group Campany
2020 2019 2020 2uid
R E'000 1 000 £'000 000
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 29 2,312 2,299 2,312 2,299
Share premium 9,176 9,165 176 2,165
Cther reserves 4,436 7,922 780 1,693
Retained earnings:
At the beginning of the year 94,864 87,843 44,196 42,623
Effect of IFRS 18 adoption (931) - {7} -
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders 9,533 12,049 6,739 6,768
Other changes in retained earnings (2,264) (5,028) (2,748) (5,195)
101,202 94,864 48,180 44,196
Total shareholders’ equity 17,126 14,250 60,448 57,353
Non-controlling interests 17,043 16,740 - -
134,169 130,990 60,448 57,353

Total equity

The comparative year presented has not been restated for the adoption of IFRS 16.

The financial statements set out on pages 78 te 140 were approved by the Board on 23 November 2020 and signed on its behalf by

O
T2 N A
Tim J Davies Neil Austin
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 29 August 2020

o oy -
3 D Resta ned - el g
Larniye gere Tuast Lo,
) (00 JoTees F OO0
As at 2 September 2018 - 1,427 4,259 202 87,843 105157 15,685 120,842
Profit for the year - - - - - - 12,049 12,049 1,575 13,624
Other comprehensive
mcome/(expense} - - - - 1,887 - (1,604) 283 - 283
Totat comprehensive
ncome - - - - 1,887 - 10,445 12,332 1,575 13,907
Dividends paid - - - - - - (4,173) 4,173) (588) (4,761)
Equity-settled share-based
payment transactiens - - - 53 - - 759 812 68 B8O
Allotment of shares 14 24 - - - - - 38 - 38
Purchase of own shares
held in trust - - (13 - - - - (13) - {13}
Reclassified from labilities - - - a7 - - - 97 - a7
Transfer - - 13 - - (3) (10) - - -
At 31 August 2019 2,299 9,165 - 1,577 6,146 199 94,864 14,250 16,740 130,990
As previously reported at
31 August 2019 2,299 9,165 - 1,577 6,146 199 94,864 114,250 16,740 130,990
Effect of IFRS 16 adoption - - - - - - (931) (931) (511) (1,442)
At 1 September 2019
{restated) 2,299 9,165 - %577 6,146 199 93,933 13,319 16,229 129,548
Profit for the year - - - - - - 9,533 9,533 1,389 10,922
QOther comprehensive
(expensel/income - - - - {2,596) - a27 (2,169) - (2,169)
Total comprehensive
(expensel/income - - - - (2,596) - 9,960 7.364 1,389 8,753
Dividends paid - - - - - - (3,344) (3,344) (588) (3,932)
Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions - - - (843) - - 691 (152) 15 (137}
Excess deferred taxation on
share-based payments - - - - - - 27 (27) (2) 29)
Allotment of shares 13 1 - - - - - 24 - 24
Purchase of own shares
held in trust - - (58) - - - - (58) - (58)
Transfer - - 13 - - (2) (11} - - -
At 29 August 2020 2,312 9,176 (45) 734 3,550 197 101,202 17,126 17,043 134,169

The equity compensation reserve reflects the cumulative accounting impact. at the balance sheet date. of the fair value of the share
schemes over the vesting perods. The movement on the equity compensation reserve is taken through the consolidated income
statement Ouring the year £601.000 (2019: £759.000) was transferred from the equity compensation reserve to retained earnings in

respect of options exercised in the year.

The Group has opted to use previous revaluations of property made under UK GAAP as deemed cost. On adoption of I[FRS the
revaluation reserve was reclassified to other reserves

t Restated for the adoption of IFRS 16 (note 37)
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity Stacee Repor

For the year ended 29 August 2020 Governance

Financial Statements

ST T oare Fotained Tota
I Far-i~gs Equ:,
> 2 000 L0
Al 2 September 2018 2,285 9,141 - 1,537 42,623 55,586
Frofit for the year - - - - 6,768 6,768
Otner comprehensive experse - - - - (1,531 (1,531
Total comprehensive ncome - - - - 5,237 5,237
Dividends paid - - - - (4173) (4,173)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - - - 59 520 579
Excess deferred taxat.on on share-based payments - - - - ) 2 2
Allotment of shares 14 24 - - - 38
Purchase of own shares held in tryst - - (13) - - 3)
Reclassified frony babitihies - - - 97 - 97
Transfer - - 13 - a3 -
At 31 August 2019 2,299 9,165 - 1,693 44,196 57,353
As previously reported at 31 August 2010 2,299 9,165 - 1,693 44,196 57,353
Effect of IFRS 16 ndoption - - - - (7} (7}
At 1 September 2019 {restated)t 2,299 9,165 - 1,693 44,189 57.346
Profit far the year - - - - 6,739 6,739
Other comprehensive iIncome - - - - 1ns 115
Total comprehensive income - - - - 6,854 6,854
Dividlends paid - - - - (3.344) (3.344)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - - - {(868) 519 (349)
Excess deferred taxation on share-based payments - - - - (25) (25)
Allotment of shares 13 1 - - - 24
Purchase of own shares held in tryst - - (58} - - (58)
Transfer - - 13 - {13) -
At 29 August 2020 2,312 9,176 (45) 825 48,180 60,448

The equity compensation reserve reflects the cumulative accounting impact, at the balance sheet date, of the fair value of the share
schemes over the vesting periods The movement on the equity compensation reserve is taken through the iIncome statement where
it relates to employees of the Company and to investment in subsidiaries where it relates to employees of the subsidiaries During the
year £519,000 (2019 £520,000) was transferred from the equity compensation reserve to retained earnings and £212.000 (2019
£301,000) was transferred from the equity compensalion reserve to investment in subsidiaries in respect of options exercised in

the year.

Restated for the adoption of IFRS 16 {hote 37)
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Consolidated and Company Statements

of Cash Flows
For the year ended 2g August 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018

Noa £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cash flows from eperating activities
Cash generated from/used in) continu.ng operations 31 22,639 16,004 (2,520} (2,587)
nterest received 176 178 1,774 1,765
interest paid {1,696) (1,276) (729) (547)
Tax (paicisrecerved (3,059) (2,306) {571) 492
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 18,060 12,600 (2,046} {(877)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes (net of overdraft/cash acquired! - (9,868) - -
Contingent/deferred consideration paid (2,659) (379) - -
Dividends received fram subsidianes - - 8,856 6,805
Net receiptApayment) of loans to subsidianes - - 1,130 12,623)
Dividend received from associate and joint ventures 701 7 588 588
Other loans 718 79 - -
Purchase of intangible assets (1,459) (1,310) - (89)
Proceeds fram sale of property plant and equipment 421 831 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {6,569} (4.471) - (46)
Purchase of own shares, held in trust (58) 13) (58) (13)
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (8,905) (14,420Q) 10,516 (5,378)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 29 24 38 24 38
New bank loans and movement on RCEF 1,889 14,430 (1,500) 13,763
l.ease principal repayments (3971 1,278) {114} -
Repayment of borrowings (2,459) (2,4%3) (2,400) 1,613)
Recept of loans from subsidianas - - 110 -
Decrease In other borrowings (14,508) (1.352) - -
Diwvidends paid ta shareholders - 9 (3,344) (4,173) {3,344) (4,173}
Diwvidends paid to related party (588) (588) - -
Net cash (used inl/generated from financing activities (22,157) 4,584 (7,224) 8,015
Effects of exchange rate changes (989) 526 {40) 63
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (13,991) 3,290 1,206 1,823
Cash and cash eqguivalents of peginring of the year 24,295 21,005 6,778 4,955
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 10,304 24,295 7,984 6,778
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prinCipal Accounting POliCies Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

Basis of accounting

The consolidated and Company financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretation Committee (HFRS IC") interpretations
endorsed by the European Union {'EU") and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The Company is a public imited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales whose shares are listed and traded on
the London Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office 1s Cld Croft. Stanwix. Carlisle, Cumbria CA3 gBA

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabitities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the
amount, event or actions. actual resuits ultimately may differ materially from the estimates.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently, other than where new policies have been adopted.

The consolidated and Company financial statements are prepared under the historic cost convention as modified by the revaluaticn of
certain financial assets and financal liabilities including dernvative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The accouriting policies for the Group and Company are detailed below:

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared cn a going concern basis which the Directors consider to be appropriate for the following
reascns

The Directors have reviewed the Group's operational forecasts and projections for the three years to 2 September 2023 as used for the
viability assessment, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, together with the planned capital
three-year statement over that same period. The Group is expected to have a sufficient level of financial resources available through
operating cash flows and existing bank facilities for a peried of at least 12 months from approval of these financial statements ("The
going concern pericd™). The Group has operated within all its banking covenants throughout the year. In addition, the Group's mamn
banking facility is in place until November 2023 and an invoice discounting facility has been recently renewed for a three-year period to
August 2023

For the purpose of assessing the appropriateness of the preparation of the Group's accounts on a going concern basis, the Directors
have prepared financial farecasts for the Group. comprising profit before and after taxation, balance sheets and cash fiows through to
the year ended 2023. The forecasts consider the current cash pesition. the availability of banking facilities and an assessment of the
principal areas of risk and uncertainty, paying particular attention to the impact of COVID-1g, These forecasts have been sensitised for
severe but plausible downside scenarios The scenarios tested included significant reductions in profitability and associated cashflows
linked to the six principal risks highlighted in the viability statement on page 31 with consumer demand affecting all business units,
additional impacts on Agriculture business units from Brexit and a larger impact on Engineering from disruption caused by COVID-19.
The results of this stress testing showed that, due to the stability of the core business. the Group would be able to withstand the impact
of these severe but plausible downside scenarios occurring over the period of the financial forecasts.

In addition, several other mitigating measures remain available and within the control of the Directors that were not included in the
scenarios. These include withholding discretionary capital expenditure and reducing or cancetling future dividend payments.

In all the scenarios, the Group complied with its financial bank covenants, operated within its existing bank facilities. and met its
Liabilities as they fall due

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet their iabilties
as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated financial statements comprise Carr's Group plc and all its subsidiaries, together with the Group's share of the results
of its associate and joint ventures. The financial iInformation of the subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures is prepared as of the same
reporting date and consolidated using consistent accounting policies. Group inter-company balances and transactions, including any
unrealised profits arnsing from Group inter-company transactions, are eliminated in fuil.

Results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during the current and prior financial year were included in the financial
statements from the effective date of control or up to the date of cessation of control. The separable net assets. both tangible and
intangible, of the acquired subsidiary undertakings were incorporated inte the financial statements on the basis of the fair value as at
the effective date of the Group acquiring contrel.
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Basis of consolidation continued

An investor controls an investee when it s exposed. or has right, to variable returns from its involvement with the imvestee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Control requires power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
vanable returns and the ability to use power to affect returns. Subsidiaries are entities that meet this definition of control

Assaclates are entitiss over which the Group has significant influence but not control. generally accompanied by a share of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control, established by contractual
agreement. Investments in associates and Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity meth?d, The Group's share of its
associate’'s and joint ventures' post-tax results are recognised in the income statement. and its share of movement in reserves s
recognised in reserves The cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. The Group's
nvestment In associate and joint ventures includes any goodwill arising on acquisition. If the Group's share of losses in an associate or
Jjomnt venture equals ar exceeds its investment in the associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

All subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purchase method. The cost of a business combination is measured as the aggregate
of the fair values, at the acquisition date. of the assets given. liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group The identifiable assets, liabkilities and contingent Labilities of the acquiree are measured nitially at fair value at the acquisition
date. irrespective of the extent of any non-centrolling interest. The excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill. Contingent
consideration is measured initially at fair value and is revalued to fair value at each subsequent period end until the period in which

it is settled.

Acquisition related costs are expensed to the consolidated income statement in the year they are incurred.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transacticns with parties external to the Group

Employee share trust

IFRS 10 requires that the Group consclidate a structured entity where the substance of the relationship between the parties indicates
that the Group contrats the entity. The employee share trust sponsored by the Group falls within this category of structured entity and
has been accounted for as if it were, in substance. a subsidiary.

Currency translation
The financial statements for the Group's subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures are prepared using therr functional currency. The
functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entrty operates The presentation currency of the

Group and Company s sterling.

Foreign currency transactions are translated inte the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation, at exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. of monetary assets and liabilities denomirfated in currencies other than the functionalt currency are
recognised in the consolidated iIncome statement

The balance sheets of foreign operations are translated into sterling using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date and the income
statements are translated into sterling using the average exchange rate for the year Where this average 1s not a reasonable
approxmation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevalling on the transaction dates, the exchange rate on the transaction date is
used. Exchange differences arising are recognised as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. On disposal of a foreign operation
any cumulative exchange differences held in shareholders' equity are transferred to the consolidated income statement.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when the Group transfers control over a product or service to its customer. Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Inter-segmental

transactions are on an arm's length basis.

The Group recognises revenue both at a point in time and over time. Revenues generated by the Group's Agriculture division are
recognised at a point in time. Revenues generated by the Group's Engineering division are recognised over time where the contract
with the customer does not create an asset with an alternative use and where there ts an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. Where this 1s not the case revenue is recognised at a point In time.

In respect of contracts that meet the criteria to be recognised over time. revenue is calculated on the basis of the stage of completion
of each contract.

The Group applies a singte method of measuring progress for each performance obligation satisfied over time and applies this method
consistently to similar performance obligations and in similar circumstances. Depending on the nature and circumstances of the
performance obligation, the stage of completion is determined with reference Lo either:

The proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the total estimated contract costs: or

The proportion that contract cutput is delivered towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation with reference to

certified contract works,
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Revenue recognition continued

Revenue 1s recognised for a performance obligation satisfied over time only if the Group can reasenably measure its progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance chligation. In circumstances when it cannet reasonably measure the outcome, but expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation. the Group recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs
incurred The Group would not be able to reasonably measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
if it lacks reliable information that would be required to apply an appropriate method of measuring progress.

Where it is probable that contract costs will excedd total contract revenue the expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense
In the consclidated income statement.

Contract modifications such as variations to the original order are not accounted for until they are approved by the customer Where a
modification to an existing contract occurs, the nature of the modification 1s assessed to determine whether it represents a separate
performance obligation required to be satisfied by the Group or whether it Is a medification to the existing performance obligation

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a conseguence, the Group does not apply the time value of money to its transaction prices.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are only recognised when it is expected that these costs will be recovered.
Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an
expense when incurred, unless those costs are explicitly chargeable to the customer regardless of whether the contractis obtamned.
Where the amortisation period of an asset that would otherwise have been recognised is one year or tess, the incremental costs of
obtalning a contract are expensed when incurred.

Caontract assets exist when the Group has a night to consideration in exchange for gocds or services transferred tc a customer when
that nght is conditional on something other than the passage of time (e.g. future performance). Contract liabilities exist when the Group
has an obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has already received consideration.

Retirement benefit asset/obligation
The Group offers vartous pension schemes to employees including a defined benefit pension scheme and several defined
contribution schemes.

The assets of the Group's pension schemes are held separately from those of the Group and are invested with independent
investment managers.

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the consolidated iIncome statement in the year to which they relate.

Carr's Group Pension Scheme

The asset recognised in the consolidated and Corppany balance sheet at the year end is the fair value of scheme assets at the balance
sheet date less the present value of the defined benefit obligation. Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit asset annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denorminated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

The service costs, Including pension scheme administrative costs, are included in operating profit in the consolidated income statement.

A credit is made within interest which represents a net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the year to the net defined benefit asset at the beginning of the year. The net interest amount also takes into account changes to the
net asset during the year

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
consolidated and Company statement of comprehensive income. The pension scheme deficit or surplus, to the extent considered
recoverable, is recognised in full on the consclidated balance sheet.

IFRIC 14 confirms that where a company has an unconditicnal right te a refund of surplus from a defined benefit pension plan during
the Lfetime of that plan or when it winds it up, and where there is expected to be surplus assets, there 1s no limit on the asset the
Company can show on its balance sheet, Following a review of the Scheme's Trust deed the Directors believe that there is a right

to recognise, and that there 1s no restriction on the recognition of, the 1AS 19 pension surplus. At 2g August 2020 and 31 August 2019,
the conselidated and Company balance sheet recognises the full surplus on the Carr's Group defined benefit pension scheme

The Company intends to recover the surplus through reduced contributions.

Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension Scheme
One of the Group's subsidiaries is a participating employer in the Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension Scheme, which is a multi-employer
defined benefit pensicn scheme. Note 28 provides further information on this scheme and how it has been accounted for in the

consolidated accounts -
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Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at
fair value at the date of the grant The far value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments i1s expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Far value 1s measured by use of a valuation model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted. based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

At each balance sheet date the Group revises its estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest. Changes to the fair value
recognised as a result of this are charged or credited to the consolidated income staterment with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity compensaticn reserve

Interest
Interest is recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recagnised in the consolidated income statement in the year in which they are incurred

Operating segments

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal financial information about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™ to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their
performance. The CODM has been identified as the Executive Directors.

The CODM considers the business from a product/services perspective. Reportable operating segments have been identified as
Agriculture and Engineerng.

Adjusting items

Adjusting items that are material by size and/or by nature are presented within their relevant income statement category, but
highlighted separately on the face of the income statement. ltems that management consider fall into this category are also disclosed
within note 5 to the financial statements The separate disclosure of profit before adjusting items s consistent with how business
performance is measured internally and is presented to aid comparability of performance. Events which may give rise to adjusting
items include, but are not imited to, amortisation of acquired intangible assets, adjustments to contingent consideration arising from
fair value revaluation, restructuring/closure costs including the impairment of assets to recoverable amounts, acquisition related costs
and the past service costs in respect of GMP equalisation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in
the net farr value of the net identifiable assets, liahilities and contingent liabitities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
centrolling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the CGUs, or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount. which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recogmsed immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed

Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 31 August 1998 has not been reinstated and would not form part of the gain or
loss on the disposal of a business

Otherintangible assets
Cther intangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation commences
when assets are available for use The expected useful lives, over which the assels are amortised, are generally as follows:

Customer relationships 1-10 years
Brands 6 - 25 years
Know-how 15 years
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Other intangible assets coninued

Proprietary technology 5 - 13 years

Development costs 5 - 15 years

Patents and trademarks contractual Ufe s .
Contract backlog 3years

Software 3 - 10 years .

Intangikble assets are amortised on a straight-line basis.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date. The cost of separately
acquired intangible assets comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cests of preparing the assets for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are recognised in the conselidated income statement as incurred Development costs are recoghised as an asset
only to the extent that specific recognition criteria. as set out in IAS 38 'Intangible assets’ relevant to the propesed application are met
and the amount recognised is recoverable through future economic benefits.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and eguipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
purchase price and directly attributable costs

Freehold land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. For all other property, plant and equipment. depreciatien 1s
calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate cost less residual values of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings up to 50 years
Leasehold improvements shorter of 50 years or lease term
Plant and equipment 3to 20 years

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate. at each financial year-end.

Assets not fully constructed at the balance sheet date are classified as assets in the course of construction When construction is
complete these assets are reclassified to the appropriate heading within property, plant and equipment Depreciation commences
when the asset is ready for use.

The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor equipment is charged to the conselidated income statement as incurred; the cost of major
renovations and improvements is capitalised

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the
consolidated income statement

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held for long-term rental yields. Investment properties are carried in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation Freehold land is not depreciated. For all other investment property, depreciation is calculated on a
straight-line basis to allocate cost less residual values of the assets over therr estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings up to 50 years

The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor equipment is charged to the consclidated income statement as incurred: the cost of major
renovations and improvements is capitalised.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the
consolidated income statement,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment where there are any events or changes in circumstances that would indicate potential
impairment. in addition, at each reporting date. the Group assesses whether there is any indication that goodwill may be impaired. Where
an indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use and is deemed for an individual asset. If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs I1s determined
Discount rates reflecting the asset specific risks and the time value of money are used for the value in use calculation.
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inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosf and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicabie. direct labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Where appropriate,
cost is calculated on a specific identification basis. Otherwise inventories are valued using the first-in first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs te be incurred in marketing
selling and distribution,

Provision has been made. where necessary, for slow-moving, obsolete and defective inventories

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated and Company statement of cash flows comprise cash at bank and in
hand, money market deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are presented in borrowings wiathin current liakilities in the consolidated and Company balance sheet.

Grants
Grants received on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred income and taken to the consolidated income statement in equal
annual instalments over the expected usetul lives of the assets concerned

.

Revenue grants and contributions are taken to the consoclidated income statement in the year to which they apply.

Leases

The Group and Company adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with effect from 1 September 2019 and have applied the standard using the
modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is recognised at the date of initial
application. Further details of the effect of the adopticn of IFRS 16 and the new accounting treatment for leases where the Group or
Company is the lessee can be found within the new standards and interpretations section on pages 91to 93.

Prior to transition to IFRS 16 the accounting policy was:

Leases are classified as finance leases at inception where substantially alt of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
Group. Assets classified as finance leases are capitalised on the consolidated balance sheet and are depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the term of the lease. The interest element of the rental obligations is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the period of the lease using the actuarial method.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease Leasehold land s normally classified as an operating lease. Payments made to acquire leasehold land are included in
prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life of the lease. Any incentives tc enter into operating leases are recognised as a
recduction of rental expense cver the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Tax
The tax charge comprises current tax and deferred tax.

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the amounts payable to tax authorities In respect of the Group's taxable profits.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated and Company financial statements. Deferred tax arising from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction,
other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, is not
recognised Deferred tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the asset 1s realised or the liability is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on tem:porary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. except where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, unless the tax relates to items recognised directly in shareholders’ equity, in which

case the tax is recogrised directly in shareholders’ equity through the consolidated and Company statement of comprefhensive income,
*
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Dividends
Final equity dividends to the shareholders of the Company are recognised in the year that they are approved by the shareholders.
Intenm equity dividends are recognised in the year that they are paid.

Dividends receivable are recognised in the period in which they are received.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group and Company

Financial instruments issued by the Group and Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two

conditions

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group or Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group or Company:
and

(b) where the instrument wilt or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments. it is either a non-derwvative that includes no
obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition 15 not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and
share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilties are recognised on the consolidated and Company balance sheet when the Group and Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group and Company classifies Its financial assets under the measurement categories of amortised cost, for non-derivative
financial assets, or measured subsequently at fair value through either profit or loss or comprehensive income.

Non-derivative financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets include contract assets, trade and other receivables and non-current receivables. As these categories
of financial assets do not carry a significant financing element, expected credit losses are measured using the simplified impairment
approach. This requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised upon the initial recognition of the asset.

Non-derivative financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group primarily uses forward foreign currency contracts, options and currency swaps tc manage its exposures to fluctuating
foreign exchange rates. These Instruments are inibially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair value at
each balance sheet date.

The Group's policy is to hedge its international assets and it has designated foreign currency loans as a hedge against net investment
in foreign operations. The portion of the gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that is
determined as an effective hedge is recognised directly 1n equity. The gain or loss on any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. The Group continues to apply IAS 39 for the purposes of hedge accounting as
permitted by IFRS g.

New standards and interpretations
From 1 September 2019 the following became effective and were adopted by the Group and Company

IFRS 16 'Leases’

IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over ncome tax treatments’

Amendment to IFRS g 'Financial instruments on prepayment features with negative compensation’
Amenaments to IAS 28 ‘Investment 1n associates, on long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
Annual improvements to IFRSs —+2015-2017 cycle

Amendments tc 1AS 19 'Employee benefits’

With the exception of IFRS 16, which is discussed further below. the adoption of the above amendments and interpretations has had no
Impact on the Group or Company’s profit for the year or equity.
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New standards and interpretations cont:inuad

IFRS 16 'Leases’

The Group adopted IFRS 16 with effect from 1 September 2019 and has applied the standard using the modified retrospective
approach under which the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is recognised at the date of initial application. The Group
has restated its operung total equity position as at 1 September 2019 by a charge of £1.4m. Comparative infermation has not been
restated and is therefore still reported under 1AS 17 'Leases’ and related interpretations. To assist comparability, note 37 shows the
balance sheet as at 2g August 2020 had the Group continued to adopt IAS 17 and related interpretations.

Under the modified retrospective approach used, the Group has recognised right-cf-use assets at therr carrying amounts as if the
standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the Group's Incremental borrowing rate at the date of
intial application. The liability has peen recognised at an amount egqual to the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initiat application. The incremental borrowing rates used range
between 1.3% - 3.88% based on the geographic location and economic circumstances of the lessee. In addition to existing finance
leased assets with a net book value of £4.4m being transferred to right-of -use assets on transibon. £11.5m of right-of-use assets were
recognised on transition in respect of leases previously accounted for as operating leases under JAS 17. An additional lease cbligation
of £12 7m was recognised on transition in respect of leases previously accounted for as operating leases. Prepayments and accruals
totalling £0.5m have been removed from the balance sheet on transition

A reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 August 2019 to the lease Liabilities recognised on transition is as follows:

£'ooo
Cperating lease commitments as at 31 August 2019 12,917
Disceunted using the Incremental borrowing rate at initial application (4,365)
Inclusion of Liabilities beyond break clauses 3,746
Cther 357
Lease labilities (excluding existing finance lease liabilities) at 1 September 2015 12,655
Included within® .
Current labilities . 1,618
Non-current liakilities 11,037

12,655

The following table shows the effect of IFRS 16 on the income statement for the period ended 29 August 2020

£'co0
Reduction in lease expense recognised 2,100
Depreciaticn on right-of-use assets (1,832)
Profit on disposal of right-of-use leases 37
Interest cost of lease liabilities (362)
Impact on Group profit before tax (57)

Depreciation, profit on disposal and interest costs in the table above exclude amounts in respect of finance leases that would have been
recognised in the income statement under IAS 17

On transition to IFRS 16 the Group has applied the following practical expedients permitted by the standard on a lease-by-lease basis:
Accounting for leases where the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application as short-term leases:
Exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and
Use of hindsight. such as in determining the lease term if the contract centains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group is not required to make any transition agjustment for leases previously classified as cperating leases under |AS 17 where the
underlying asset is of low value

The Group s also not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application. IFRS 16 permits
the Group to apply the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as containing a lease under |AS 17 and IFRIC 4
‘Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease’
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New standards and interpretations continued
The Group leases properties, motor vehicles, plant and machinery and other equipment. Lease terms are negotiated on an individuat
basis and contain a wide range of terms and conditions.

Prior to transition to IFRS 16 the Group classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases in accordance with |AS 17
Payments made under operating leases were charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Since transition to IFRS 16, leases are racognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group Each lease payment is allccated between the repayment of the lease liability and finance cost.
The finance cost I1s charged to the Income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The nght-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis and is alse subject to regular impairment reviews.

Assels and liabilities ansing from a lease are initiatly measured on a present value basis. Lease labilties include the net present value
of the following lease payments.
- Fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

Variable lease payments that are based on an index or rate;

Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,

The exercise price of a purchase option If the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease. If the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discppnted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where this cannct be determined. the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate is used. being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with simitar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability:
Any lease payments made at of before the commencement date less any lease incentives received:
Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
Restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease

At the commencement date of property leases the Group normally determines the lease term to be the full term of the lease.
assuming that any option to break or extend the lease is unlikely to be exercised and it is not reasonably certamn that the Group witl
continue in oceupation for any period beyond the lease term. Leases are regularly reviewed and will be revalued if it becomes likely
that a break clause or option to extend the lease is exercised.

Payments assoclated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the income statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets generally compnise minor
office and IT equipment.

The Group acts as lessor in certain operating lease arrangements Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis in the income
statement. The Group Is not a lessor in any finance lease arrangements

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business combinations'

Amendments to |1AS 1 and 1AS 8 to update the definition of material _

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS g and |AS 39 addressing issues affecting financial reporting in the period leading up to IBOR reform
Amendment to IFRS 16 "Leases’ for COVID-19 related rent concessions

It is considered that the abovke amendments will not have a significant effect on the results or net assets of the Group or Company.

Significant judgemeénts, key assumptions and estimates
Application of certain Group accounting policies requires management to make Judgements, assumptions and estimates concerning
the future as detailed below

The following is considered tc be a significant judgement

Leases

Significant judgements are required. principally in respect of property leases. when determining the lease term where the lease
contains break clauses or options to extend the term. The Group has several property leases and in valuing these assets the Group has
assumed that the right to break or extend the lease is not exercised. The Group will regularly moniter these leases and should this
assumpticn become inappropriate the asset and liability will be revalued accordingly.
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Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates continued

The foliowing are considered to be accounting estimates:

Valuation of pension obligations

The valuation of the Group's detined benefit pension scheme is determined each year following advice from a qualified independent
actuary and can fluctuate based on a number of external factors, Such factors include the major assumptions as shown in the table in
note 28 and actual returns on scheme assets compared to those predicted in the previous scheme valuation. It is reasonably possible. on
the basis of existing knowledge. that cutcomes within the next financial year that are different from the assumption could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets affected. Anincome statement charge of £7G5.000 has been recognised in the
pricr year in respect of the impact of GMP equalisation for the Carr's Group Pension Scheme The carrying value of the defined benefit
pension scheme surplus at 29 August 2020 is £8.0m (2019 £7.8m). More information on the pension scheme I1s given in note 28.

The associate’s defined benefit pension scheme 13 also subject to these estimation uncertainties. In addition. for assets falling within the
IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy level 3 inputs category, there is exposure to estimation uncertainty when estimating the asset value. The
surplus being recognised by the assocrate is £3.5m (2019: £1.gm) of which the Group recognises 49% in its balance sheet withinits
‘Investment in associate’

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of gocdwill must be assessed for impairment annually, or more frequently if there are indications that geodwll
might be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units to which goodwilt is allocated. Value in
use is dependent on estimations of future cash flows from the cash generating unit and the use of an appropriate discount rate to
discount those cash flows to their present value.

No impairment was identified in the current or prior year. The carrying value of goodwill at 29 August 2020 is £32.0m (2019: £32.gm).
Further detaiis of cash generating units and stress testing performed on the carrying values can be found in note 11

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

The financial statements include a provision for impairment of trade recevables that is based on management's estimation of
recoverability. There 1s a risk that the provision will not match the trade receivables that ultimately prove to be irrecoverable The
carrying value of the provision for impairment of trade recewvaples at 2g August 2020 is £1.9m (2019: £1.3m). Further details of the
provision, including ageing profile, can ke found in note 22.

Revenue recognition on contracts

For contracts recognised over time the Group recognises revenue and profits based on the stage of completion. This requires
management to make an assessment of performance obligations under each contract, the ability to reasonably estimate the outcome,
and the point at which those obligations have been fulfilled. Management uses estimates and judgements when assessing the total
expected costs on a contract The Group has controls in place to review and monitor the estimates used to ensure they are appropriate.
Disclosures relating te the disaggregation of revenue for revenues recognised at a point in time and revenues recognised over time can
be found in note 3.

Valuation of acquired intangible assets

IFRS 3 'Business combinations' requires the acquiror to fair value identifiable assets of an acquired business including intangible
assets. The fair value of intangible assets 15 determined using valuation techriques such as relief-from-royalty. replacement cost and
multi-period excess earnings method. These techniques and models require iInputs based on estimations such as forecasted profits,
technology obsolescence rates, royalty rates, discount rates and useful economic lives.

There were no acquisitions during the year. In the prior year the Group made acquisitions with a combined intangible asset fair value of
£6.6m (note 11).

Valuation of contingent consideration

IFRS 3 'Business combinations' requires contingent consideration to be measured initially at fair value and then subsequently revalued
to fair value at each period end. This involves an estimate of expected future payments based on profit forecasts and discount rates to
reflect the time value of meney. Further details in respect of contingent consideration. including movements in fair value between
opening and closing balances, is included in note 27.
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Financial Statements

1 The Company has tahen advantage of the exemption under section 208 of the Comparnies Act 2005, from presenting its own Income
staterment The profit after ta« tor the year dealt with in the accounts of the Company was £6 739 000 (2019 (6 768.000)

2 Segmental information

The chief aperating deaisior makert CODM™ pas been identified as the Executive Directors. Management has identified the operating
segments based on mternal financial nformatian reviewed by the CODM The CODM considers the business from a product/services
perspective Reportable operatng segments bave been identifled as Agriculture and Engineering. Central comprises the central
business activities of the Gioup's nead office. which earns no external revenues Operating segments have not been aggregated for the
purpose of determ\mng reportable segments

Agriculture arms 10 provide for wl farrming reguirements [t denives its revenue from the sale of animal feed. feed blocks and animal
health products together with setal sales of farm equipment, fuels and farm consumables

Engineerng dernves its revenue from the provision of engineernng services and the design and manufacture of bespoke equipment for
use in the nuclear naval defence ail and gas and petrochemical industries Products includée manipulators, rabotics. spacabst

fabrication and precision machining

Performance 15 assensed usirg operating profit For mternal purpeses the CODM assesses apaerating profit before material adjusting
items inote 5) consistent wath the prosentation in the financial statenents,

Inter-segmental transactions are ale undertaken on an arm's length basis

The Group has operations in the UK and overseas In accordance with IFRS 8, entity-wide disclosures based on the geoyraphy of
operations s also prezented The geographical analysis of revenue 1s presented by revenue origin

The segmental nformation for the year ended 26 August 202015 as follows

Agriculture Engineering Central Group
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total segment revenue 342,627 53,020 - 395,647
inter-segment revenue {5) (12) - a7
Revenue from external customers 342,622 53,008 - 395,630
Adjustec EBITDA 14,798 6,754 (781y 20,771
Depreciation amortisation and profil/loss) on disposat of non-current assets 4,031y (2,944) (182) (7,157}
Share of post-tax results of associate and jomt ventures 2,633 - - 2,633
Adjusted operaung profit 13,400 3,810 {(963) 16,247
" Adjusting items (note &) 42  (2,449) -  (2,407)
Operating profit 13,442 1,361 (963) 13,840
Finance income 313
Finance costs (1,656)
I Adjusted! profit before taxation 14,904
! Adjusting itenms (note &) (2,407)
Profit before taxation 12,497
Adiosted roaulls e Conwlen vt Saw Bs reas nerformarae woneasured rrermatly ond s presented o ad comoaran ity of serformance Adjuslrgitemsare
i losed nrote 5
sovegn opfore e s donroo 1o anarlzton profitAlesst oo e d soocal ot fon-cLrrert aseets, ard srare of poct-tasceoult - of as_ociate and jond

Carr's Group ple  Annual Report and Accounts 2020 95



Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

2 Segmental information continued
Assets and liabilities

Agriculture Engineering Central Group

£'000 E'Q0D £'000 £'000

Segment gross assets 145,413 83,852 18,078 247,343
Segment gross Liabilitios (53,509) (31,156) (28,509) (113,174)

The segmental infornmation for the year ended 31 August 2019 15 as follows This has besn restated to present Central costs separately

This s to ald compardbility with the segmental information presented for the current year

sgrceftare ey Cotden Cratn

r GOG = 030 = 007

Totac segment revenye 357,399 46,556 - 403,855
Inter-segment revenue an {(39) - (50)
Revenue from external customers 357,388 46,517 - 403,905
Adjusted EBITDA 14,914 7,796 (1,554) 21,156
Depreciation amortisation and profit/iloss) on disposal of non-current assets (2,946) (1,879) (84) (4,209
Share of post tax resuits of assocate tadjusted and jont ventures 2,683 - - 2,683
% Adjusted- operating profit : . 14,651 5,917 (1,638} 18,930
| Adiusted items (531 65 {1,269) (1,735)
Operating profit 14,120 5,982 (2,907} 17,195
Finance mecome 463
Finance costs (1.349)
Adjusted: profit before taxation 18,044

Adjusted items (1,735)

Profit before taxation 16,309

Adje e resalts cre Coasintar: L 32 ness aodfurmara: woreeasured nterrally ana s

drclosedir aoie i

preseniod woad companibi ty of performance Adjonting emsare

Sarringy pelore rterenr tay ddopara s o armarteat 00 prolit/leos o t1e dispodael of raccur enl asseny and share of 9ont-ax resalls of cesociate ard joint

weenlure: .

Assets and liabilities

A cutuee Engmnesnng Centra, Group
[Relels! LONT L 000 L1000
Segment gross assets 157,685 82,436 16,229 256,350

Segment gross Labilities (67,476) (25,678) (32,206) (125,360)

Entity-wide disclosures
Revenues fronm external customers are denved from the sale of products/services by indiidual business segment The breakdown of

revenue by business segment s provided above

Hevenues from external customers

2020 200

£'000 L OO0

UK 337126 346,824
Europe 10,680 12,012
LISA 46,186 43,734
New Zoaland 1,628 1,298
Other 10 37
395,630 403,905
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2 Segmental information continued
Non-current assets

2020 P S]
New

UK Europe UISA Zealand Total ik Luro e

£000 E£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 LOLE (RIa]

Goodwill 17,855 5,929 8,257 - 32,041 17,855 5,997
Other intangble assets 7.684 519 967 1 9,171 7,516 560 1,242 - 9,318
Praperty plant and equirzment 21,670 8,183 8,373 33 38,259 25,690 8,629 7,561 a7 41,917
Right-ol-use assets 14,283 - 573 - 14,856 - - - - -
Investment property 158 - - - 158 164 - - - 164
Investment in assoclate 14,307 - - - 14,307 13,392 - - - 13,392
Interest injoint ventures 2,928 3,462 4,161 - 10,551 2,470 3,102 4,099 - 9,671
Other investments 50 1 22 - T3 50 1 25 - 76
Non-current recevables - - 20 - 20 - - 22 - 22
Retirement benefit asset 8,037 - - - 8,037 7,769 - - - 7,769
86,972 18,094 22,373 34 127,473 74,306 18,289 21574 37 115,206

Major customers
There are no revenues from transactions with ndividual castomers which amount to 10% or more of Gioup revenue

3 Revenue
Disaggregation of revenue
n accordance with IFRS 15 Revanue from Contracts wath Customers’ the following table presents the Group's reported revenue

disaggregated based on the timing of revenue recognition

2020 2019

e ol e e g i £'000 000
Over time 34,790 27,840
Ata pointin time 360,840 376,065

395,630 403,905

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

2023
2021 2022 onwards Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Total transaction price allocatad to the remaining performance obligations 23,968 4,660 569 29,197

The total transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations represents the contracted revenue to be earned by the
Group for distinct goods and services which the Group has promised to deliver toits customers These include promises which are
partially satisfied at the pernod end or those which are unsalisfied but which the Group has committed to providing In deriving this
transaction price, any element of vanable revenue)s estimated at a value that is ighly probable not to reverse in the future

The transaction price above does not nclude any estimated revenue to be earned on framework contracts for which a firm order or
Instruction has not beon recerved by the customer

A . B
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4 Operating profit

2020

E'000
Group operating profit 15 stated after icreditimgl/chargng
Amortization of grants (55) (54)
Loss/iprofit) on disposal of pronsrty, plant and equipment 265 (30
Profit on disposal of nght-of-use ieases (37) -
Depreciation and imparrment of property plant and equipment 4,567 4,804
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets 2,462 -
Depreciation of owned wivestmaent property & 6
Amortimation of intangble assets 1,513 943
Business combination expenses note 5} - 509
Restructuring/closure costs (noter 53 1,964 437
Foreign exchange losses/gams) 57 (153)
Dervative financial instruments (gamsk/ losscs (3) 26
Operating lease charges (IAS 17) - 2,094
Resaareh and development expense 2,066 3111
Auditors’ remuneration .
Audit services ICompany £1/13/. 2010 D6.719) 75 73
The auchting of accounts of subaidianes of the Company pursuant to legislabion (including overseas) 290 i84
Total audit services 365 257
Included within Group operating profit 15 the following n respect of Investment property leased to.
and occupied by. external paitics
Rental income (42) (40)
Operating expenses 43 42

1 2

The auditors’ remuneration of £365 000 Includes & £50,000 additional fee rased in the year in respect of the audit of the prior year

5 Adjusting items

In reporting financial informaton the Group presents alicrnative performance measures CAPMSs™), which are not defined or specified
under the regurements of IFRS These APMs are consistent with how business performance i measured internally and therefore the
Group believes that these APMs provide stakeholders with additional useful iInformation on the performance of the business The
following adjusting items have neen adcded back to reported profit measures

2020 019

£'000 § L0

Amortisation of acquired |ntangible assets O} 1,380 814
Adjustments to contingent considsration (i) (937) (1,126}
Restructuring/closure costs 1,964 437
Business combinaton expenses () - 509
Past service cost — Groups v - 795
Past service cost - share of associate (vt - 306
2,407 1735

(i} Amortisation of acquired ntangible assets which do not relate to the underlying profitability of the Group but rather relate to costs
arising on acquistion of businesses,

(i Adjustments to contmgent conmideration arise from the revaluation of contingent consideration In respect of acquisitions to far value
at the year end Movemaontsin fail value anse from changes to the expected payments since the previous year end based on actual
results and updated forecasts Any increase or decrease in fair value 1s recognised through the income statement

) Restructunng/closure costs include redundancy costs and impalrments of assets to recoverable amounts The mpairment to
proporty. plant and eqguipment was £239.000 (2019 £nil)

(vl Business combination expenses relate to acquisition costs incurred

(v) The scheme actuary's estimated effect on the Group's, and share of associate’s. pension scheme habilibes following the equalisation
of Guaranteed Minmun Penwions  GMPs') For further details of the past service costs see note 28
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6 Staff costs
The tables oelow include Directers

2020
£000

Wages and salares 44,627

Social secunty costs 5,045

Ponsion costs 2,683

Share based payments (137) 880

52,218 48,397

Inctuded within pension costs 15 a charge of £13.000 (2019 £816.000) in respect of the defined benefit pension schome The prior year
charge includes £705.000 i1 respect of GMP equalisation Turther details of this charge can be found in note 28

The average monthly numbet of employees dunng the year was made up as follows

2020 2010

Number PaLnaber

Sales office and nanagement 638 614
Manufactute and distribution 572 539
1,210 1,153

Key management 1s considered 1o be the Direclors of the Group

The following amounts, are disclosed 1In accordance witn Schedule 5 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups {(Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008

2020 201
£000 [Yelals}
Aggiegate Directors remuneration’ 1,004 1,012
Aggregate pension contnbations 20 20
Aggregate amount of gains on sxerciae of share options: 474 a7

1,498 1,503

wafter sy cocr hieeaf oeaswen feos Bonases poy e bie o of senmon and secefr e kind

Goruncas poad b e 20t e delecd Corte Bulios peraon seneme

s Uarnareslmedm tha year Aareapee of ne ©F
I'he number of Directors in the detined contnbutian pension scheme during the year was two (2019 two)

Further details of the Directors emolwuments, pension benefits and share options are given in the Remuneration Committee Report on
pages 5310 66

7 Finance income and finance costs

2020 208

£000 FOCO
Finance income
Bank interest 151 127
Net interest on the net defined benefit retirement assot (note 28) 139 284
Cther interest 23 52
Total finance ncome 313 463
Finance costs
Interast payable on bank overdrafts (149) m7n
Interest payable on bank loans and other borrawings {934} (1,016)
Interest payable on lenges (461) (B2)
Cther interest ma2) (134)
Total finance costs (1,656) (1,349

Interest payable on leases recogrises an additional £0 4m following the adoption of IFRS 16
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8 Taxation
(a) Analysis of the charge in the year

2020
£'000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax
Current year 1,077 1,447
Adyjustment inrespect of prior yeare, (150) 45
Fareign tax
Current year 356 1,557
Adjustment in respect of prior years, (217 109
Group current tax 1,066 3,158
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of utming difterences
Current year 450 (357)
Adjustnment in respect of prior years, 59 (1ea)
Group deferred tax (note 19) 509 {473)
Tax on profit 1,575 2,685

Deferred tax recognised m equity 1s disclosed in note 19

(b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year s lower (2019 lower) than the rate of corporation tax i the UK of 19% (201§ 16%) The differences are
explaned below

2020 2010
£000 § 000
Profit bofore taxation 12,497 16,309
Tax at 19% (2019 194%) 2,374 3,099
Effects of
Tax effect of share of results of associate and joint ventures (500) 452)
Tax exffect of expenses that are not allowable in determining taxable profit 184 180
Tax eflect of non-taxable nconwe (633) (482)
Effects of different tax rates of foreign subsidianes 83 256
Effects of changes in deferred tax rates 304 24)
Unrecognised deferred tax on losqes . 71 70
Adiustment in respect of prior years (308) 38
Totat tax charge for the year 1,575 2,685

The tax offect of expenses that are not allowablo in determining taxable profit ncludes adiustments for share-based payments,
depreciaton and amortisation of non-gualifying assets, and other expenses disallowable for UK corporalion tax The prior year also
Includes business combination expenses (note 5) which were treated as disallowable for tax purposes

The tax effect of non-taxable iIncome ncludes adjustments to contingent censideration (note 5) and the effect of ncome within the
patent box regqime

(c) Change in corporation tax rate

The prevailing UK corporation tax rate of 1g% was substantively enacted as part of the Finance Act 2019 on 12 March 201g. The rate was
due to reduce to 17% from April 2020 however in the budget on 12 March 2020 it was announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax
wall be held at 19% Deferred tax s therefore provided at 19% UK deferred tax batances at the prior year end were provided at 17%
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g Dividends

2020

Equity £'C00
Second intenm paid for the year ended 31 August 2019 of 2 :25p per 2 5p share (2018: 1 075p) 1,034
Final dividend for the year ended 31 August 2019 of 2 5p per 2 5p share (2018 2 35p) 2,310
First interm paid for the year ended 29 August 2020 of nil per 2 513 share (2019 1 125p0) -
3,344

Since the year end an interm dividend of £2.079.551. being 2 25p per share has been paid This includes the deferred first interim
dividend that. under normal circumstances, would have been paid in May 2020 This was deferred due to the uncertainty associated with
the COVID-1G pandermic The financial statements do not reflect the dividend payable

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 2g August 2020 to be considered by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 15
£2.310.612 bewng 2 50 per share making a total for the year of 4 751 (2019 4./50) Shares held in treasury do not carry entitlement to a
dradend The financal statemearnits do not reflect this proposed final dividgend os payable

10 Earnings per ordinary share
Carmings per share are calculated by reference to a weighted average of g2.346.828 shares (2019 91.828.015} 0 1ssue during the year.

Adhusting items disclosed in note 5 that are charged or credited to profit do not retate to the underlying profitability of the Group The
Board believes adiusted profit before these items provides o useful measure of business perfarmance. Therefore an adjusted camings
per share 1s presented as lodows

2020 20m)

Earnmings Ferrimings

Earnings per share Farrings Ber e

£'Qo0 pence £ O00 peLe

Carnings per share - basic 9,533 10.3 12,049 13.1

Adjusting items

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1,380 1.5 814 0.9
Adjustments to contingent considoration {937) {1.0) 1326} .2)
Restructuring/closure costs 1,964 2.1 437 0.5
Business combination expenses - - 509 0.6
Past service cost — Group - - 795 0.9
Past service cost — share of associate - - 306 0.3
Taxation effect of the above: (639) (0.7) (367) 0.4)
Non-controlling intoerest in the above (273} (0.3) (57) 0.1
Carmings per share - acljusted 11,028 1n.e 13,360 14.6

Far dituted earrungs per share the welghted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential Ordinary Shares The potentially dilutive Ordinary Shares, where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the
Company's Ordinary Shares during the year, are disclosed in note 30
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10 Eamings per ordinary share continued

2020
Weighted
average Earnings Loy
Earnings number of per share [rer o e
£'000 shares pence - luly] SIS
Earnmgs per share 9,533 92,346,828 10.3 12,049 91,828,015 1341
Effect of dilutive secunties
Share Save Scheme - 978,350 (0.1} - 748,265 [(¢A}]
Long Term Incentive Plan - 405,866 - - 1,771,378 (Q.2)
Diluted earnings per share 9,533 93,731,044 10.2 12,049 94,347,658 12.8
Weighted ey
Adjusted average Earnhings Aol A
earnings number of pershare earinng . e of
£'000 shares pence = Qo0 shares nense
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 1,028 93,731,044 11.8 13,360 94,347,658 14.2
11 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Group Company
tecr s ea,
e ot Comracl
Cooivd aaly coaLs sraclern ke, acklog Software Teta. Gultende
b 00 Y KA GO0 £ 300 r Q00 [Rile]
Cost
At 2 Geplember 2018 26,813 89 530 1,699 235 1,100 30,466 228
Exchange differences 606 - 7 g6 15 B 73z -
Subsidiares acquired 7,999 3,303 1,999 1,302 - - 14,603 -
Additions - - 178 8 - 1,165 1,351 89
AL 31 August 2010 35,418 3,392 2,714 3,105 250 2,273 47,152 47
Fxchange differences (836) - 12) {(133) (21 (10) {1,012) -
Additions - - 37 6 - 1,416 1,459 -
Disposals - - - - - (3 (3) -
At 29 August 2020 34,582 3,392 2,739 2,978 229 3,676 47,596 417
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 2 September 2018 2,541 89 76 461 85 719 3,971 -
Exchange differences - - 1 26 g9 7 43 -
Charge for the year - 122 461 205 80 75 943 4
Al 31 August 2019 2,541 211 538 692 174 801 4,957 41
Exchange difterences - - [¢-}] {46) 18) (13) (86) -
Charge for the year - 653 474 243 73 70 1,513 42
At 29 August 2020 2.541 864 1,003 889 229 858 65,384 83
Net book amount
A1 September 2018 24,272 - 454 1,238 150 3831 26,495 328
Al 31 August 2019 32,877 3181 2,176 2,413 76 1,472 42,195 376
At 29 August 2020 32,041 2,528 1,736 2,089 - 2,818 41,212 334
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11 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
Dunirg the prior year goodwal: of £7900 000 arose on acquisit.ons Goodwill represented the excess of the consideration patd over the
Group's interest n the aet far vatue of the net identifiable assets, labilbes and contingent Labilities acquired

For the purpose of mparment testing goodw.ll acquired in a business combmation 15 allocated to cash generating units that are
expocted to benefit from the synergies of the combination

The carrying value of goodwill has peen atocated to the fallowing cash generating units:

2020 219

£000 1000
Carrs Billington Agrculture 1Sales) Lid 5,285 5,285
Carrs Agriculture Litd - UK feed blocks 2,068 2,068
Anmal Feed Supplement Inc 19 21
Walischmiller Engineernng GmbH 5,929 5,997
Carr's Engineering Lt - Chirton profit centre 2,526 2,526
Nuvision Engimeermg Inc 8,238 2,004
Animax Ltad 1,742 1,742
NW Total Engineered Solutions to 6,234 6,234

32,041 32,877

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of overseas subsidianies has been ratranslated at the balance sheet date

Durning the year there was an internal restructuning of Carrs Billington Agriculture (Sales) Ltd. the primary purpose of which was to better
leverage economies of scale within the business and to operate more efficiently acioss ts core components rather than operating as
regronal profit centres working semi-independentty of each other Internal financial reporting, such as the budget for the year to August
2021 and forecast information for the four years to August 2025, have boeen prepared on this basis Given that it is no longer possible to
separate revenues and cash inflows over histonc profit centres, it 1 no longer appropriate to view the profit centres as cash generating
units for this business A reassessment of cash gonerating units was undertaken, and it was determined that the business comprised one
inteqgrated cash generating unit which 15 consistent with the lowest level of monitonng of goodwill that s undertaken The table above
therefore now mcludes goodwill of L5 3m against a single cash generating unit To aid comparabiiity the prior year has been restated to
also show goodwill against a single cash generating unit

Goodwall 15 tested annually for mparment of more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired Goodwill 1s tested
for imparment by estimating future cash flows from the cash generating units to which goodwill has been allocated and discounting
{nose cash flows to Iher present value Eack unit or group of units to which goodwill s allocaled represents the lowest level wathin the
entity at which the goodwill is monitared for nternal management putposes The key assumptions in this calculation are the levels of
future cash flows. particularly nthe nerpetuity penod. and the discount rate. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assossmoents of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the cash generating units
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11 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

Cash flows are estmated Lang the most recent budget informacon for the year 10 August 2021 which has been approved by the Board
and forecastinformation for the four years 1o August 2025 based on medium-term business plans and an assumption for long-term
growth of between 1-37% excluding inflaton The pre-tax discount rates used to discount the forecast cash flows for all cash generating
Laits are in the range 4 8205 - 8185 (2010 3 425 - 102G

The Directors consider the assumptions adopted ir calculating the cash f.ows to be consistent with histoncal performance and to be
reasonable given current market conditions

Significant headroom exsts in each of the cash generating units and. based on the stress testing performed. reasonable
possible changes in the assumptions would not cause the carrying amaount of the cash generating units to equal or to exceed ther
recoverable amaount other than potentially for Animax and the Chirton profit centre

Far the Arimax cash generatng unit the assumphions underpinning the cash flow projections used in the value In use calculation reflect
an appropriate view of past expenerce agjusted for the potential growth including benefits in respect of the new automation system to
improve future profitability The estimated recoverable amount of the cash generating unit signsficantly exceeded its carrying value and
therefore the Directors concluded that no imparment was reguired. however the calculations are sensitive to changes in key
assumptions The key assumptions considered by the Cirectors, where a reascnably possible change could give rse to animparment.
were the long-term growth rate and discount rate. If the pre-tax discount rate assumplion was increased by 14.7%, the cash generating
unit's recoverabie ameunt would be reduced to a level comparabte with its carrying value If this higher discount rate assumption was
combined with a 1% decrease in the long-term growth rate which. although not management's current expectation 1s considered to be
reasonably possible this woud lead to an impairment charge of £0 3m

For the Chirton profit centre cash generating unit, the estimated recoverable amount of the cash generating unit exceeded its carrying
value by approximately £6 sm and therefore the Directors concwided that no impairment was reguired, however the calculations are
sensitive to changes in key assumphions, in particular reasonably possible changes to the discount rate If the pre-tax discount rate
assumption was ncreased by 4 8. the cash generating unit's recoverable amount would be reduced to a level comparable with its
carrying value To tnigger antaternal imparment the discount rate would hove te increase 1o over 14 3%

Arnartisation and impairment charges are recognised within administrative expenses and have been highlighted separately within
adjusting items (note 51 where they relate to acquired intangible assets

Therer is no goadwill n the Company (201G none)

Significant cash generating units
The following key assumptions have been used in the impairment testing for goodwill with a significant carrying value

Longg-term

Gondlw | AVOTIOR
Ay Pre-tax g n I eng-teany
wawee discourl tate [WET Qrowth rsie
£0G0G K .

Cash generating unit

NuVision Engineernng Inc 8,238 8.18 1.9 2
NV Total Engineered Solutions Ltd 6,234 g.18 2.0 2
Walischnuller Engmeenng GmbH 5,929 8.18 3.8 2
Carrs Bilington Agriculture (Sales) Lt 5,285 4.82 3.7 2
Cart's Engineering Ltd - Chirton profit centre 2,526 g.18 57.8 2
Carrs Agriculture | td - UK feed blocks 2,068 4.82 2.3 2
Arimax Ltd 1,742 4.82 16.7 2

Stress testing of the future cash flows generated from these cash generating units shows that an impairment of goodwill would potentiatly
arise should cash flows fall by 642~ 1r NuVision Engineenng Inc by 59% in NW Total Engineered Solutions Ltd. by 67% in Walischmiller
Engincenng GmibH, by gi% in Carrs Billngton Agnculture (Sales) Lid, by 47% 1n Carr's Engineening Ltd - Chirton profit centre, by g6% in Carrs
Agriculture Lid - UKfeed blocks and by g1ain Animax Ltd

Caregs oefore aterest omud Tax
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Group Company
L B Toma.
£ D0 (AR Vi)
Cost
AL 2 September 2018 28,225 45,369 1,682 75,276 605
-xchange differences 366 763 17 1,146 -
Subsichares acguired 1,405 81 - 2,216 -
Additions 626 4,796 944 6,366 46
Disposals - (3187) - 3,187 (an
Reclassfrcations 1,796 104 (1,942) (42) -
At 31 August 2019 32,418 48,656 701 81,775 640
Exchange differences {534) (1,100) {3) (1,639) -
Additions 502 1,815 4,045 6,362 -
Transfers to nght-of-use assets - (5,730) - {5,730) -
Iransfers from nght-of-use assets - 672 - 672 -
Disposals (145) (2,488) - (2,633) {1)
Reclassifications 893 (292) (598) 3 -
At 29 August 2020 33,134 41,533 4,143 78,810 639
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
AL 2 September 2018 7.372 29,420 - 36,792 450
Exchange differences 18 530 - 648 -
Charge for the year 983 3,821 - 4,804 43
IMeprosals - (2,386) - (2,386) {11}
At 31 August 2019 8,473 31,385 - 39,858 482
Exchange differences (231) (831 - (1,062) -
Charge for the year 1,101 3,227 - 4,328 40
Impairment during the year - 239 - 239 -
Transfers to nght-of-use as-ets - (1,138) - (1,138) -
Transfers from ngnt-of-use assets - 272 - 272 -
Disposals (88) (1,858) - {1,946) (1)
At 29 August 2020 9,255 31,296 - 40,5%1 521
Net book amount
Al 1 Septembber 2018 20,853 15,949 1,682 38,484 155
Al 31 August 2019 23,945 17,271 70t 41,917 158
At 29 August 2020 23,879 10,237 4143 38,259 18

Transfers to nght-of-use assoets 1epresent finance leased assets being transfoerred from property, plant and equipment on transition to
IFRS 16, Transfers from nght-of-use assets represent finance leased assots that became owned assets on matunty of the lease term.
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12 Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold lard amounting to £3 075 704 (701G £2.9094 878) nas not been depreciated

Under the Group's banking fazilibies the lenders have wgal charges over cortan properties together with floating charges over the assets
of certain pusinesses The net book amount of specific assets neld under legal charges at the balance sheet date was £1 450,000 (201G

11.504 0DOD)

included in the above table in respect of assets heid under floating charges are asscls with a net book amount of 17 643,000 (2010
17668 000! This excudes speafic assets uader legal charge which are separately disclosed above

Cepreciation is recoygnmsed withe the Consolidated Income Statement as shown beiow

Company
2020 2020 201
£'000 £'000 £ 000
Cost of sales 3,276 - -
Dhstribution costs 10 - -
Administrative expenses 1,042 40 43
4,328 40 43
13 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
T he balance sheel shows the following amounts relating to leases
Group Company
P.nl Pt
Land .and U prien; Caupnwen’
Lo wehucles 1ot [ and wehcos
eTate] . £ 000
Cost
AL 31 August 2019 - - - -
Transition to IFRS 16 (note 37) 10,096 1,398 1,494 267
Exchange differences (74) n (75) -
Additions 195 2,228 2,423 429
Transfers to property. plant and equipment - (672) {672) -
Transfers from property. plant and equipment - 5730 5,730 -
Disposals (622) (273) (895) (205)
At 29 August 2020 9,595 8,410 18,005 491
Accumulated depreciation
AL 31 August 2019 - - - -
Exchange differences (1) - an -
Charge for the year 1,187 1,275 2,462 96
Transfers to praperty plant and equipment - (272) (272) -
Transfers trom property plant and equipment - 1,138 1,138 -
Disposals {85) 83) (168} (62)
At 29 August 2020 1,091 2,058 3,149 34
Net book amount
At 31 August 2019 - - - -
At 29 August 2020 8,504 6,352 14,856 457

Transfers from property. plant and equipment represent hinance leased assets being transferred to right-of- use assets on transtion to
IFRS 16 Transfers to properly pilant and equipment represent finance leased assets that became owned assets on matunty of the lease

ferm
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13 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities continued

Group Company

Lease liabilities £000 £'000
Current labilities 2.778 97
Non-current babalities "n,17 354

; 13,949 451

Finarce lease labilities recogrised an the balance sheot under 145 17 10 the comparative year are included within porrowings on the balance
sheet

The remaining contraciual matunties of the lease babilities which are gross and undiscounted, are as follows

Group Company

£000 £'000

Less than one year 3,204 105
Oneto two years 2,359 m
Two to three years 1,830 87
Three to four years 1,298 87
Four to five years 992 a7
More than frve yoears 8,512 -
18,195 ar7

Amounts recognised in the income statement
The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases

Group Company

£'000 £'000

Deprociation 2,462 96
{Profit)/loss on disposal {37} 4
Interest expense 483 8
Short-term leases and low-vaiue assets m -
3,019 108

There is no expense recognised in Lthe mcome statement in respect of vanable lease payments that are not included 1N the measurement
of the leases Labilities

The tatal Group cash outflow for leases in the year ended 2g August 2020 was £3.654.000 The total Company cash outflow for leases in
the year ended 20 August 2020 was £122 000,

The Group receives income on one nght-of-use property sublease A matunty analysis of lease payments. showing the undiscounted
lease payments to be recawved on an annual basis s as follows

Group
£'000
Less than one year 71
One to two years kA
Two to three yvears Al
Three to four years 7
Four to five years n
Mare than five years 27
382

The Company has nonconie arsme from leases
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14 Investment property

Group

Cost

At z September 2018, 31 August 2019 and 29 August 2020 299
Accumulated depreciation

At 2 Septemiser 2018 129
Charge for the yvear 6
Ab 31 AUgUSt 201G 135
Charge for the year 6
At 29 August 2020 141
Net book amount

At 1 5eptember 2018 170
AL 31 August 201G 164
At 20 August 2020 158

The farr value of investment properues at 29 August 2020 is £360 000 (2010, £360.000) Investment properties were valued by
independent professionally quanfied valuers in October 2016 The Directors are satisfied that there has been no significant change in fair
value since that date

There 1z no investment property m the Company (2019 none)

15 Investments

Jomt Olnesr

Ampriato o Llres, ARTELAL T E-Y Tl
Group FOD0O O 5000 [aaiuls)
Cost
At 2 September 2018 13,129 8,004 83 21,216
Exchange difference \ - 194 2 196
Share of post-tax result 924 1,453 - 2,377
Share of llosses)/gans recognised directly in oquity 73 143 - 70
Diadend paid by associate and joint ventures (588) (123) - (71
Al 31 August 2019 13,392 9,671 85 23,148
Exchange difference - (238) (3) (241
Share of post-tax result 1,191 1,442 - 2,633
Share of gains/illosses) recognised directly in equity 312 (21 - 101
Dividend paid by associate and joint ventures (588) (113) - (701)
At 29 August 2020 14,307 10,551 B2 24,940
Accumulated provision for impairment
At 2 September 2018, 31 August 2019 and 2g August 2020 - - 9 9
Net book amount
Al 1 September 2018 13,129 8,004 T4 21,207
A 31 AUgUst 2010 13,392 9,671 76 23,139
At 29 August 2020 14,307 10,551 73 24,931

Othear nvestments comprse Shares in Several private Lmited companies
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15 Investments continued

A R Total
Company LR} £'Q00
Cost
At 2 September 2018 31,355 245 272 31,872
Snare-hased payment charge in respect of employees of subwidiary undertakings (23} - - (23)
AL 31 August 2019 31,332 245 272 31,849
Recapitahsation 1,866 - - 11,866
Dissoluton of dormant subs diary unde-takings (6,479) - - {6,479}
Share-nased payment charge in respect of employees of subsichary undertakungs (158) - - (158)
At 29 August 2020 36,561 245 272 37,078
Accumulated provision for impairment
At 2 September 2018 and 31 August 2019 4,754 - - 4,794
Dissolution of dormant subsichary undertakings (807} - - (801}
At 29 August 2020 2,993 - - 3,993
Net book amount
Al 1 September 2018 26,561 245 272 27,078
At 31 August 2019 26,538 245 272 27,055
At 29 August zozo 32,568 245 272 33,085

The recaplialisation of £11.866 GO0 represent s the sncreased sharenclading in a subsidiary following the capitalisation of inter-company
clent !

Dunng the year the Company zegan the process of dissoly.ng several dormant subsichanes. They have been officially dissolved
post-year end Details of drssolved dormant subsichanes can be found on page 146,

16 Investment in associate
The assecated undertalang at 29 Adgust 202013

Group and Company

Freopoion ot
LEREN A (R
T any oy ooty eof
N . Qe ke Ancalon ALTivmy,
Carrs Billington Agniculture (Operations) Ltd 40 England UK Manufacture of animal feed

The nvestnient in Carts Billington Agriculture (Operations) Ltd 1s held directly by the Company "he registered office of the associate 15
Cunard Suilding, Water Sireet Liverpool L3 12l

The Group doeas not have the abiliny to control the financial and operating policies of its associate The Group has a 497 shareholding
and a 437 representation on the Board of Directors of Carrs Billngton Agrculture (Operations) Ltd

The associate w accounted for using the equity method

Al the: year end Carrs Bilungton Agrculture (Operations) Ltd had capital commitments of £nil (2019 £1.269.000) No contingent Labilifies
exist wathun the associate

The aggregate amodnts relating to the associate of which the Group recognises 49% in the net investment in associate. are:

2020 2010

* £000 £ 000

Total assets 41,031 43,407
Total labilifies {11,833} (16,076}
Revenues 121,371 134,758
Profit after tax 2,431 1,885
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17 Interest in joint ventures
The jomt ventures at 29 August 2020 ars

Group
Fa
e <
N [AS) b er AT LA R
Crystalyx Products GrrioH 50 Germany' Germany Manufacture of animai
feed blocks
Bibby Agriculture Ltd 26 England? UK Sale of agricultural products
Afgritech Ltd 50 England? UK Holding company
Afgritech LLC 50 UsA® USA Preducers of ingredients
of animal feed
Gold-Bar Feed Supplenments LLC 50 USA? UsSA Manufacture of animal
feed blocks
ACC Feed Supplerment LLC 50 USAS USA Manufacture of animal
feed blocks
Silloth Storage Company Lt 50 England® UK Storage of molasses
1 Regaterad O e aldross adoe e TIo 5 MLnghes Donmany
2 ptered OFf ceadcdzons Cid Conf crhicles Camne S (TAZ GRA
3 t e B0 N 10 woneriown Now vork itot LUsA
. redd Off ce sddrss 731l Boulovard Sreloyvitle Tonresses 37100 US4

et

HEPA
g kW eslar-Supoee-Mare B4 7R

oo ity lown

5 Rewjnlerad Oft ce neddd

£ Repstorad OFf oo addddnoe

Tl e e e Sateweay Bus ne

Crystalyx Products GmbH and Silloth Starage Campany Ltd have a 31 December accounting year end

The Company directly holds the interest in Crystalyx Products GmbH and Afgritech Ltd Afgritech Ltd nas 100% control of Afgritech LLC
Carrs Billngton Agnculture (Sales) _td directly holds the interest in Bibby Agnculture Ltd Animal Feed Supplement. Inc directly holds the
interest in Gold-Bar Feed Supplements LLC and ACC Feed Supplement LLC. Carrs Agnculture Ltd directly holds the interest in Silloth
Storage Company ttd

Jointventures are accounted for using the equity method

Al the year end the jont ventures had capital commitments of £ril (2019 £201 5531 No contingent babiliies exist within the joint ventures

The aggregate amounts inclucled 1a the Fmancial statements relating to the Group's share of joint ventures are

2020 2010

£'000 $ 000
NGon-current assets 8,742 9,133
Current assets 8,384 7,616
Current labilities (4,977) (5,356)
Non current habilities (1,615) 1,739
Income 39,478 40,735
Expenses (37,666) (38,880)
MNet finance cost (88) (94)

Goodwill of £17 000 arose on the rvestment in Silloth Storage Company Ltd This is included in the carrying amount of the Group's
Interest in joint ventures and s not shawh as a separate asset
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18 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

foamr e Auon e ACT T,

Catrrs Agniculture _td 100 England’ UK Manufacture of

animal feed/mineral blocks and
ingredients of animal feed

Carrs Billngton Agnoeulture (Sales) Ltd 51 England’ UK Agricultural retailers
Anmal Feed Suppiement. o 100 USA? USA Manufacture of animal feed blocks
Carr's Suppiements iINZ) Ltd 100 New Zealand® New Zealand Distributor of animal feed blocks
Coregar S A 100 Uruguays® Uruguay Distributor of animal feed blocks
Carr's Engineenng Lid 100 Engiand’ UK Engineering
Walischrulier Engimeenng GribH 100 Germany* Germany Engineering
Carr's Fngineernng t1us) N 100 USA® USA Holding company
Nuvision Engineerning. Inc 100 USA® Usa Engineering
Carrs Properties Ltd 100 England’ UK Property holding
Carr's Internatioral Finance Lid 100 England' UK Finance company
Animax Ltd 100 England’ UK Manufacture of animal

health products
Animax NZ Ltd 100 New Zealand® New Zealand Distributor of animal

health products
Clinnmax Ltd 100 England’ UK Manufacture of specialist disinfectants
NW Total Engineered Soldtipns Ltd 100 England' UK Engineering

Re’y cteredl Clbce aadren- Dl Crolt S ar s Carlele Combna CA3 9RA
I A3, USE

vad Glhce acdthvees o Sremiiae Ao Pouean Gkl

ereeerl (e acledi 355 Nerw Zoaland

"

rake Ro0d B de Coeack
Dweny 3 BEGA Markde T O Tarmy

sbreel Sace a0 S PCaraylva o 15203 USA

Rea senen ] CGifee addre s luraal ssen 2013 Moew deo Linuguay

Rrcparerocol Cffice addre crahorel, Orove West Staaton 2ury S Fdmrueds Saffolk 1931 24R

Rrcpme ol Office adchons, R98 Nox Foabindinucalandy [evel 2 2oldog s Go - gosrook Drve Fost Tamas Aucklond 2013 Now Zealand

Regerered Gifice addre
Focg st etd GIf.ces adadie

Dormant subsidianes are Usted on page 146 of this Annual Report and Accounts

Investments, in the subsidianes lated above are hetd directly by the Company with the following exceptions Carr's Engineering Ltd holds
100% of the INvestment in Walischmiller Engineering GmbH and NW Total Engineered Solutions Ltd, Cans Agrculture Ltd holds 100% of
the investment in Carr's Supplements (N2 Ltd, Conegar S A . Armmax Ltd and Clinmax Lid; Carr's Engineering (US). Inc holds 100% of the
nvestment in Nuvision Engmeering Inc. and Animax Ltd holds 100% of the investment in Anmax NZ Ltd

Non-controlling interests in subsidiary undertakings

The following tables summarse the nformation relating to Carrs Bilington Agniculture (Sales) Ltd, where there 15 a material non-
controlling interest The amounts presented are before inter-company elinvnations with other companies within the Group The non-
controlling interest In the subsidiary was 4g% n both the current and pror year

2020 201
Bt e e £'000 [Xaluls}
Non-current assets 21,584 17,885
Current assets 56,618 73,901
Non-current lallities (5,087) (2,290}
Current labibties (41,132) (57,747)
Net asaeta 31,983 31,749
Net assets attributable topon-controlling nterest 15,672 15,557
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18 Investment in subsidiary undertakings continued

2020
[ e A e o , ST 000
Revenus 280,741
Profit after tax 2,448
Profit after tax allocated to non-controlling interest 1,200
There 15 no other comprebaasive Income in the current of prior year

2020
Seteren e G E'000
Cash flows from coerating acuvities 10,227

Cash flows from investment activitios
Cash flows from financing actiities

(1,638) (1,.441)
{17,505) (3,551

Net [decrease)/ imcrease in cash and cash equivalents (8,916) 774
During the year dividends of 1588 000 (2019 £588.000) were paid te the non-controlling interest
19 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and Liakslities are attnibutable to the following
Assets Liabilities Net

2020 o0 2020 20.2 2020 Poln
Group £'000 e £000 000 £000 =000
Accelerated tax depreciation - - . (2,727 (2,934) (2,727) (2,934)
Employee benefits - -1 {1,527 1,321 (1,527) 1,321
Other - 410 (529 (732) (529 (322)
Tax assetsAlabilities) - 410 (4,783) (4,987) (4,783} 4,577)

Deferred tax net Labilities are oxoccted to reverse after more than one year from the balance sheet date

Movement in deferred tax during the year

At
SIRH » E <chionge R g w=a0 Feme ooy e 29 August
<l fforpieos e one ety 2020
LO00 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
Assets
Other 410 - - {(410) - -
410 - - (410) - -
Liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation (2,934) - 69 138 - 2,727)
Cmployee benefits {1,321) - - (179 {27) (1,527)
Other (732) 266 24 (58) {29} (529)
(4,987) 266 93 99) {56) (4,783)
MNet Latilities * ‘ (4,577) 266 93 {509) {(56) (4,783)

Other deferred tax assets and labihes includes deferred tax on short-term timing differences, leases
lossers capitallosses busingss, combinations and overseas deferted tax
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19 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued
Movement in deferred tax during the prior year

P Ivpopact ot Recog Feg oty el Slaunu
D4 R - [ =
[Zalatel gtely
Acsets
Other - - 30 380 - 410
- - 30 380 - 2410
Liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation (1,604) {56} {1,381) 107 - (2,934)
Employee benefits {1,725) - - a0 314 1,321
Other (652) 1 23 (104) - (732)
(3,981) (55) (1,358) 93 314 (4,987}
Net habilities (3,981) (55) (1,328) 473 314 4,577
Assels Liabilities Net
. 2020 SO 2020 R 2020 b
Company . £'000 [Ealay] £'000 PR £'000 [aleld]
Accelerated tax depreciation 22 20 - - 22 20
Employee benefits - - (1,527 1,321 (1,527 (1,321
Othetr 140 265 - - 140 265
Tax assets/labilities) 162 285 (1,527) (1,320 (1,365) (1,036)
Movement in deferred tax during the year
# At
L soptorym s tene Recogneead  Recognned 29 August
il IFRS I [N Ealefolndlnl 1 =gty 2020
VSN SO0 £ 000 § 0000 £'000
Asnels
Accolerated tax depreciation 20 - 2 - 22
Cther 265 1 {101) (25) 140
285 1 {99) (25) 162
Liabbities
Fmployes benefits (1,321 - (179) (27) {1,527)
(1,321 - (179) 27) {(1,527)
Net Laklities (1,036) 1 (278} (52) {1,365)
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19 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued
Movement in deferred tax during the prior year

CEated]

Assets
Accelerated tax deprecation 16 4 - 20
Other 217 46 2 265
233 S0 2 285
Liabilities
Employee benefits (1,725) 90 314 (1,321
(1,725) 30 314 1,321
Net linhilities (1,492} 140 316 (1,036)

Tax of £41 000 (2019° £53 DOGIH N respect of tax losses has not been recognsed as a deferred tax asset in the Group balance sheet The
Company has no unrecogrised tax losses (2019 none)

20 Inventories '

2020 a0l
Group £'000 000
Raw materiols and consumatbtes 13,268 12,813
Work n progress 2,351 3,887
Finished goods and goads for resale 25,342 29,570

40,961 46,270

Inventones are stated aftor a provision for mpairment of £1.546.000 (2010 £g12 000). The amount recognised as an expense N the year in
respect of the wite down of inventores 15 £601 000 12019 £416.000) The amount recognised as a credit in the year in respect of reversals
of write downs of mventones is £45 000 (2019 £55,000)

The cost of nventones recogn-sed as an expense and inciuded in cost of sales 15 £341.701.000 (2019 £348.430.000

The Company has no mventonos (2019 none)

21 Contract balances

The timing of revenue recognition. bilings and cash collection results in trade recervables (hilled amounts) contract assets (unbilled
amounts) and customer advances and deposits contract iabalities) an the Group's balance sheel For services in which revenue 15
eamned over lime. amounts are billed in accordance with contractual terms, either at pericdic intervals or upon achievernent of
contractual milestones The tinung of revenue recognition is measured 1IN accordance with the progress of delivery on a contract which
could ether be n advance or n arrears of tilling, resutting N either a contract asset or a contract Lakility

2020 20t
Contract assets E'000 F OO0
At the beginning of the year 9,466 6,909
Exchange differences nz2 125
Subsidianes acquiredd . - 102
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (8,080) (5,71
Increase related to services pravided In the yea 6,616 8,041
At the end of the year 8,114 9,466
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21 Contract balances cont.nued

2020 2020
Cantract liabilities £'060 P
At the beaginning of the year 1,269 1,458
Excnange dfferences (58) 1
Subsichanes acquired - 573
Reveriue recognised against contract Labilbies at the beginning of the year 1,048) 1,601
nerease due to cash received excluding any amounts recognised as revenue during the year 898 828
At the end of the year 1,061 1,269

Tne Group has assessed expected credit losses and tne loss allowance for contract balances as immaterial The Company has no
contract aswets or contract lall tics (2019 none}

22 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2020 0.5 2020

£000 £ 000 £'000
Current:
Trade teceivables 49,077 51,438 - 88
Less provision for imparment of trade recenvables {1,873} (1,285) - -
Trade receivables  net 47,204 50,153 - ag
Amounts awed by Group undertakings (note 36) - - 219 33,097
Amolints owed by other related parties (note 36) 1,989 1,997 1,776 1,764
Other taxes and socil seclinty recesabe 37 376 - 13
Other receivables 889 1,661 212 824
Prepayments and accrued ircome 1,287 2,162 410 399

51,686 56,349 2,617 36,185

Non-current;
Amounts owed by Group undertakings (note 36) - - 34,735 16,413
Other recevaoles 20 22 - -

20 22 34,735 16,413

The movermnent 1 the provision for impared trade recervaties consists of increases for addilional provisions offset by recenables written
of [ and unused provison reveased back to the consolidated mcome statement The provision i utilised when there 15 no expectation of
recovering additioral cash

During the vear o cnarge of TE52 000 (2019 credit of £315.000) has been recoghised within administrative expenses in the consolidated
ncome statement in respect of the movement in provision for impairment of trade recevables

For all other recevables presented ahove the Group has assessed expected credit losses and the loss allowance as immaterial
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22 Trade and other receivables continued
Interest bearing non trading amounts dwed by Group under:akings with n current trade and other recevables carry interest at 4 505 or

Bark of England base rate + 2 50% Suckh amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand

Interest beanng non-trading amounts owed by Group undertakings with.n non-current receivables carry interest at 4 50% . & 25% or Bank
of Ingland base rate - 2 507 Such amounts are unsecured and nave remaming terms of 15 - 2 years

2020 110

Past due Pt due-

but not oLt N0

Gross  Impairment impaired I aoar e | e

Group £000 £'000 £'000 + 000 § o0 b 0L
The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Not past due 34,347 (109) N/A 33,451 (193) N/A

Sastdue : - 30 days 6,517 {28) 6,489 5,713 2o 5,693

Past due 31 - B0 days 2,347 {21) 2,326 4,345 (47) 4,298

Past due 51 - 90 days 1,219 {15) 1,204 1,729 40) 1,689

Past due g1 - 120 days 940 {12) 928 1,703 (47) 1,656

Past 121 clays 3,707 (1,688) 2,019 4,497 (938) 3,559

49,077 {1,873} 12,966 51,438 (1,285 16,895

2020 ST
Past due
but not
Gross  Impairment impaired Inparmen
Company £000 £'000 E'Q00 LRV 51 ) (0

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Past 121 days - - - 88 - 88

- - - 88 - 88

Inrelation to trade receivables the major source of estimation uncertamty 15 the recoverable value of those receivables The judgements
applicd to this nclude the credit quauty of customers. takang into account ther financial positions. past expenences and other relevant
factors Individual customer credit bmits are mposed based on these factors, and provisions for mparrment are made using those
Judgements Provisians for impairment are reviewoed monthly by divisional management.

Trade recevables are assessad by management for credit risk and are corsidered past due when a counterparty has failed to make a
payment when that paymentwas contractually due Management assessos trade recevables that are past the contracted due date by

the ageing penods as presented in the tables above, consistent with how it views the credit nsk of trade receivables

A default s determined to have occurred if the Group becomes aware of evidence that it will not receve all contractual cash flows that

are due

The maximum exposure to credit nak atthe year end is the carrying value net of provision for imparment. of each recevable The Group
and Company do not hold any significant collateral as secunty (2019 rmone

Group Company

2020 200 2020 2015
£'000 pyelsle] £'000 £000

The carrying value of trade recervabies 1, denomnated in the following currencies
Sterling 41,416 46,251 - 88
Us Dollar 1,960 1,326 - -
Euro 2,955 2,023 - -
New Zealand Dollar a7o 544 - -
Other 3 g - _
47,204 50,153 - 88
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Group Company
2020 2020
£000 £000
Corparation tax recoverable 1,535 - 1,41
Group taxatior relief - - 543 -
1,535 - 1,954 840
24 Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
Group Company
2020 2020 2016
€000 § OO0 £000 [etole’

Cash and cash equivalents per the baiance sheet
Bank overdrafts (note 26)

17,571 28,649
(7,267) (4,354

7,984 6,778

Cash and cash eguivalents por tho statement of cash flows

10,304 24,295

7,984 6,778

25 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 PleH:]

£'000 F000 £'000 L OO0
Current:
Irads payables 16,669 16,564 550 600
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (note 36) - - 2 2
Amounts owed to ather related parties (note 36) 19,820 24,654 - -
Other taxes and social securly payanle 2,524 1,970 543 741
Contingent deferred and unpaid cash consideration 2,169 5,27 - -
Other payablas 9,270 9,338 171 354
Accruals and deferred income 5,070 4,856 394 836

55,522 62,653

1,660 2,533

Non-current:
Contingent conwideration
Accruals and deferred income

1,276 2,835
109 164

1,385 2,999

Amounts owed to Group undertalungs and other related parties are interest free unsecured and repayable on demand

Trade and other payables includes deferred and contingent consideration on prior year acguisitions After retranslation at the balance
sheet date of foreign currency denominated amounts £2,16¢ 000 (2019 £5,271 000) of these outstanding payables are recogrised within
current labilitios and €1 276 000 (2019 £2 835.000) are recognised within non-current babilities
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25 Trade and other payables continued
Included wathin accruals and deferred incoeme is the following in respect of government grants:

Group Company
2020 2020
£000 £000
At the beginning of the year 169 - -
Zxchange differences - - -
Subsid arles acquired - - -
Amortisation in the year (55) - -
At tne end of the year 114 - -
Included withim
Current tiabiities 5 5 - -
Non-current labilities 109 164 - -
14 169 - -
26 Borrowings
Group Cempany
2020 2019 2020 oR:)
E'Q00 [N £'000 FCO0
Current:
Bank ovordrafts 7,267 4,354 - -
Bank loans and other borrowings 4,153 18,319 2,340 2,340
Loans from Group undertakings (note 36} - - 110 5.466
Finance leases LIAS 17) - 1,183 - -

11,420 23,856 2,450 7.806

Non-current:
Bank loans 25,021 26,846 22,947 26,846

Finance leases (IAS 1/) - 1,740 - -
25,021 28,586 22,947 26,846

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year 1,420 23,856 2,450 7,806
In the second yeor 3,106 3,295 2,340 2,340
0 the third to fifth years inclusive 21,915 25,291 20,607 24,506

36,441 52,442 25,397 34,652

Group and Company borrowngs are shownn the balance sheet net of arrangement fees of £181.000 (2019 £.241.000) of which £60 000
(2010 £60 000) 15 deducted from current labilities and £121.000 (201G £181 coo) 1s deducted from non-current kabilities,

Group Company

2020 2o 2020 2019

E'000 3 000 £000 £000
The net borrowings are:
Bonowings as above 36,441 52,442 25,397 34,652
Cash and cash equivalents (17,571 (28,649) (7,984) (6,778)
Net borrowings 18,870 23,793 17,413 27,874
Net borrowings fexcluding leases under 1AS 17) 18,870 20,870 17,413 27,874

Bank loans and other borrowings includes an amount of £62.000 (201G £14.570.000) which 15 secured on trade recawvables and represents
the amount drawn down on an involce discounting facility with The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC. The Company, together with certan
subsiciancs, act as guarantors on the bank loans tn addition. The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC has legal charges aver certam properties

Loans from Group undertakings are non-interest bearing Such amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand The bank loans are
repayable by nstalment s and the overdraf s repayable on demand

Non-current bank loans mcludes o drawn down revolving credit faciity of £18 3m (2019 £16 8m) which 15 repayable in November 2023, At
the year end the Group had 110 3m of undrawn revolying credit facilities (201g L7 2m}
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Groups activities expose il to a vansy of financial nsks The Board reviews and agrees padcles for managing its risk These policies
have remained unchanged througnout the year

Currency rate risk - financial instruments by currency

2020 sy}
us NZ
Sterling Dollar Euro Doltar Other Total RS o sl
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 E£000 £000 £000 oo ¢ s el
Assets
Other investments 50 22 1 - - 73 50 25 1 - - 76
Nor-cutrent receivabies - 20 - - - 20 — 22 - - - 22
Contract aseets 4,407 1,850 1,857 - - 8,114 4,455 1,590 3,421 - - 9,466
Curient trade anct other
lecenables 43,055 3,982 2,972 870 3 50,082 46,975 4,239 2,033 544 20 53,81
Curient denvatives - - 3 - - 3 - - - - - -
Cash and casn
equivalents 10,228 4,625 2,231 487 - 17,5711 18,787 71,537 1. 592 22 28,649
57,740 9,699 7,064 1,357 3 75,863 70,267 13,413 7,166 1,136 42 92,024
Liabilities
Current borrowings 9,430 648 1,342 - - 1,420 22,307 141 1,408 - - 23,856
Current leases 2,514 264 - - - 2,778 - - - - - -
Contract labilities 377 418 266 - - 1,061 699 401 169 - - 1,269
Current trade and other
payables 47,169 3,565 2,098 161 - 52,993 53,374 5311 1864 122 T 60,678
Non-current borrowings 18,179 329 6,513 - - 25,021 23,759 - 4,827 - - 28,586
Non-current leases 10,869 302 - - - 11,171 - - - - - -
Other non-current
Liahilities 1,276 - - - - 1,276 2,835 - - - - 2,835
89,814 5,526 10,219 161 - 105,720 102,974 5,853 8,268 122 7 17,224
2020 FEABLE}
Sterling Us Dollar Euro Total Stenrg Dol e Teta
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 [Xdlblel £ 000 [Nelels! § 000
Assets
Non-current receivables 11,329 15,018 8,388 34,735 - 16,413 - 16,413
Current trade and other receivables 999 1,208 - 2,207 24,157 1,993 9,623 35,773
Cash gnd cash equivalents 6,832 634 518 7.984 6,206 120 452 6,778
' 19,160 16,860 8,906 44,926 30,363 18,526 10,075 58,964
Liabilities
Current barrow ings 2,450 - - 2,450 7,806 - - 7,806
Current leases 97 - - 97 - - - -
Current trade and other payabies 1117 - - 117 1,792 - - 1,792
Non-current borrowings 18,178 - 4,769 22,947 22,019 - 4,827 26,846
Non-current leases 354 - - 354 - - - =
22,196 - 4,769 26,965 31,617 - 4,827 36,444

Cther taxes and social secunty receivable and prepayments are excluded from trade and other receivables in the tables above as they
are not financiat instruments Far this same reason other taxes and social security payable 1s excluded from trade and other payables
Deferred income in respect of government grants 1s excluded as itis not a financial labibty
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

Theimpact of a weakering or strengthening n Sterling aganst other currencies at the balance shee! date 15 snownin the table below
The Direclors consider that a 107 (2019 107, weakenirig or strengthening in sterling against other currencies represents reasonable
possible changes

2020 S
10% 10% i "]
weakening  strengthening TR Crg) SLrngires g
£'000 £000 £COC OO
lmpact on profit after taxation 784 (641) BAO (703)
Impact on total equity 5,602 {4,584) 5,731 (4,689)

This sensitivity analysis s not anndication of actual results. which may maternaly differ For the purposes of this sensitivity analysis all
other vanables have heen held constant

Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations tivough a mixture of retained ecarmings and bank borrowings The Group borrows In the desired

currencies at hixed and floatirgg 1ates of mterest

2020 pte]
Weighted wieigghted
average LS
effactive eHO T
interest rate Clesreant rate
Group borrowings ' E'000 " £'000
Bank averdrafts 1.87 1,267 2.57 4,354
Bank loans and other borrowings 1.68 29,174 2.14 45,165
Finance lease labilities (AS17) - - 2.82 2,923
36,441 52,442
Fixed rate 2,483 2,923
Floating rate 33,958 49,519
36,441 52,442
The Group's floating rate financial labilities bear nterest deternmined as foilows
Bank overdrafts US primme rale - 1.6% margm: US prime rate + 0 5% margin: Bank of England base rate - 1 7% margin
Bank loans and other borrowings [ibor « 1 77 Libor - 1 8% Euribor + 1 775, Bank of Engiand base rate - 115% margin; 1 5%
2020 e )
Weighted Wlewated
averag e BIG e
effective ~ffective
interest rate AICTET A T
Company borrowings % £'000 . 1000
Bank loars 1.69 25,287 2,30 29,186
Loans from Group undertakings ) - 10 - 5,466
Floating rate 25,397 34,652

The Company’s floating rate f nancial liabilites bear interest determined as follows

Bank loans bar =1 2%, Libor - 1 8270 BEunbor -1 /%
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

The mpact of a decrease or incraase n Aterest rates durnng the year s shown in the table below The Directors consider that a 1%
movement in interest rates represents a reasonable possible change

2020 R
1% decrease 1% increase 7 receane o T
£000 £'000 F OO 500
Impact on profit after taxation 542 (542) 396 (396)
Irpact on total equity . 542 (542) 396 (396)

This sensitivity analysis 15 not an indicatan of actual results which may materialty differ For the purpases of this sensitivity analysis all
other vanables have been held constant

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy throughout the year has boen to maintain @ mix of short and medium-term borrawings, Short-tern flexibiity 15
achieved by overdraft facilities 10 aclcition it is the Group's policy to mantam committed undrawn facilities in order to provide flexibility in
the management of the Groups Iguidity

The tables below analyse the Group and Company's finanaial labilities which will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaning pericd At the Ratance sheet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclased in the tables
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows which have been calculated using spot rates at the relevant balance sheet date

2020 A

Within One to Twe to AN Two lo

Total one year two years five years Towl T e ar [ spmsgon,

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 000 £ 000 £ 000 L0000 L 00
Bank averdrafts 7,267 7.267 - - 4,354 4,354 - -
Bank loans and other borrowings 30,639 4,668 3,563 22,408 47,717 19,023 2,984 25,710
Finance lease labiitios (IAS 17} - - - - 3,11 1,263 1,016 832
Contract batabbes 1,061 1,061 - - 1,269 1,269 - -
Trade and other payab.es 52,993 52,993 - - 60,678 60,678 - -
Other non-current labilities 1,320 - 1,320 - 3,010 - 1,700 1,310

93,280 65,989 4,883 22,408 120,139 86,587 5,700 27,852

2020 Lol
Within Oneto Twoto W e s, T g
Total one year twa years five years [IlPN] Qre went T yenrs
Company £'000 E£'000 £'000 £'000 [Exlele} P00 F o0
Bank loans 26,629 2,808 2,764 21,057 31,739 3,045 2,984 25,710
Loans from Group undertakings 110 110 - - 5,466 5,466 - -
Trade and cther payables M7 17 - - 1,792 1,792 - -

27,856 4,035 2,764 21,057 38,997 10,303 2,984 25,710

The above tables exclude leases accounted for under IFRS 16 Details of the contractual undiscounted cash flows for leases under IFRS
1& can be found in note 13

Trade and other payables in the tables above: exclude other taxes and social secunty which do not meet the definition ef financial

Habilites under IFRS 7 Deterred income in respect of government grants has also been excluded as it does not give nse to a contractual
abligation © pay cash
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued

Borrowing facilities

The Group has vanous undrasen faciuties The undrawn facil.bios available at 2g August 2020, n respect of which all conditions precedent
had been met, were as follows

2020 20

Fleating F ot g

rate e

] £'000 £ 000

EXPINING 1IN ONe year of less 6,883 3,565
Expiring withun two and flve yaars malusive 28,200 18,626

35,083 22,191

Undrawn facilties include overdraft tacilities of £2 5n1 (2019 £2 5m) that are renewable on an annual basis

The Company’s overdraft is wethin g Group facility and it 15 therefore nat possible to deternine the Company's undrawn facilities at the
balance sheet date

Capital risk management

The Groups obectives whon managing capita. are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order 1o provide
returns for shareholders and benehts for other stakeholders and to maintain an efficient captal structure to optimise the cost of capital
In order to mamtair o adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders 1ssue new shares o sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearng ratio This ratio s calculated as net debt divided by total equity Net gebt s
calculated as total borrowings (ncluding current and non-current borrowings) as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less cash and
cash equivalents Total equity is as shown in the consolidated balance sheet At 2g August 2026 the Group had net debt of £18 gm (2019
net debt. excluding leases of 1209m) Based on net debt exclucing leases, gearng was 14 1% at the year end (2019 15 9%)

The Group monitars cash balances and net debt on a daily basis to ensure adeguate headroom exists on banking facilities and that it s
compliant with banking covenants

Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 13 requires financial Instruments that are measured at far value 1o be classiflied according to the valuation technique used

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadusted) n active ma{,kota for wentical assets or labilities

Lavel 2 - inputs other than evel 1mputs, that are observable for the asset or Uabilty, either directly ire as pricest or ndirectly G e,
derved from prices)

Leve: 3 - unobservable inputs

Transfers between levels are deemed to hove ocourred at the end of the reporting penod There were ne transfers between levels in the
above hierarchy 1n the period

All derivative financial instruments, are measured at fair value using level 2 mputs The Group's bankers prowvide the valuations for the
denvative financial instruments, at each reporting period end based on mark to market valuation techniques

Contingent consideration s measured at fair value using level 3:nputs Fair value is determined considering the expected payment.
which 1s discounted to present value The expectad paymoent 15 determined separately inrespect of each individual earn-out agreement
taking into consideration the expected tevel of piofitability of each acquisition

The significant unobservable mputs are the projections of future profitability, which have been based on the budget for the year to
August 2021 and farecast iInformation for future periods and the discount rate: which has been based on the incremental borrowing rate.
A sigrificant amount of the contingent consideration payable is included within current liabilities and has therefore not been discounted
Ateasonable change i the discount rate applied would not have a material mpact on the balances recognised within non-current
habilities
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued
The following tabie presents a reconciliatior of the contingent consideration liablity measured at farr value on a recurnng basis dsing
significant unobserviable INputs tevel )

2020
£'000
Far value at the begimning of the year 7,954
Exchange differences {184) 21
Acquisitonsinthe year - 5,337
Paymonts made to vendor . (2,513) -
Change in fair value {1,835) 1,128)
Fair value at the end of the yeal 3,422 7,954

The change in far vawe nas been mcluded within the credit of £937.000 shown as an adjusting item in note 5. Also included in the
adjusting item are expenses incdned by the Group rewted to payments made to the vendors

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The fair values of Group and Comipany financial assets and labilities are not matenally different to book value

Derivative financial instruments

Hedge of net investment in foreign subsidiaries

The Group hedges foreign denominated loans against its investment in foreign subsidiaries A foreign exchange pre-tax loss of £112.000
(2019 pro-tax gamn of £81 000) was recognised in equity during the year on translation of US Dollar denonminated loans with a fair value of
$1.608.000 (2019 $1 608.000) to Sterling A foreign exchange pre-tax gain of £58 600 (2019 pre-tax Loss of £44,000) was recognised in
equity during the year on translation of Cure denominated loans wath a far value of €5,330 000 (2019 £5.230,000) to Sterling. The
Group's net mvestment hedge was fully effective In both the current and prior year and therefare no gain or loss 1s recognised In the
consobdated income statement

Currency derivatives
The Group and Company use forward foreign currency contracts to manage exchange risk exposure At the balance sheeot date, the farr
value of cutstanding forward foreign currency contracts are as below

2020 201G

Contractual Contraciua,

Fair or notienal e o N0 0N

value ameount wel b APOLT

Group £'000 E000 5 500 [Xalots)
At the beginning of the yoar - - 13 1,206
Gains/llosses) dunng the year 3 105 (13) (1,208)
At the end of the year - mcluded within current assets 3 105 - -

The Company has no forward foreign currency contracts (201G none)
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27 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued
The Group uses CJrrency swaps 1o manage exchange rnisk exposure Al the balance sheet date. the fan value of cutstanding currency
Swaps are as below

2020 R

Contractual o EIMVEN

Fair or notional Far Nt e

value amount smiunt

Group £000 E'000 ER SN

At the beginning of the year - - 13 124
_osses durnng the year - - (13) (124)

At the end of the year - - - -

The Company has No currency swaps (2019 none)

Fair value has been deternuned by reference ta the value of equivalent forward fareign currency cantracts and currency swaps at the
balance sheet date

Gaing and losses on currency related denvatives are included within adnministrative expenses.

28 Retirement benefits
The Group participates In two defined benefit pension schemes: Carr's Group Pension 5cheme and Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension
Scheme

Carr's Group Pension Scheme (Group and Company)
The Company spotisors the Carr's Group Pension Scheme and offered a defined cantribution and a defined beneft section The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are invested with mdependent nvestment managers

From 1 Septembar 2015 thoe definsd contribution section was ciosed Members of that section were enrclled 1In a new defined
contribution scheme the Carr's Group Retrement Savings Scheme ("Care's Group RSS™). set up under a Master Trust arrangement

The defined beneafit section of the scheme was previously closed to new members, and has closed to future accrual wath effect from 31
December 2015 Members of this section became entitled to become members of the Carr's Group RSS from 1 January 2016 There were
1o penaon contributions made by the Group over the year to the defined benefit section (201g Tl

The following disclosures relate to the defined benefit section of the Carr's Group Penwion Scheme The last full actuarial valuation of this
scheme was camed odt by a quatied independsnt actuary as at 31 December 2017 and updated on an approximate basis Lo 29 August
2020 by a qualified inclependent actuary

Major assumptions:

2020 EIoR)

w .

Inflation (RPN 2.90 3.00

Inflation (CPD 2.00 2.10

Rate of discount 1.80 1.80
Pension in payment increases

RPI or 5 0% per annum If less 2.90 3.00

RP1or g 0% per annumif less mimmuny 3 0% per annum 3.50 3.50
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28 Retirement benefits continued

The mortality tabues used in the valuation as at 20 August 2020 are 1007 of S2PA with allowance for mortality mprovements

using CMI_201g with a1 257 pa underpin The mortauty assumptions adoptoed imply the following Ufe expectanc.es at age 65 as at
29 August 2020

A3
At &
29 August EYWI
2020 R
Males currently age 45 23.1 years 23,2 years
Females currentty agoe 45 25.3 years 25.2 years
Mates currently ages Hn 21.8 years 21.8 years
Females currently age 65 23.7 years 23.7 years
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement in respect of defined benefit schemes:
2020 2019
£'000 £ 000
Administrative expenses 13 21
Paut service cost - 795
Net interest on the net defined penefit asset (139) (284)
Totaliincomel/expense {126) 532

The past service costin the prior yeor of £795,000 represents the scheme actuary’s estimated effect on the Group's pension scheme
Labilties following the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs™) The Group continues to monitor further clarfications
ansing fram the High Court case of Lioyds Banking Group Pensions Trustees Ltd v Lioyds Bank pic and others This was recognised as a
past service cost through the Income Statement and disclosed as an adjusting item in the pror year (note 5)

The (income)/expense is recoghised within the Income Statement as shown below:

2020 2019
£'000 y (100
Within operating protit *
Admmistrative expenses 13 816
WALhin interest:
Firsance inconie (139) (284)
Total incomel/expense {126) 532
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset to be shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:
2020 AU
£000 £000
Actual gans and losses ansing tron changes in.
Financial assumptions 422 (9,373)
Demographic assumptions 173 589
Return on assets, excluding nterest mcome (453) 6,939
Total remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset 142 (1,845)
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28 Retirement benefits continued
Amounts included in the Balance Sheet:

2020

E'000
Present value of funded defired benefit obsligations (65,834) (68,037)
Fair value of scheme assety 73,87 75,806
Surplus in funded scheme 8,037 7,769
Reconciliation of opening and clesing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

2020 ESRY

£000 [Xelstd
Benefit obligation at the: beginming of the year 68,037 60,488
Past service cost - 795
Interest cost 1,199 1,642
Net measurement (gans)/losses — financial (422) 9,373
Net measurement gains - demagraphic (173) (589)
Benefits pandd {2,807 (3,672)
Benefit obligation at the end of the year 65,834 68,037
Benefit obligation by participant status:

2020 2019

£'000 & OO0
Vested deferreds 22,615 22,930
Retirees 43,219 45,107

65,834 68,037

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of scheme assets:

2020

£'000
Fair value of schene assets at the beginning of thoe year 75,806 70,634
tnterest Income on scheme assets 1,338 1,926
Return on assets excludng interest ncome (453) 6,939
Benefits paid (2,807) (3,672)
Scheme adnunistrative cost (13) 210
Fair value of scheme assets at the end of the year 73,.87M 75,806

Analysis of the scheme assets and actual return:

Fair value of assets

2020 o]

£'000 FON0
Eguity instruments 1,563 1,753
Property 2,328 2,388
Bonds 52,274 57,153
Cash 5,360 70
Other 2,346 4,442

73,871 75,806

Actual relurn on scheme assets 8B5S 8,865

126 carr'sGroup ple  Annval Roport and Acconts 20,20



Strategic Report

Governange

Financial 5tatements

28 Retirement benefits continued

Equity instruments oonds and other assets are held in unguoted Mercer fund portfolios and are not held directly by the Pension
Scheme These Mercer portfolios inturamvest ina mix of quoted and unquoted underlying assets Property assets are held by Legal &
General Investment Managemert Other’ assets relate to assets held in the Mercer's Alternative Strategies funds within the Schome's
growth portfolio Cash includes investments in UK Cash Furds within the Mercer furd portfolios

I accordanco with 115 19 Schenie astets must be vawed at the fair vatue at the balance sheet date T.he- following applies to the assets
N the Schorme

]
e Y-t on
Equety insiruments Fair value being the net asset value provided by the investment manager
Property Closing bid price for unit holdings in managed property fund
Bonds Fair value being the net asset value provided by the investment manager
Other Far value being the net asset value pravided by the investment manager

Sensitivity analysis
A senatvity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabililies

Present value of deflned
benefit cbligation

Ceange ~assumoticns E'000

Discount rate -25 basis points 68,468
+25 basis points 63,349

Price inflation rate -25 basis points 64,315
+25 basis points 67,162

Post-retirement mortality assumption -1 year age rating 68,603
+1 year age rating 63,123

The sensilivity analysis = based or a change inan assumption while holding all other ossumptions constant It s not anindication of
actual results which may malenally differ, for example. changes in some assumptions may actually be correlated When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined Lenefit abligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
oblgabion calculated with the projected unit credit method al the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when catcutating the
defined benefit lability recognised in the balance sheet

The methodology and principal assuamptions used in preparing the senstiaty analysis did not changescompared to the prior year
o
Thne weighed average duration of the defined benetit oblgation is approxmately 16 years (2019 16-17 yeoars)

Expected cash flows for e following year

£'000
Expected employer contibut-ons -
Expected contributions to reimbursement rights -
Expected otal bonoefit payments by the scheme
Year 1 2,885
Year 2 2,966
Year 3 3,048
Year 4 3,133
Year &5 3,220
Next 5 years 17,494
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28 Retirement benefits cont nuad
Characteristics and the risks associated with the Scheme
Information about the character stics of tho Scheme

The Scheme provides pensions i ret rement and deatn nenefits to members Pension benefits are Unked to a member's final salary at 31
December 2015 {or date of leaving, if earlier) and therr length of service Since 31 December 2015 the Scheme has been closed to future
ACCILA

The Scheme s a regstered scheme under UK legislation

The Scheme s subjoct to the scheme funding requirements outlined in UK legislation As at 31 December 2017 being the date of the
most recent finalised actuanal valuation, the scheme funding valuation of the Scheme reveated a surplus of £77m equating to a funding
leverof 112% On a solvency basis tho scheme had a deficit of £18 8m equating to a funding lovel of 80% The puipose of the scheme
funding valuation = to moritar the prograss towards achieving the Trusteos’ funding ohjectives and to determineg the past service
contrnbutions and future service contributions that may be required The solvency valuation provides anindication of the financial impact
on members were the schene to wind up with no money rocoverable from the employer The Trustees agreed that deficit contributions
were not required and therefore contributions to the Schenme by the Group and Company in the yvear ending August 2021 are expected to
be Lnil The nexd full triennia. actuanal valuation wall be as at 31 December 2020 al which point the funding regurenments will be revisited

The Screme was established under trust and s governed by the Scheme's trust deed and rules dated June 2008 The Trustees are
responsiole for the operation and the governance of the Scheme, including making decisions regarding the Scheme's funding and
nvestment strategy n conunction with the Company

Risk expesure and investment strategy

The Scheme's investment strateqy s to Invest N return-seewng assets and lower rnsk assets such as bonds This strateqy reflects the
Scheme's liability profile and the Trustees attitude to nsk Tne objective 1s to achieve a 110% funding level on a gilts <0 25% p.a bass by
2026, The Trustees have a fiduciary manasgement arrangement with Mercer who have certan delegated responsibiities over investment
decisions within parameters set by the Trustees, These parameters are reviewed on o regular basis to ensure they are still appropnate
Assets are invested in Mercer podtfolios and i respect of property. Legal & General Investment Management The Scheme aims to
reduce risks such as market (investment) sk, interest rate nsk, mflation risk, currency risk and longevity risk through liability hedging.
diversfication and de-nsking thggets Where de-nsking triggers are met. assets are transferned from growth asset portfolios to matching
asset pottfolios “he objective of the matching asset pertfolc 1s to manage the impact on the funding level of Interest rate risk and
inflation rsk suchk that the majonty of the Scheme's risk 15 allocated to the growth portfolio

Carr's Group Retirement Savings Scheme
Tne Company offers membershis n a Master Tiust arrangement, Carr's Group RSS, following the closure of both sections of the Carr's
Group Pension Scheme The pension expense for this scheme for the year was £1.815.000 (2019 £1.847 000)

Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension Scheme

One of the Group's subsidiarien, Carrs Billington Agniculture (Sales) Ltd, s a partcipating employer in the Carrs Billington Agricutture
Pension Scheme, which 1s a multi-ernployer defined benefit pension scheme For the reascns explained below this scheme is accounted
for as a defined contribution scheme

The scheme is closed to new entrants and has been closed to future accrual since 1 December 2007 There is currently a surplus,
calculated in accordance witn IAS 19, of £3 sm (2019 £1.9n The sponsonng employer, Carrs Bilington Agnculture (Operations) Ltd, 15
currently paying £0 8n per annuny under the terms of the recovery plan agreed between them and the Trustees of the scheme

Under the rules of the scheme. any employer wishing to ext the scheme would trigger a partial wind-up of the scheme and would
therefore be responsible for ther 575 debt A full wind-up of the plan would also trigger 575 debts for each participating employer
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28 Retirement benefits continued

The history of the scheme 15 that it was brought together from many other pension schemes and emplovers following multiple
acquisitions over several years Many of those acguisitions had little or no records of employee histores Because of this. approximately
25% of the scheme Labwbties are arphan Labilties” Under the rules of the zcheme on a wind-up the orphan bkabilibes would be split
betwean the particiating employers in the same proportion as their calculated share of non-orphan Uabuties. At the last finalised
actuanal valuation tne buy-out defict was $137m and the Group's estimated Lability on the wind-up of the scheme was £6 6m

Because of the scnemes histony descnbed aoove, it s not possible to calculate the Group's share of the assets and Liabilities of the
scheme and consequently despite -t being a defined benefit pension scheme. the Group treats it as a defined contnbution pension
scheme for accounting purposes Tne Group does not expect to pay any contribbutions to the scheme in the next reporting percd (2019
rull Currently the deficit repar contrindtions are being funded solely by the sponsoring emiployer and this 15 expected to remain the
caseinthe future Those defict 1epan contnibutions are based on the last finalised triennial valuation of the scheme as at 31 December
2018, which showed that tne scheme had a defict of 22 6m on a technicat provisions bass

The Group's level of participation in the scheme s estimated at 48 5%, which s based on ts estimated share of the total buy-out
liabilties The Group has a 497 shareholding in its associate company which 1s the sponscrnng company of the pension scheme, As a
result of equity accounting for it share of the net assets of the associate. the Group recognises 49% of the surplus calculated onan INS
19 accounting pasis within Investment in associate’ inits consolidated balance sheet

Included in the Group's 'Share of post-tax rasults of associate’ in the prior year 1s £306.000 in respeact of the effect of the GMP
equalisation on the Cans Billmgton Agnculture Penson Scheme's liabilibies This was disclosed as an adjusting item (note &)

Other pension schemes
The: pension exponse in respect of defined contribution pension arrangements in fareign subsidiaries dunng the year was £581.000
(2010 £5206.000)

Pension conthibutions into NEST dunng the yvear amounted to £95 000 (2019 £84,000)

The Graup also pays contributions nto vanous defined contribution schenies acquired through business combinations The pension
expense during the year inrespect of these schemes was £31.000 (2019 164.000)

2g Share capital

2020 ST
Group and Company Shares E'000 S oares, £ 000
Allotted and fully paid Crdinary Shares of 2 5p each
At the beginning of the year 91,942,005 2,299 91,403,112 2,285
Allotment of shares 523,828 13 538,893 14
At the end of the year 92,465,833 2,312 91,942,005 2,299

The table above includes 41,352 (2019, 3) shares held in the Employec Share Trust
The: consiceration received on the allotment of shares during the year was £23.688 (2019. £37.787)

For details of share-based paynrent schemes see note 30
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30 Share-based payments
Group

The Group operates three active share-oased payment scnemes at 20 August 2020

The Executive Directars participaie in a deferred bonus share plan under which 25% of any bonus earned will be deferred nto awards
over saares 1IN the Company, w th awards subject to a two-year post-vesting holding period

Under the 1 ong Term Incentrse Plan shares will be awarded to eligible indrviduals subject to an eamings per share ( ERPS™ target
mexasuredd agamst average annJa, rcreases over a three-year penod For the awards granted in December 2017 December 2018 and
Novenmber 2010 an average anndal giowth of EPS must exceod 3 0% for 25% of the awards to vest and 100% vest at 10 0%, with a
straight-tne calculation betwesn 24 - and 100% of the Qward

Al employees, subject to cligibitty critena, may participate sn the Share Save Scheme Under this scheme employees are offered
savings contracts for three-year vosting penod nlans The exorcise perniod 15 sik months from the vesting date

The fan value per option granted and the assamptions used in the calculation of fair values for Long Term Incentive Plans and Share

Save Sonermes are as follaws

Bhare Soy e Shane Sa e HUATEY St
Levaey ey Lot Tisies Lang Tere S e fag et e SONEMe
et BLars lrcente B Iront ve i2ias A-vear Ak Geyev Bar f3-voar Pl
N [ ser SO0 L =it 206 el 2017 20200 2010 2015)
Grant date 1nw/n/ne 19/12/18 22127 16/12/19 1712/18 18/12/17
Share price at grant date wweighted
average) £1.43 £1.485 £1.240 £1,565 E1.44 £1.20
Exercme price twoighted averace! £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1.223 £1.275 El1.061
Fair vaiue per option at granl £1.277 £1,348 £1.119 £0.46 £0.36 £0.28
Number of employees at griant 8 8 7 157 153 290
Shares under option at grant 610,464 579,788 611,596 508,407 420,851 1,465,455
Vesting penod tyears) 3 3 3 3 3 3
Model used for viluation Market value* Market value* Market value* Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Binamial
Cxpectad volatilty - - - 36.4% 34.8% 32.7%
Option Ufe (years) 10 10 10 3.65 3.65 3.5
Expected Ufe iyears) 6.5 6.5 6.5 3.4 3.4 3.25
Risk-free rate - - - 0.61% 0.81% 0.6%
Expected dividends expressed as a
dividend yietd 2.33% 2.05% 1.68% 3.04% 2.56% 2.7%
expectations of vesting 0% Q% 50% 95% 95% 95%
Discoavied for aiv oy reds forgtu o e b ree-yeas v e oereod

The far value of the deferred bonus plan offered to the Executive Directors 15 calcuiated with reference to the market value of the shares
under awarel discounted to reflect illiguidity during the post vesting two-year penod

The expected volatility has boeen calculated using histoncal daily data over a term commensurate wath the expected life of each option.
The expected life 5 the midpom: of the exercise penod The nsk-free rate of return s the iImplied yield of zero-coupon UK Government
ponds with g remaining term equal to the expected term of the award being valued.
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SR e

I Fan 20
Peumbier 500 MNurmaser {10
Outstanding’
Al 2 September 2018 - - 612 542 - - 1,337
Granted in the year - 580 - - - 421 -
Exercsed in the year - - - - - - (8)
Forfeted i the year - - - - - 43) (140)
Al 31 August 2019 - 580 612 542 - 378 1,189
Granted in the year 610 - - - 508 - -
Exercised in the year - - - {S14) - - (10)
Forfeited in the year - - - 28) {57) (52) (192)
At 29 August 2020 610 580 612 - 451 326 287
Exercinable
At 31 August 2019 - - - - - - -
At 29 August 2020 - - - - - - -
Weighted average
Remaining contractual
life {years) . 9 8 7 6 3.07 2.07 0.83
Remainirg expected
lifes {yesars) 5.50 4.50 3.50 2.50 2.82 1.82 0.58
Ihe total wrediti/charge recognised for the year arising from share-based payments are as follows
2020 2019
£'000 £ 00
Deferred Bonus Share Plan 20149 {13) 75
Long Term Incentive: Plan Decembier 2018 (175) 175
Long Term Incentive Plan December 2017 {121 228
Lang Term Incentive Plan Novemiber 2018 - 227
Long Term Incentive Plan Novenmiboer 2015 - 22
Share Save Scheme (3-Year Plan 20200 55 -
Share Save Scheme {(3-Year Plan 201¢) 42 32
Share Save Scheme (3-Year Plan 2018) 75 n3
Share Save Scheme (5-Year Plan 2014) - 8
(137} 880
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30 Share-based payments continued
Company

The moverment in the number of outstanding options under the share schemes for the Company is shown below

Number of options (LTIP and Share Save)

HOE e
SCAS VI 3e v Er
[ iy L det e 270 7 Burveebrer 200 b 20200
[T Pavsnt e 200 Mrnteer SO0 P rrile P Q00
Cutstanding
At 2 September 2018 - - 486 Kiz1] - - 203
Granted in the year - 470 - - - 58 -
Cxorcised m the year - - - - - - -
Forfeited in the year - - - - - - (5)
Al 31 August 2019 - 470 486 381 - 58 198
Granted in the year 443 - - - 42 - -
Exercised in the yvear - - - (379} - - -
Forfeited in the year - - - (2) - (23) (42)
At 29 August 2020 443 470 486 - 42 35 156
Exercinable
AL 31 August 2019 - - - - - - -
At 29 August 2020 - - - - - - -
Weighled average i
Romaining contractual
lifex tyears) 9 8 7 [} 3.07 2.07 0.83
Remainmg expected
lfe tyaars) 5.50 4.50 3.50 2.504, 2.82 1.82 0.58
The total (crediti/charge recognised for the year ansing from share-based payments are as follows
2020 PG
£'000 F OO0
Deferred Bonus Share Plan 201 {13) 75
Long Term Incentve Plan December 2018 (133) 133
Long Term Incentive Plan Decembier 2017 (80) 181
Long Torm Incentive Plan November 2016 - 168
Long Term Incentive Plan Novemner 2014 - 22
Share Save Scheme (3-Year Plan 2020} 12 -
Share Save Schome (3-Year Plan 2019) 7 4
Share Save Scheme (3 Year Plan 2018) 18 17
Share Save Scheme (5-Year Plan zotg) - 2
(189) 602

Share-bpased payments awarded to employees of subsidiary undertakings and recognised as an investment in subsidiary undertakings

intne Company dre as follows

2020 2015

£'000 £ 000
Long lern Incentive Plan December 2018 - - 43
Long Torm Incentive Plan December 2017 53 94
I org Term Incentive Plan November 2016 _ 178
Long Term Incentive Plan November 2015 - -
Share Save Scheme (3-Year Plan 20200 33 -
Share Save Scheme (3 Year Plan 2019) = 49 21
Share Save Scheme (3-Year Plan 2018) 191 146
Share Save Scheme (5-Year Plan 2014) - 2
Total carrying amount of iInvestments 326 484
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31 Cash generated from/{used in) continuing operations

Group Company
2020 2710 2020 S0
£'000 L OO0 £'000 (RS
Profit for the year from continuing operations 10,922 13,624 6,739 6,768
Adjustmnents for
Tax 1,575 2,685 (264) (89)
Tax credit inrespect of RED {250) (526) - -
Dwidends receved fram subsadianes - - (14,016) (6,805)
Dividends receved fram associate - - {588) (588)
Depreciation and impairmeant of proverty. plant and equipment 4,567 4,804 40 43
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,462 - 96 -
Dopreciation of investment pronerty 6 6 - -
Intangible: assot amortisation 1,513 943 42 41
I ossAprofity on disposal of property plant and eguipnient 265 30) - -
{Profit)/loss on disposal of right-of-use assots (37) - 4 -
Loss on dissolution of dormant sabsidianes - - 5,337 -
BUSINESS COMEINALION EXENse: - 509 - -
Adjustments to contingent consideration (937) (1,126) - -
Net far value creditl/charge on share-based payments {137} 880 {189) 602
Release of loan provision (783) - - -
Other nan-cash adjustments, (504) (139) 1,624 (1,384)
Finance costs
Interest income {313) (463) (1,91 (2,055)
Interast expense and borrowing costs 1,716 1,399 750 666
Share of results of associate and jont ventures (2,633) 2.377) - -
IAS 19 income statement charge {exctuding interest)
Administrative expenseas (note 281 13 21 13 21
Past service cosl (inole 28) - 795 - 795
Changes in working capital texcluding the effects of acquisitions):
DecreaseAINcreasel In inventories 4,811 (670) - -
Decteasesincrease) inreceivables 3,862 (1,008) 637 (804)
(Decreasel/Increase N payables (3,479 (3,323) (834) 202
Cash generated fromAAusaed in) continuing operations 22,639 16,004 (2,5200 (2,587)
32 Analysis of net debt
at her At
CSestemiber nen O Freraae 29 August
anne Canfica thanges Oy 2020
Group £007 £000 y OO0 L0070 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 28,649 (10,089) - (989) 17,571
Bank overdrafts (4,354} (2,913) - - (7.267)
24,295 (13,002) - (989) 10,304
Loans and ather borrowings
- Current (18,319) 13,615 528 23 {4,153)
- Non-current (26,848) 1,463 (60} 422 (25,021
Net debt exctuding finance lease liabilties - IAS 17) (26,870) 2,076 468 {544) (18,870)
Finance {eases IAS 17)
- Current (1183)
- Non-current (1,740)
Net debt including finance lease liabilities - 185 17) (23,793)

Other non-cash changes relate ta the releasc of a loan forgiven by the lender and the release of deferred borrowing costs to the
consolidated iIncome statement
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32 Analysis of net debt continued

o At

N toorange 29 August

RN PRY 2020

Campany o L ! 5000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents 6,778 1,246 - (40) 7,984
Laans and otner horowing-

- Current (7.806) (110) 5,466 - (2,450}

- Nor-current (26,848) 3,900 (60) 59 (22,947)

Net deht (27,874) 5,036 5,406 19 (17,413}

Other ron-cash changes relate to loans el-ninated on dissolution of dormant subsidianes and the releaso of deferred borrowing costs to
the consolidated mcome statement

33 Capital commitments

2020 2019
Group 000 RS
Captal expenditure on property olant and equipment that has been contracted for but has nat been provided for
in the accounts 860 173
Ihe Company has no capital comnmtments (2016 none)
34 Other financial commitments
Group ,
The Group had commitments ynder non-cancellable operating leases as follows
Group Company
2020 2L 2020 S0
Land and
buildings Other Other Other Ot
£'000 £'000 b OO0 E'000 f o0
Within one year - - 634 - 87
Within two and five years inclusrve - - 805 - 177
After five years - - 29 - -
- - 1,468 - 264

The table above excludes leases accounted for under IFRS 16 Leases ' Details of contractual undiscounted cash flows for leases under
IFRS 16 can be found in note 13

35 Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities

The Company. together with certan subsidiary undertakings. has enterad nto a guarantee with Clydesdale Bank PLC in respect

of the Group loans, overdraft asset finance and guarantee facilities with that bank. which at 2g August 2020 amounted to £5.673.000
(201g £2.582.000}

Certain subsiciary undertakings utilse guarantee facilities with financial institutions which include ther own bankers These financal
nstitutions wn the normal course of business enter Into certain speafic guarantees with some of the subsidianes customers All these
guarantecs allow the financial mstitutions to have recourse to the subsidianes if a guarantec s enforced The total outstanding of such
quarantees at 20 August 2020 was £ 635.000 (20197 £4 386 000

The Company has provided specfic guarantees to certain customers of subsicharies Thess are in place to guarantee the completion of
the contract in any event Theacontracts under these guarantees had a total contract value of £14,314.000 (2019 £14.070 oco) and as at 2g
August 7020 £933.000 (2019 F1.572 o0 remamned uncompleted

The Company has provided a guarantes cver the lease of 2 premises occupied by a subsidiary The guarantee i, n respect of prompt

and full payment of rants due thioughout the tetm of the lease As at 29 August 2020 the cumulative rent payvable over the remaining
term of the (ease is L032.000 (2010 £1.040.000)
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35 Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities continued

The Company has entered into a guarantes with the Trustees of the Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension Scheme in respect of the
punctuat paymen: of ooligations due to the pension scheme by the participating emplayers of the scheme The Company's total lability
shall not exceed 11 500 000 2019 L1 506.000)

One of the Groun's subsidiary undertakings 1s a particpatng empaoyer n the Carrs Billington Agriculture Pension Scherme On o w nd-up
of the scheme the buy-out defict would be sput between the participatng employers with the Croup's level of participation

nthe scheme estmated at 42 5. At the last actuanal valuation the Groap's estimated Lability on the wind-up of the scheme was £6 6m
(2019 L7810

The Group and Compary do ot expect any of the above 10 be called n

36 Related parties
Group and Company
Identity of related parties

The Group has o related party relat onshrp with its subsidianes, associate and joint ventures and with its Directors

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are considered to be the Drectors and therr remuneration 1s disclosed within the Remuneration Committee

Report
Group Company
2020 JSIE] 2020 2018
£'000 Nela) £000 000
Balances reported in the Balanoo Shoot
Amounts owed by bus nesses controlled by key management personnel (n a
trading capacity)
Tracle recenvablos 104 18 - -
Transaclons reportad 1N the Ihcone Statement
Rovenue 474 T2 - -
Transactions with subsidiaries
Company
2020 2019
£'000 5000
Balances reported in the Balance Sheet
Amounts owed by subsidiary under takings,
Loans 34,735 49,231
Other receivables 219 279
34,954 49,510
Amounts owed to subsidiay uhdertakings
Loans (1Mo) (5,466)
Other payables (2) (2)
"2y (5,468)
Transactiors reported 1in the income Statemoent
Management charges recevable 2,857 2,967
Dividends received 14,016 6,805
Interest recevable 1,653 1,725
Purchases {n (1)
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36 Related parties continued
Transactions with associate

Group Company

2020 201 2020

£'000 ERoley £'000
Salances reported In the Bawunce Sheet
Amounts owed by associate
“Trade and ather recevables 246 185 169 45
Amounts owed to associate
Trade and other payables (19,.815) (24,628) - -
Transactions reported in the Incone Statement
Revonue 514 695 - -
Rental income 20 20 - -
Management charges recoivable 106 166 106 13
Dividendls recerved - - 588 588
Management charges payable {253) (153) - -
Purchases (106,072) (116,074) - -
Transactions with joint ventures

¥ Group Company

2020 2009 2020

£'000 [Eelaly £'000
Halances reported in ine Balance Sheet
Armounts owed by joint ventures
Trade and other recevables 1,639 1,794 1,607 1,719
Anmounts owed o jont vontures
Trade and other payablos (5) 3 - -

Inclucled within Group and Compary tracie and other receivables (s 11,805 000 (2010 11 717 0000 0 respect of loans owed by joint
ventures

Group Company
2020 2010 2020 2010
E'000 1000 £'000 L0050
Transactions reported in the Income Statemaent
Revenue 417 836 - -
Management charges recervable . 166 165 - -
Purchases (200) (310) - -

Other related parties

NW Total Engineered Solutions Litd occupies its premises under a 16-year lease with lronworks Properties LLP The owners of lronworks
Properties LL2 are emplayed by NW Total Fngneered Sotutions Ltd This lease was accounted for under IFRS 16 on the transition date of
15epiember 2019, and at 20 August 2020 the Lability includad in Lthe consolidated balance sheet was £1,114 000 Lease payments made
Inthe year were £98,000 At the prior year end under IAS 17, £23 0060 was owed Lo ronworks Properties LLP
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The Group adopted 1FRS 16 with elfect from 1 September 2019 and has applied IFRS 16 using the mod:fied retrospective approach with
the cumulative effect of intially anplying the standard recognised at the date of imtial application Comparative information has not been

restated and i therefore stulienorted under IAS 17

Adjastments to the opening balance sheet ans ng fram the adoption of IFRS 16 are as follows

Acdustmeni

y O7 O £o0T
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 41,917 (4,409) 37,508
Right-of-use assets - 15,903 15,903
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 56,349 {776) 55,573
Current liabilities :
Borrowings (23,856) 1,183 (22,673)
Leases - (2,801 (2,801;
Trade and other payables (62,653) 229 (62,424)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (28,586) 1,740 (26,846}
| eases - (12777 (12,777
Deferred tax habilitios ° 4,987 266 @721
Equity
Retained eainings 94,864 (231 93,933
Non-controlling interests 16,740 (510) 16,229
Headline figures
Non-current assots 115,616 1,494 127,110
Current assets 140,734 (776) 129,958
Total assets 256,350 10,718 267,068
Current labilities {88,788) (1,389) (30,477)
Nen-current babilities (36,572) (10,771) (47,343)
Total labilities (125,360) (12,160} (137,520}
MNet assets 130,990 {1,442) 129,548
Total sharehotders’ equity 14,250 (931) 13,319
Total equity 130,990 (1,442) 129,548

The adiustments to the opening position reflect the recognition of £11 5m of nght-of-use assets previously accounted for as operating
leases under IAS 17 tagether with 4 4m of existing asscts held under finance lease arrangements reclassified to the new balance sheet
category of nght-of-use assets Prepayments and accruats in respect of leases recogmsed on the balance sheet as at 31 August 2019
have bean removed and additional lease liabilities of Y12 7m have been recognised in respect of leases previously accounted for as
operating leases under IAS 17 Finance lease labilities of £2 gm have been reclassified from borrowings to leases on transition

¢
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37 Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ continued
To enable users of these accaunts to compiare the years presentad in this Annual Report and Accounts the following table shows the
bulance sheet of the Gioup s at 29 August 2020 as though 1AS 17 still applied

29 August 2020 29 August 2020
{asreported) Adjustments 1AS17)
000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property, plan: and egquipmen: 38,259 4,851 43,110
Right-of-use assets 14,856 (14,856) -
Current assets
Trade and other recovables 51,686 806 52,492
Current tax assets 1,535 {7 1,518
Current liabilities
Barrowings {11,420} {1,259} {12,679)
Lexanos (2,778) 2,778 -
Trade and other payables {55,522) {175) {55,697)
Non-current Liabilities .
Borrowings (25,021} {1,558) (26,579)
L eranes (11,171 1,171 -
Deferred tax labilities 4,873) {285) (5,158)
Equity .
Retanoed earnings 101,202 1,029 102,231
Non-controlling interests 17,043 427 17,470
Headline figures
Non-cutrent assets 127,473 {10,005) 117,468
Current ansets 119,870 789 120,659
Total aseets 247,343 (9,216) 238,127
Current liabilities {70,814} 1,344 {69,470}
Non-current Latilibies (42,360) 9,328 (33,032}
Total liabilites (113,174) 10,672 (102,502}
Next assets 134,16% 1,456 135,625
Total shareholders’ equity 17,126 1,029 118,155
Total equity 134,169 1,456 135,625

The adiustments to the reported figures as at 20 August 2020 reflect the derecognition of night-of -use assets and lease labilities except
for finance leases that would have been capitalised under 1AS 17 1t also renstales prepayments in respect of lease premiumes paid at the
commencement of the lease together with prepayments and accruals in respect of the regular lease payments for those eases that
wene accounted for as operating leases under iAS 17
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38 Prior year acquisitions

There were no acquisitions dunag the current year To provide users of these financial staterments with ar understanding of the effect of
acquisitions to the prior year .ncome statement and balance sheet the following disclosures are presented. all of which relate to the year
ended 31 August 2019

Animax Ltd

On 21 September 2018 Carrs Agrcuture Ltd acquired the entire issued share capital of Animax Ltd CAnimax’ a producer of market-
leading anrna health products for a total cash conaideration of up lo £8 8m As part of the acquistion Carrs Agriculture Lid also
acqured the entire 1ssued share capial of Animax’s related party Clinimax Ltd Clremax Ltd 15 a manufacturer of speciabst disinfectant
praducts for use 11 the medical mdustry

Both businesses were acgured for an initial cash conaideration of £6 on. with an additional cash consideration of up to a maximum of
L2 5m payable over the periad to November 2020. based on the achievement of agreed financial targets

The acquisition of Aninax aligns with the Group's stated strategy of nvesting 1IN growing agrculture markets in the UK and internationally

NW Total Engineered Soluticns Ltd

On 28 June 201G Carr's Engincerng Lid acquired the entire issued share capital of NW Pump & Valve |td, the holding company of NWw/
Engineered Solutions Ltd CNW/ Total”) a service and manufacturing company providing value-added solutions to the nuclear defence.
nuclear decommissioning nuclear power generation and other highly regulated markets, for & total cash consideration of up to £6 6m

NV Total has been acquired for aninitial cash consideration of £6 om with further contingent cash consideration of up to a masimum of
L3 6m payable over three years based on the achievement of agreed finanaial targets

The acquisition of N Total ackds o specialist engineenng solutions provider to the Group's Engmeering division and wili bring a range of
benefits and synergies NV Total wall also benefit significantly fraom being part of a larger group with access to increased manufacturing
capacity alongside greater financial and technical tesources

Other
On 8 July 2019 Carrs Bilington Agriculture (Sales) Ltd acquired the entire issued share capital of Paul Chuter Agnicultural Services Ltd
("Paul Chuter’) for a cash consideration of £0 4m

The gcequisition expands the existing Agnculture business

All of the above purchases have been accounted for as acquisitions

Aggregate disclosures

The tetat goodwill ansing from acgquisitions 1N the prior year endeod 31 August 2019 amounted to £7,009,000 Goodwill represents the
excess of the consideration paid over the Group's inlerests in the net far value of the net identiable assets. labilities and contingent

linbilities acquired

Ihe following amounts were iecognised within the consolidated income staternent for the year ended 31 August 2019 In respect of
acguisilions made in that year *

Animax NV Total Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue 6,148 1,880 ns 8,14%
Profit before taxation 429 352 (34) 747

There were no other recogrised gains and losses ather than the results shown above

Total acqguisition related costs amounted to £830 000 which have baen recognised within administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 August 201G and have been included in business combination expenses within adjusting tems
(note 5 LR0Q.000 has been charged to the income statement In the year ended 31 August 2014 and £121.000 has been recognised n
earlier years as ncurred
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38 Prior year acquisitions cont.nued
The assets and Llabilites recognived . tae acguistion accounting are set out below

Fair Fair Fair Total
value value value fair
Animax NW Total Cther value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Intangible assets 3,017 3,520 67 6,604
Property, plant and equipment 1,868 279 69 2,216
Inventornes 948 267 258 1,473
Recelvables 1,355 1,210 132 2,697
Casnat bank 1,430 4,246 147 5823
Payables {1,268) (2,571 (189) (4,028)
Bank ioans (340) (120) - (460)
Taxation
- Current 34 (333 (54) (353)
- Deferred (680) {633) %) (1,328)
Net assets acquired 6,364 5,865 415 12,644
Goodwill 1,742 6,234 23 7,999
8,106 12,099 438 20,643
Satisfred by
Cash conaideratan 6,000 8,868 438 15,306
Contingenl consideration 2,106 3,231 - 5,337
8,106 12,099 438 20,643
Initial cash consideration comprises
Fair value Fair value Fair value Total
Animax NW Total Other fair value
E'000 £000 £'000 £000
cnterprise value 6,000 6,000 438 12,438
Adjustments for
Profit and normalised working capital - 555 - 555
Casn and debt ke items - 2,313 - 2,313
Total intral cash considerabon 6,000 8,868 438 15,306

The contingent considoration and £1z24 000 of cash consideration remamed unpaid at the year ended 31 August 2o1g Intangible assets
1epresents the fair value of IP brond names and customer relationships

Pro forma full year information {year ended 31 August 2019)
IFRS 3 revised) requires disclosue of infformation as to the impact on the financial statements if the acquisitions had occurred at the

beginning of the: accounting yoar
The unaudited pro forma summary below presents the Group as if the acquisitions nad been acquired on 2 September 2018

The pro forma amounts nclude the results of the acquisitions and the interest expense on the mcrease in net debt as a result of the
acquisitions The pro forma amaounts do not include any passible synergies from the acguisition The pro forma information s providect
for comparalive purposes onky and daes not necessanly reflect the actual results that would have occurred. nor s it nacessanly
ndicative of future results

Year ended 31 Augusl 2019 £'000
Revenue 414,536
Profit before taxation 17,406
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Continuing operations o o ot0 2020
Revenue and results ELO0 N £ 000 LED0 £'000
Revenue 314,907 346,224 403,192 403,905 395,630
Operating profit 14,851 10,690 16,405 17,195 13,840
Analysed as:
Adjusted operating profit 15,063 12,091 17.464 18,930 16,247
Adjusting items (212) (1,401 (1,059) (1735} (2,407)
Operating profit 14,851 10,690 16,405 17195 13,840
Finance income 236 176 358 463 313
Fiance costs 1,009} 864) 1,261 (1,349) {1,656)
Profit before taxation 14,078 10,002 15,502 16,309 12,497
Analysed as:
Adjusted profit before taxation 14,290 1,403 16,561 18,044 14,904
Adjusting tens (212) (1,401 (1,05%9) (1,735) (2,407)
Profit before taxation 14,078 10,002 15,502 16,309 12,497
Taxation (2,907) (1,707 (1,855) (2,685) {1,575)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1171 8,295 13,647 13,624 10,922
Profit for the year from discort nued operations 2,817 - - - -
Profit for the year 13,988 8,295 13,647 13,624 10,922
Ratios {continuing operations)
Operating margin (excluding adjusting items!- 4,8% 3.5% 4.3% 4.7% 4.1%
Return on net assets texcluding achusting items) 13.0% 10.8% 13.7% 13.8% n.1%
Earnings per share - basic 10.7p 7.7p 13.0p 13.1p 10.3p

- adjustoed 10.9p 8.9p 13.9p 14.6p 1.9p
Dividends par ordinary share 3.8p 4.0p 4.5p 4.75p 4.75p

Fivbaied for the reclass beasos so soerat rg araf 2 of “he share ot pos-iox cesalts of te cunoc Jte rd joirt ventores
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R
Ak 200 2020
Net assets employed GO ; E'000
Non-current assets
Goodwll 13,440 24,293 24,272 32,877 32,041
Other mtangible assets 286 2,266 2,223 9,318 9171
Property plant and equipmeent 35,81 37,149 38,484 41,917 38,259
[uight-of-use assets - - - - 14,856
investment property 182 176 170 164 158
Investments 14,996 18,106 21,207 23,139 24,931
Financial assets
- Nan-current recenables 50 444 21 22 20
Retirement benefit assat an 5,209 10,146 7,769 8,037
Deferred tax assets - - - 410 -
63,076 87,643 96,523 115,616 127,473
Current assets
Inventores 33,423 37,023 42,371 46,270 40,961
Contract assets - - - 9,466 8,14
Trode and other recenables 56,940 59,723 67,516 56,349 51,686
Current tax assets 303 297 19 - 1,535
Financial assets
- Derrvabive financial instruments - 13 26 - 3
- Cash and cash equivalents 48,41 23,887 24,632 28,649 17,57
139,077 120,943 134,664 140,734 119,870
Total assets 202,153 208,586 231,187 256,350 247,343
Current Liabilities
Financial Labilities
- Borrowings (21,642) (17,060) (34,994) (23,856) (11,420)
- Leases - - - - (2,778)
- Dernvative: fimancial mstrumaeante (20) (18) - - -
Contract habiities - - - (1,269 (1,061)
Trade and other payables (46,823) (56,181) (64,290) (62,653) (55,522)
Currant tax Labilines (470} (673) 175) 1,010y 33)
(68,955) (73,932} (99.459) (88,788) (70,814)
Non-current liabilities
Financal babilities
Borrowings (18,625 {(20,966) (4,997 (28,586) (25,021
- Leases - - - - {11,171)
Deferred tax liabilties 1,817) (4,.010) (3,981 4,987y (4,783)
Other non-current babiilies (2,668) {3,755} (1,784) (2,999 (1,385)
. (23,10 (28,731 (10,762) (36,572) (42,360)
Total liabilities (92,065) (102.663) (110,221 (125,360) (113,i74)
MNet assets 10,088 105923 120,966 130,990 134,169

U Restaled for the frioab-aniar of e

Salae ccquesition accourlng for MUV Lo
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The Annual Report and Accodnis includes alternative petformance measures (APMs" ) which are not defined or speaified under the
requ rements of IFRS Thewes APM- Jre consistent with now business petformance 1s measued internally and therefore the Directors
pelieve that these APMs provide ~takeholders with additional useful information on the Group's performance

Alternative performance measure

Definitionand comments

Adjusted EBITDA

Farnings before interest, tax depreciation amaortisation, profit/Aoss) on tne disposal of non current
assets share of post-tax results of the associate and Joint vertures and excluding lems regarded by the
Drrectors as adjusting tems This measure 1s reconciied to statutory operating profit and statutory profit
nefore toxalion in note 2 EBITDA allows the user to assess the profitability of the Group's core operations
oefore the impact of capital structure, debt financing and nen-cash items such as depreciation and

amoltisation

Adjusted operating profit

Operating profit after adding back items regarded by the Directors as adjusting items This measure s
reconciled to statutory operating profit in the income statement and note 2 Adjusted results are
presented becouse 1f included these adjusting tems could distort the understanding of the Group's

performance for tne year and the comparability between the years presented

Adjusted profit before
taxation

Profit before taxation after adding back iterms regarded by the Directors as adjusting tems This measure
1= reconciled to statutory profit before taxation in the income staternent and note 2 Adjusted results are
presented because if included these adjusting tems could distort the understanding of the Group's

performance for the year and the comparability betweoen the years presented

Adjusted eamnings per share

Profit attributable Lo the equity holders of the Company after adding back items regarded by the
Directors as adjusting tems after tax divided by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in

15sue dunng the year This s reconciled to basic earnings per share in note 10

Adjusted diluted earnings
per share

Frofit attributable to the equity holders of the Comipany after adding back items regarded by the
Directors as adjusting items after tax divided by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in
I=sLe during the year adjusted for the effects of any potentially dilutive options. Diluted earnings per

sharer s showmn in notoe 10

Net debt The net poation of the Group's and Company's cash at bank and borrowings Details of the movement in
net debt s snown in note 32

Undertying sales Year-on-year increase/decrease) in sales revenue excluding the mpact of acguisitions and disposals

growth/decline This performance measure allows the user to have a clearer understanding of the organic sales growth/

decline of the Group A reconciliation of underlying sales growth/decline to reported revenue is shown

belore

Free cash flow

cash generated from operating activities loss mantenance capital expenditure The calculation of free
cash flow 1s shown below Free cash flow demonstrates how much cash s avallable for the Group to
utilise for expansionary capital investment, paying dividends, or financing/repaying borrowings.

Gross margin

Reported gross profit as a percentage of reported revenue Gross marginis a reflection of how
successfully the Group manages taw matenal price volatility and its selling pnces in competitive

markets A calculatron of gross margin is shown below

Adjusted Group
operating margin

Operating profit after adding back items regarded by the Directors as adjusting items as a percentage of
revenue Adjusted Group operating nargin excluding adjusting tems is presentad because if included
lhese lems could distort the understanding of the Group's performance for the year and the
comparability between the yvears presented The calculation of adjusted Group operating margin to the

statutory equivalent is shown below

Return on net assets

Proft before tax after adding back itemis regarded by the Directors as adjusting items as a percentage of
net assets This financial performance metnc allows users to understand how effectively and efficiently
the Group 15 using its assets to generate earnings The calculation of return on net assets is shown below

Ratio of net debt to EBITDA

The ratio of net debt to EBITDA 15 a measurement of leverage and reflects the Group's ability to service

s debt The caloculation of net debt to EBITDA 15 shown below
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continued

The following tables show recorcilat ons and calculations that are not presented elsewhere inthis Annual Report and Accounts

Underlying sales growth./decline

2020 &

£'000 FO0L Tranege
Reported revenue 395,630 403,905 -2.0%
N/ Total (11,740) (1,880)
Underlying revenue 383,890 402,025 -4.5%

The mpact on year-on-year organic revenue growth/decline of alher acquisitions in the comparabive year are immaterial and have
therefore not neen included in the calcuwation of underlying sales growth/decline,

Free cash flow

2020 AT

£o00 + 00¢ Caargo
Cash generated from operating nctivities per the consolidated statement of cash flows 18,060 12,600 +43.3%
Maintenance capital expenditure (5,372) (3,670)
Free cash ftow 12,688 8,930 +42.1%
Gross margin

2020 B

£'000 TGy hoaroge
Reported reven.ue 395,630 403,905 -2.0%
Reported gross profit 52,249 54,107
Gross profit as a percentage of revenue 13.2% 13.4%
Adjusted Group operating margin

2020 o

. ) £'000 & 000 7 heege

Reporied operating profit 13,840 17,195 -19.5%
Adjusting items (note 5! 2,407 1,735
Adjusted operating profit 16,247 18,930 -14.2%
Reported revenue 395,630 403,905
Achusted operating prohit s a percentage of reportect revenue 4.1% 4.7%
Return on net assets

2020 2019

£'000 § 1000 Crarge
Reported profit pefore taxation 12,497 16,309 -23.4%
Adjusting items (hote 7) 2,407 1,735
Adjusted profit before taxation 14,204 18,044 -17.4%
Nest assets per the consolidated balance sheet 134,169 130,990
Adjusted profit befare taxation as a percentage of net assets 1.1% 13.8%
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA

2020 2010

£'000 OO0 Change
Adjusted EBITDA (note 2) 20,771 21,156 -1.8%
Net debt excluding leases (nate 32) 18,870 20,870
Ratio of net debt excluding leases to adjusted EBITDA 0.91 0.99

o
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Dormant Subsidiaries at 29 August 2020

Campany Name Registered and Located Ownership
B L wilbams Ltd - England and Wales 51%*
B RB Trust Ltct England and Wales 1009%
Caltech Biotecnnoiogy Lid Engltand and Wales 100%
Carrs Animal Feed Supblements | td’ England and Wales 100%
Carrs Feeds Ltd- England and Wales 51%7
Carrs Fertiusers L Ergland and Wates 100%
Carrs Group Corporate Trustee Lid England and Wales 100%
Carr's Imternational Industries Lid England and Wales 100%
Carr's Milling Industrnes Utd England and Wales 100%
Carrs Milling Lt England and Wales 100%
Carrs MNatural Feods Lo England and Wales 100%
Carr's Supplements (RO L Republc of Ireland 100%
Chirton Engineerning Ltd England and Wales 100%
Forayths of (Wooler | td' England and Wales 5192
Greens rlour Mills Lt England and Wales 100%
Horse and Pet Warchouse Ltd Scotland 51%°?
Johnstone Fueds and Lubricants, Ltd Scotland 51%2
NW Pump & Valve Ltd! England and Wales 100%
Paul Chuter Agrcultural Services Lid England and Wales 51%*
Pearson Farm Supplies Ltd England and Wales 5194
Phoenx eads Ltd England and Wales 51%2
R Hind Lt England and Wales 100%
Rend and Roberteon Lid: Scotland 519%<
Robert Hutchison Lteh England and Wales 100%
Safe at Work LteP England and Wales 51%*
Scotmin Nutrnition Ltd Scotland 100%
Simarghu Lid’ England and Wales, S51%:?
Walischmiller Sotutions Ltd! England and Wales 100%
Wallace Qils Lidk England and Wales 51%:2
WM Nicholts & Company @ rickhowell Lt England and Wales 51%°?

1

21000 owered my Caree fellmepe Age Ll e

o colat on proce s commiencorl o oo ca Aageel 2ocd ard off o ally d seoluor oee-ceas ord
Walest b enck s a g oo

Companies registered in bngaand and Wales have a registered office of Otd Croft, Stanwix, Carlisle, Cumbria CA3 gBA Companies
registered in Scotland have aregistered office of 13 Waitfield Drive. Heathfield Ind Esl | Ayr KAB gRX. with the exception of Horse and
Pet Warehouse Ltd which has a registered office of 1a Whitfield Drive:, Heathfield Ind Fst, Ayr KAS gRX Companies registered in the
Republic of Ireland have a registered office of Trinity House Charlestan Road, Ranelagh. Dublin 8 DOBCEX4
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Registered Office and Advisers [siratogic repor

Registered Office
Carr's Group plc
Old Croft Stanwix
Carlise:

CA3ORA

Regyistered Na 98221

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
KPMG LLP

Quayside House

110 Quayside,

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE1L 30X

Bankers

Clydesdale Bank PLC
22 English Street,
Carlisle

CAZ 8dP

The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
Glasgow City Office

10 Gordon Street.

Glasgow

G13PL

Governance
Financial Statements

Financial Adviser and Broker
Investec Bank (UK) Ltd

30 Gresham Street

London

ECay 70P

Financial and Corporate PR Advisers
Powerscourt

1 ludor Street,

tondon

FCaY 0AH

Solicitors

Hill Dickinson LLP
15t Paul’'s Square,
Liverpool

L39S]

Registrar

Link Asset Services
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34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR341U
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